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155, 598 14,1801 .98 636
154, 1175 14,05P .06 643
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2011 2013
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0.0p7 2.4p12011/ /|20 6. 40 62p

0.0ps8 2.5p22011/ /118 6. 76 61p

0.0ps8 2.5p22011/ /118 6. 2 62p

0.018 1.6p12011/ /|19 6. 1709 61P

10 0.009 1.7B22011/10/18 6.64 60

11 0.0pL9 1.7B22011/11/17 6.¢8 60P

12 0.0pL9 1.7B22011/12/19 6.66 60

2012 0.0p09 1.7B22012/ /118 6. 7 60B

0.0pn09 1.7B22012/ /117 6. 712 61p

0.019 1.7B22012/ /{19 6.67 60B

0.015 1.3p72012/ /|18 6. 176 61p

0.0L5 1.3p72012/ /|18 6. 92 62p

0.0L5 1.3p72012/ /|18 6.97 62p

0.0p5 1.3p72012/ /118 6. 96 634

0.0p4 1.2162012/ /120 6. 95 6 3B

0.015 1.3p72012/ /|18 7.0d3 64

10 0.015 1.3p72012/10/18 7.d8 64F

11 0. 0p5 1.3p72012/ 11/ 16 7. 143 65p

12 0.0L6 1.4582012/12/18 7.009 64p

2013 o.op7 1. 5492013/ /117 7. 14 65

o.opv7 1. 5492013/ /115 7. 16 65B
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20120 31 7.11 0.08 0. 24 0. 3p (0.07)(0.Q7) —
20120 31 6.91 0.23 0.45 0.68 (0.23)(0.293) —
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20090 31 5.40 0.32 1.43 1.7p (0.48) (0. 48) _f
20080 31 6. 82 0.40 (1.35)(0.95) (0.47) (0.47) _f
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2012 10 31
(50. 0 %)
(1. 2%)
Government National Mortgage Association
Pass-Through Certificates
3 1/2s, July 15, 2042 12,780,958, 016, 617
3s, TBA, January 1, 2043 1,000,00D,059,375
3s, TBA, November 1, 2042 2,000, 00DP, 130, 156
17,206, 148
(48. 8%)
Feder al Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Pass-Through Certificates
4s, June 1, 2042 16,902,928, 813, 752
3s, TBA, November 1, 2042 12,000, 00DP,569, 063
Federal National Mortgage Association
Pass-Through Certificates
7s, January 1, 2017 4,084 4,309
5s, TBA, November 1, 2042 42,000, 046H,819, 375
4s , with due dates from June 1, 2042 1209 ,NoYv3e,nbFes, 112,6 , 2902462
3s, TBA, February 1, 2043 93,000,096, 941,600
3s, TBA, November 1, 2042 365,000,888, 164, 444
701, 439, 469
( 715,277,298 ) 718,645,617
(39. 2%)
(14. 8 %)
Feder al Home Loan Mortgage Corp.
|l FB Ser. 3408, Class EK, 24.932s, 2037 1,595,458,537, 289
|l FB Ser.2976, Class LC, 23.635s, 2035 241,219 385,951
|l FB Ser.2979, Class AS, 23.489s, 20314 152,957 203, 398
|l FB Ser. 3072, Class SB, 22.865s, 2035 910, 1501, 439,791
|l FB Ser. 3249, Class PS, 21.569s, 2036 831,5901, 260, 950
|l FB Ser. 3065, Class DC, 19.218s, 2035 1,021,938,603, 647
|l FB Ser.2990, Class LB, 16.399s, 2034 1,224,160, 718,586
|l FB Ser. 4105, Class HS, 10, 6.386s, 20%,2899, 618,293, 844
|l FB Ser. 3803, Class SP, 10O, 6.386s, 2088382, 20®830,577
|l FB Ser. 3861, Class PS, 10, 6.386s, 2053,7409, 405863, 449
|l FB Ser. 3907, Class KS, 10O, 6.336s, 20#4,0153,570833, 8514
|l FB Ser. 3708, Class SA, 10, 6.236s, 2040896, 6&7 331,571
|l FB Ser.4112, Class SC, 10O, 5.936s, 2082350, 68&2 314,901
|l FB Ser. 4105, Class LS, 10, 5.936s, 20%,1855, 774,174,258
|l FB Ser. 4012, Class ES, 10, 5.836s, 2038974, 1®1 532, 387
|l FB Ser. 3852, Class NT, 5.786s, 2041 3,864,994, 258,030
|l FB Ser. 3752, Class PS, 10, 5.786s, 20%4,0640, 765,340,874
FRB Ser. 3036, Class AS, 5 1/2s, 2035 54,334 47,462
Ser. 3632, Class ClI, 10, 5s, 2038 325,425 18,003
Ser. 3626, Class DI, 10, 5s, 2037 191, 385 6, 153
Ser . 4122, Class TIlI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2042 7,398,000, 125,976
Ser. 4018, Class DI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2041 9,540, 782,151, 763
Ser. 3747, Class HI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2037 2,373,740194, 448
Ser. 3707, Class PI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2025 8,576,302660, 032
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Feder al Home Loan Mortgage Corp.
Ser. 4116, Class MI, 10, 4s, 2042 15,001, 0®0 306, 404
Ser. 4090, Class BI, 10, 4s, 2042 3,942,209444,721
Ser. 4026, Class JI, 10, 4s, 2041 3,334,403380, 455
Ser. 3740, Class KI, 10, 4s, 2033 11,311,98967, 531
Ser. 4077, Class Al, 10, 3s, 2027 16,113,802 649,570
Ser.T-56, Class A, |1 O, 0.524s, 2043 13,226,35&27, 845
Ser . T-56, Class 3, |10, 0.484s, 2043 4,713,314 61, 862
Ser.T-56, Class 1, |1 0O, 0.299s, 2043 15,927,926L19, 459
Ser.T-56, Class 2, 10O, 0.131s, 2043 5,672,428 17,726
Ser. 4077, Class TO, PO, zero %, 2041 3,103,6072,646, 6914
Ser. 3835, Class FO, PO, zero %, 2041 9,085,348,633, 327
Ser. 3369, Class BO, PO, zero %, 2037 63,832 59,762
Ser . 3391, PO, zero %, 2037 155,557 141, 272
Ser. 3300, PO, zero %, 2037 949,314 888,699
Ser. 3206, Class EO, PO, zero %, 2036 40,601 38,092
Ser. 3175, Class MO, PO, zero %, 2036 133,077 125,043
Ser. 3210, PO, zero %, 2036 33,174 31,585
FRB Ser. 3117, Class AF, zer %, 2036 36,311 29,842
FRB Ser. 3326, Class WF, zer %, 2035 95,745 86, 171
Feder al National Mortgage Association
Il FB Ser.06-62, Class PS, 38.636s, 20361,687,143, 129, 496
Il FB Ser.06-8, Class HP, 23.794s, 2036 947,6431,606, 813
Il FB Ser. 05-45, Class DA, 23.647s, 20351,875,013,122, 042
|l FB Ser.05-122, Class SE, 22.363s, 20315,671,382,540, 758
I FB Ser. 05-75, Class GS, 19.618s, 2035 756,6251,109, 932
Il FB Ser. 05-106, Class JC, 19.471s, 2035971,4671,555, 765
Il FB Ser . 05-83, Class QP, 16.846s, 2034 218,706 306, 957
I FB Ser.11-4, Class CS, 12.479s, 2040 2,008,132,413, 340
I FB Ser.12-96, Class PS, |1 O, 6.489s, 204Y76,578 244,761
|l FB Ser.12-88, Class SB, |1 O, 6.459s, 28,4205, 668,571, 738
|l FB Ser.12-75, Clas SK, 10, 6.439s, 264076, 956 026, 397
I FB Ser.12-4, Class SN, 10O, 6.389s, 2014,0703, 392,367, 352
Il FB Ser.12-75, Class KS, 10, 6.339s, 204255, 3016 839, 9014
Il FB Ser.12-3, Class CS, 10O, 6.339s, 2000190, 8414 878, 478
|l FB Ser.12-3, Class SD, 10, 6.299s, 20%,2712,935665, 989
|l FB Ser.11-87, Class HS, 10, 6.289s, 25,4935, 499,032,777
I FB Ser.11-67, Class BS, | O, 6.289s, 204225, 252 360, 766
I FB Ser.11-27, Class AS, |1 O, 6.269s, 224952, 783836, 187
Il FB Ser.12-30, Class HS, 10O, 6.239s, 204327, 1066 773, 068
Il FB Ser.10-35, Class SG, | O, 6.189s, 204@51, 158 924,661
|l FB Ser.12-113, Class CS, 10, 5.939s, 42,0433, 087960, 768
|l FB Ser.12-4, Class SY, 10, 5.739s, 20#4,2427, 420,110,722
I FB Ser.11-53, Class SY, | O, 5.739s, 204180, 3125 480, 976
Ser.12-132, Class SA, 10, 5s, 2042A 13,754,0®0 297,606
Ser.12-118, Class 10O, 10, 4s, 2042 12,366,582 904, 701
Ser.12-124, Class Ul, 10, 4s, 2042A 25,247,500 531, 926
Ser.12-118, Class PIlI, 10, 4s, 2042 8,580,000, 473, 358
Ser.12-96, Class PIl, 10, 4s, 2041 12,477, 7216 812, 889
Ser.03-W10, Class 1, 10O 1.4s, 2043 10, 759,108481, 218
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Feder al National Mortgage Association

Ser.01-50, Class B1, 10, 0.41s, 2041 993, 5009 6, 2009
Ser.2002-W6, Class 1A1 0, 0.263s, 2042 1,204,755 3,577
Ser.2005-W4, Class 1A1 0, 0.11s, 2035 271,958 722
Ser. 03-34, Class P1, PO, zero %, 2043 264,141 235,511
Ser . 07-64, Class LO, PO, zero %, 2037 241,838 225,528
Ser.07-14, Class KO, PO, zero %, 2037 575,056 534,543
Ser. 06-125, Class OX, PO, zer o %, 2037 91,077 87, 246
Ser. 06- 84, Class OT, PO, zero %, 2036 69, 423 65, 845
Ser. 06-46, Class OC, PO, zero %, 2036 65, 980 61, 622
Government National Mortgage Association
Il FB Ser.11-56, Class SA, 23.611s, 20412,596, 432, 091, 718
Il FB Ser.10-158, Class SD, 14.368s, 204X0,780,258,012, 0090
|l FB Ser.11-70, Class WS, 9.279s, 204011,858, 004,184,302
| FB Ser.11-72, Class SE, 7.12s, 2041 9,422,000, 442,829
Il FB Ser.11-56, Class MS, 6.863s, 2041 6, 198,654,891, 598
I FB Ser.11-61, Class CS, 10O, 6.469s, 233889, 038 259,128
|l FB Ser.11-70, Class SM, 10, 5.676s, 250,47189, 000D, 458, 481
Ser.10-35, Class Ql, 10, 4 1/2s, 204012,782,22%9 057,142
Ser.11-116, Class I A, 10, 4 1/2s, 20391, 405,725202,277
Ser. 11-116, Class BI, I O, 4s, 2026 9,305, 445959, 857
Il FB Ser.11-70, Class YI, 10, 0.15s, 2050722,31384,586
Ser.11-70, PO, zero %, 2041 37,727,181, 346, 316
Ser.10-151, Class KO, PO, zero %, 20371,187,50%,087, 389
Ser. 06- 36, Class OD, PO, zer o %, 2036 72,651 68, 0414
Ser.99-31, Class MP, PO, zero %, 2029 34,045 32,213

Structured Asset Securities Corp.

I FB Ser.07-4, Class 1A3, 1O, 6.038s, 26805481, 13%6 791, 416

Structured Asset Securities Corp.

144A Ser.98-RF3, Class A, 10, 6.1s, 2028749,424 116,161

212,850, 949
(12. 1%)

Banc of America Commerci al Mor t gage, I nc.

Ser.04-4, Class D, 5.073s, 2042 2,385,00Dp,368, 603
Ser.07-1, Class XW, |10, 0.306s, 2049 10,489, 74496, 275
Banc of America Commerci al Mortgage, Il nc. 144A
FRB Ser.05-2, Class E, 5.323s, 2043 1,590, 000,625,775
Ser.04-2, Class F, 4.992s, 2038 1,350,000, 360,800
Ser.04-4, Class XC, | O, 0.861s, 2042 19,800,034203, 366
Ser.04-5, Class XC, | O, 0.706s, 2041 32,726,591402, 373
Ser.02-PB2, Class XC, 10, 0.457s, 20359,480, 158 891
Ser.07-5, Class XW, |10, 0.392s, 2051 21,161,21868, 049
Ser.05-1, Class XW, |10, 0.059s, 2042 295,342,18%01, 302
Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities, I|Inc.
FRB Ser.07-T28, Class AJ, 5.971s, 20421,708,000,692, 765
FRB Ser.05-T20, Class C, 5.15s, 2042 1,900, 000,835,851
Ser.04-PWR3, Class D, 4.889s, 2041 1,989,00»,019, 034
Ser.04-PR3I1I, Class X1, 10, 0.968s, 2048,029,954 93,750
Bear Stearns Commerci al Mortgage Securities, Il nc. 144A Ser.

06-PW14, Class X1, 10O, 0.166s, 2038 17,354,94x8B05, 447
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CFCRE Commerci al Mortgage Trust 144A Ser.11-C1, Cl ass XA, | O,
1.477s, 2044 28,997,796 716,670
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser.05-C3, Class AJ,
2043 2,050,00Bp,161,500
Citigroup Commerci al Mortgage Trust 144A Ser.06-C5, Class XC,
0.117s, 2049 78,310, 1714 090, 078
Citigroup/ Deutsche Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.07-Cbh4, Class XWwW, 10, 0.382s, 20499,325,52%40, 245
Ser.07-CDbh4, Class XC, 10, 0.146s, 2041956, 412,853435,870
Commerci al Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
FRB Ser.06-C7, Class AM, 5.773s, 2046 4,560,0048,947, 965
Ser.05-C6, Class AJ, 5.209s, 2044 4,413,000, 486, 355
Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates 144A
Ser.05-LP5, Class XC, 10, 0.317s, 20425,782,67®220,029
Ser. 06-C8, Class XS, 10, 0.16s, 2046 58,374,571749, 458
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Certificates
FRB Ser.07-C4, Class A2, 5.762s, 2039 4,030,944, 043,990
Ser.06-C5, Class AX, 10, 0.15s, 2039 29,693,74409, 774
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Certificates 144A Ser.07-C2, C
AX, 10, 0.071s, 2049 86, 317,26®8B20, 323
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
FRB Ser.04-C2, Class D, 5.575s, 2036 1,733,00D0,828, 857
FRB Ser.05-C4, Class B, 5.29s, 2038 5,760, 00Hb,626, 368
Ser.05-C6, Class AJ, 5.23s, 2040 2,984,008, 172,887
Ser. 05-C5, Class AJ, 5.1s, 2038 1,650,000, 744,380
FRB Ser.04-C5, Class B, 4.929s, 2037 2,840, 00,911,000
Ser.03-CPN1, Class E, 4.891s, 2035 1,528,000,526, 732
Ser.04-C4, Class AJ, 4.772s, 2039 4,030,004, 229, 288
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp. 144A
Ser.98-Cl1l, Class F, 6s, 2040 2,450, 312,658,589
FRB Ser.03-CK2, Class G, 5.744s, 2036 2,984,00Dp,987,374
Ser.03-C3, Class AX, 10, 1.717s, 203852,667,49843, 993
Ser.02-CP3, Class AX, 10, 1.092s, 20354,637,655 12,842
DLJ Commerci al Mortgage Corp. 144A FRB Ser.98-CG1, Class B4,
2031 3,188,008, 254,025
First Union National Bank-Bank of America Commerci al Mort gage
144A Ser.01-Cl1l, Class 3, | O, 1.552s, 2013,3787, 888 18
G-Star, Ltd. 144A FRB Ser.02-2A, Class BFL, 2.211s, 2037 (Cay
Il sl ands) 417,000 375,300
GE Business Loan Trust 144A Ser. 04-2, Cl2abs2xs, ™6 9 21.4966,46s0,6 2 0 3 2
GE Capital Commerci al Mortgage Corp. FRB Ser.05-C4, Class AJ,
5.307s, 2045 1,387,000, 151,210
GE Capital Commercial Mortgage Corp. 144A
Ser.05-C3, Class XC, 10, 0.14s, 2045 307,747,9%50424,605
Ser.07-Cl1, Class XC, 10, 0.099s, 2049127,913,84953, 726
GMAC Commerci al Mortgage Securities, Il nc.
Ser.97-Cl1l, Class X, 10, 1.234s, 2029 2,690,351106, 554
Ser.05-C1, Class X1, 10, 0.592s, 204333,468,10828, 291
Greenwich Capital Commercial Funding Corp. 144A Ser.03-Cl, C
4.773s, 2035 1,618,000,602, 292
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GS Mortgage Securities Corp. 1
Ser. 06-GG8, Class AJ, 5.622s, 2039 1,924,000, 703,960
Ser.06-GG6, Class A2, 5.506s, 2038 344,109 344,109
GS Mortgage Securities Corop. I 144A
Ser.98-C1, Class F, 6s, 2030 520,322 536,030
Ser.06-GG6, Class XC, 10O, 0.087s, 20388,166,062265,017
JPMorgan Chase Commerci al Mortgage Securities Corp.
FRB Ser.07-LD12, Class A3, 5.971s, 20839%,773,0DPD,084, 444
Ser.07-LD12, Class A2, 5.827s, 2051 1,900, 990,939,010
FRB Ser.04-CB9, Class B, 5.665s, 2041 2,082,00Dp,132, 3814
Ser.02-C3, Class D, 5.314s, 2035 1,521,00D0,521, 000
FRB Ser.02-C2, Class E, 5.256s, 20314 1,540,000,540, 000
FRB Ser. 04-CBX, Class B, 5.021s, 2037 1,143,000, 126, 826
Ser.06-LDP8, Class X, 10, 0.542s, 20459,925,77487,397
Ser.07-LDPX, Class X, 10, 0.311s, 20499,254,3728369,817
JPMorgan Chase Commerci al Mortgage Securities Corp. 144A
FRB Ser.01-C1, Class H, 5.626s, 2035 1,456, 198,475,711
Ser.05-CB12, Class X1, 10, 0.337s, 2027,575,427231,909
Ser.06-LDP6, Class X1, 10, 0.054s, 20482,666,22382,120
LB Commerci al Conduit Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.99-C1, Class F, 6.41s, 2031 556,463 570, 375
Ser.99-C1, Class G, 6.41s, 2031 851,777 856, 036
Ser.98-C4, Class G, 5.6s, 2035 417,870 427,151
Ser.98-C4, Class H, 5.6s, 2035 808,000 880, 320
LB-UBS Commerci al Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 08-C1, Class AM, 6.157s, 2041 1,623,000,848, 110
Ser. 06-C7, Class A2, 5.3s, 2038 2,253,258, 253,256
Ser.07-C2, Class XW, 10, 0.499s, 2040 8,204, 233153, 222
LB-UBS Commerci al Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser.02-C7, Class H, 5.747s, 2036 4,110, 004, 128, 244
FRB Ser.04-C1, Class G, 5.077s, 2036 7,400,000, 431,725
Ser. 06-C7, Class XW, 10, 0.657s, 203841,196,18878, 715
Ser.05-C5, Class XCL, 10, 0.465s, 20488, 971, 202 228, 247
Ser.05-C2, Class XCL, 10, 0.353s, 2041042,065, 92998, 297
Ser.06-C7, Class XCL, 10O, 0.267s, 20388,838,833%®59,820
Ser.07-C2, Class XCL, 10, 0.139s, 2041081, 727,124556, 901
Ser.05-C7, Class XCL, 10, 0.103s, 2041020, 650, 10814, 007
Merril |l Lynch Mortgage I nvestor s, Il nc. Ser. 96-C2, Class JS,
2.406s, 2028 43,271 >4
Mer il Lynch Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser.07-Cl1l, Class A3, 5.847s, 2050 475,000 509,011
FRB Ser.08-C1, Class AJ, 5.805s, 2051 1,828,000, 763, 417
Ser. 03-KEY1, Class C, 5.373s, 2035 3,163,008, 216, 138
Ser. 05-CKIlI1, Class AJ, 5.261s, 2037 1,632,00D,663,661
Mer rill Lynch Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.04-KEY2, Class XC, 10, 0.855s, 203%,288,751176, 784
Ser.05- MCP1, Class XC, 10, 0.198s, 2088,085,56844,535
Merrill Lynch/ Countrywide Commerci al Mortgage Trust FRB Ser.
Class A2FL, 0.334s, 2049 965,479 959, 445
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Mezz Cap Commerci al Mortgage Trust 144A

Ser.04-C1, Class X, 10, 9.144s, 2037 1,966,74288,509

Ser.06-C4, Class X, 10, 5.998s, 2045 5,840,451582, 293

Ser.05-C3, Class X, 10, 5.806s, 2044 1,831,911133, 9183

Mor gan Stanley Capital I

Ser.06-HQ9, Class B, 5.832s, 2044 6,140,000, 295, 115

FRB Ser.06-T23, Class A2, 5 3/4s, 2041 669,468 676, 417

Ser. 07-1Q14, Class A2, 5.61s, 2049 1,401, 348, 448,515

FRB Ser.07-HQ12, Class A2, 5.576s, 20419, 283,061,317, 704

06- HQ10 Ser.06-HQ10, Class AJ, 5.389s,1,29043l, 00D, 680, 695

Mor gan Stanley Capital I 144A Ser. 03-1 Q6,350 ,ak06D,C,0 35,.314256 s , 20
Morgan Stanley ReREMIC Trust 144A FRB Ser.10-C30A, Class A3B,
5.843s, 2043 430,286 444,270
Nomura Asset Securities Corp. 144A Ser .2,800D%6, 003A,als3s2,B113,0 6 s, 2
TI AA Real Estate CDO, Ltd. Ser.03-1A, Cll,a607 ,E8 9 81s6,0 ,2709308
TI AA Seasoned Commerci al Mortgage Trust FRB Ser.07-C4, Cl ass
5.585s, 2039 3,105,008, 357,126
Wachovia Bank Commerci al Mortgage Trust

Ser. 05-C17, Class D, 5.396s, 2042 6,740, 000,471,074

Ser.06-C29, 10, 0.387s, 2048 192,802,885759, 009

Ser.07-C34, 10, 0.347s, 2046 16,806, 17203, 355
Wachovia Bank Commerci al Mortgage Trust 144A

FRB Ser.03-C8, Class F, 5.206s, 2035 2,569,00B,632, 711

Ser.05-C18, Class XC, 10, 0.335s, 20423,507,956L64, 556

Ser.06-C26, Class XC, 10, 0.042s, 20481,139,70424,842
WAMU Commerci al Mortgage Securities Trust 144A Ser. 05-Cl1lA, CI
5.72s, 2036 129,000 112,391

173,427,443
(12. 3%)

ASG Resecuritization Trust 144A

FRB Ser.09-2, Class G65, 5.13s, 2036 1,700, 000,692, 168

FRB Ser.10-3, 0.507s, 2045 6, 630,008,845, 400
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Il nc. Ser.2005-WF2, Class AF4,
2035 2,364,002, 328,547
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, I nc. 144A FRB Ser.09-7, Class
2.614s, 2035 4,500,008,555, 000
Countrywide Alternative Loan Trust FRB Ser.05-16, Class A4, O
2035 3,020,232, 295,376
Countrywide Asset Backed Certificates

FRB Ser.05-ABl1, Class A3, 0.511s, 20383,089,318,453, 153

FRB Ser.07-11, Class 2A2, 0.331s, 20476,831, 758,695, 122
First Pl us Home Loan Trust Ser. 97- 3, Class B1, 7.79s, 2023 (1
defallt) 134,710 13

GSAA Home Equity Trust

FRB Ser.04-10, CIl as AF4, 4.819s, 20343,733,123,924, 448

FRB Ser.05-8, Class A3, 0.641s, 2035 12,629,380, 166, 658

FRB Ser.05-9, Class 2A3, 0.581s, 2035 7,919,10@,889,619

FRB Ser.05-6, Class A3, 0.581s, 2035 17,694,38%5,951, 713
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MASTR Adjustable Rate Mortgage Trust FRB Ser.04-13,Class 3A7,
2.627s, 2034 4,100,008, 192, 250
Opteum Mortgage Acceptance Corp. FRB Seb, 600%9,3554C18a6s7s, 2A129, 0. 551
Structured Asset Mortgage I nvestments, Il nc. Ser. 07- AR4, Cl ass
0 1/2s, 2047 130,690,633901, 332
WAMU Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
FRB Ser.2004- AR13, Class Al1B2, 0.74s,1308428, 784,626, 966
FRB Ser.05-AR11, Class A1C3, 0.721s, 29,4421, 173,794,821
FRB Ser.05-AR19, Class A1C3, 0.711s, 234588, 036 444,745
FRB Ser.05-AR11, Class Al1B2, 0.661s, 29,4666, 532,844,885
FRB Ser. 05-AR13, Class A1C4, 0.641s, 2@45%15, 282, 730, 305
FRB Ser. 05-AR8, Class 2AB2, 0.631s, 20405808,5M4 349, 417
FRB Ser.2005- AR17, Class Al1B2, 0.621s,7,25044%, 175, 885, 236
FRB Ser.05-AR11, Class A1B3, 0.611s, 2M0,4%65, 668, 468, 646
FRB Ser. 05- AR8, Class 2AC3, 0.601s, 20%5871,074,843,636
FRB Ser.05-AR2, Class 2A23, 0.591s, 2025112,270,961, 613
FRB Ser. 05- AR6, Class 2AB2, 0.581s, 2045510, 078,178, 663
FRB Ser.2005-AR17, Class A1B3, 0.561s,2,2044, 930, 773, 494
FRB Ser. 05-AR2, Class 2A21, 0.541s, 2045855,489,584, 218
Wel |l s Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities Trust FRB Ser.04-H, Cl a
2.615s, 2034 1,756, 171,791,294
177,035,957
( 500, 131,292 ) 563,314, 349
(26. 8%) *
(2. 1%)

Airgas, Il nc. sro. unsec unsub. notes 3 148&5,, 0®0 15515, 740
Al'l egheny Technol ogies, Il nc. sr unse 8N 5,ul0 0 1n, o0t 6e7s, 893 83/ 8 s,
Celanese US Holdings, LLC sr. otes 5 7/8%5, ®O® 19 2(9Ge9r8many )
CF I ndustries, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
2020 415,000 525,997
Domtar Corp. company guaranty sr unsec. unsub. notes 6 1/ 4s,
(Canada) 645,000 697,074
East man Chemi cal Co. sr . unsec. notes 41,8745 ,200412, 894, 163
East man Chemical Co. sr. unsec. notes 31,645 ,200®, 317, 445
East man Chemical Co. s unsec. unsub. n3Q0,s0 060 33s5 6 ,2805178
East man Chemi cal Co. sr . unsec. unsub. n3o% 5e,s0 0. 44s0,9 , 2805117
Georgia-Pacific, LLC sr. wunsec unsub. ndon0e,s0 070 36/447s,,9 8280 2 9
Georgia-Pacific, LLC 144A company guar an,tly2 0s,r0082n05tlebs, 152.44s, 20
I nternational Paper Co ST unsec. not es9 %8 ,30 B0s1,, 321051,91 6 0
I nternational Paper Co ST unsec. not es5180,700 0 2708328, 430
I nternational Paper Co s unsec. not els, 40 0,500D0,2802108 54 3
Lyondel |l Basell I ndustries NV sr unsec 705 ,e00 061s,,0 1210,2711(9Net her
Mosaic Co. (The) sr. wunsec. notes 3 3/ 4s64®0R00 694, 278
Packaging Corp. of America sr. unsec. un%S4u%, 000 t%7s6,30.295s, 2022
PPG I ndustries Il nc. s unsec. unsub. 1d,elb30 ,70 M0s,,4 0200, 1493 7
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Rio Tinto Finance USA, Ltd. company guaranty sSsr. unsec. nhotes
2040 (Australia) 2,475,00B,970, 567
Rock-Tenn Co. 144A sr. unsec. notes 4. 9s4072,0R0 442, 314
Rock-Tenn Co. 144A sr. unsec. notes 4. 453%93,200000M@ 426, 146
Rohm & Haas Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notesl,7818%,s0 022042892, 98 4
Sealed Air Corp. sr. note 7 7/ 8s, 2017 725,000 772,125
Seal ed Air Corp. 144A otes 5 5/ 8s, 2013678, 000 694, 950
Teck Resources Limited sr notes 10 3/4s822009 (g8nZda)
Temple-Inland, Il nc. sr. unsec. unsub. nlot08&0,60 06T, 83s0,6 ,2503188
Uni on Carbide Corp. ST . unsec. unsub. b oInd5, 070 (B3 /146s3,, 722069 6
Westvaco Corp company guaranty sr uns e465 ,un0 b6.1 6n,03t5e2s 7. 95s
Xstrata Finance Canada, Ltd 144 company guaranty sr. wunsec.
6s, 2041 (Canada) 590,000 644,975
Xstrata Finance Canada, Ltd. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.
bonds 5.8s, 2016 (Canada) 610,000 691, 300
30,190, 367
(0. 5%)
B/ E Aerospace, I nc ST . unsec. unsub nlo,t e85 ,50 011, 41s3, 3 , 2802252
Legrand SA nsec. unsub. ebs. 8 1/ 2s, 210,239 J,F0r0atn,c8el)5, 716
Parker Hannifin Corp. r unsec. unsub. 430%,e00Se6r0.5MTING,2 6 1/ 4s
Republic Services, Il nc company guarant y5%5,.0 0 s7e3c8., 3ndo7t es 5. 7
Republic Services, Il nc company guarant y7 x0,.0 00 s7e9c9., 4n6o7t es 3. 8
Republic Services, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. no
1/2s, 2019 660,000 782,459
United Technologies Corp. sr. unsec. notle00,50 070 ,1 3240,4506 8
United Technologies Corp. sr. unsec. unsuMs, nOokle sO 440 ,19/022s, 204
United Technol ogies Corp. ST . unsec. U n sue0, Nl e6sO 23, .918s2, 2022
7,653,408
(2. 8%)
America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. no
1/8s, 2040 (Mexico) 880, 0001, 162, 168
America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty wunsec. unsub. notes
2016 (Mexico) 670,000 696, 199
American Tower Corp. sr. unsec. notes 71,,21H®%10/000, 453, 9438
AT&T, I nc. STro. unsec. unsub. bonds 5 1/12,s16 ®,0008D, 409, 553
AT&T, Il nc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6. 3sl, 353,800, 055, 215
Bell south Capital Funding unsec. notes 17, 57 08,s0 02013400, 55 4
CenturylLink, I nc ST unsec. debs. Ser . &, 62 5/,/8B0®6D, 123002, 86 4 2
CenturylLink, Il nc. sr. unsec. unsub. not e&55,ex00,8776.,63s2,6 2039
Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec700unGouMm .9 7n20,t4elsl 6. 95s,
Corning, Il nc. ST . unsec. unsub. notes 5 2Z6%,s00® 034207, 229
Crown Castle Tower s, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. notes 4.88
2020 1,915, 00D, 188, 315

DI SH DBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unslec6 3 5,0 0els, 862 03,/948s1, 2021
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France Telecom sr. unsec. unsub. not es 58 80,800 01200159 ,(8For8a nc e )
France Telecom sr. unsec. unsub. notes 488l6,8060 0 2908291, 59F3r ance)
Frontier Communications Corp. ST . unsec.80nb,t0e0kcC0O 89 214/,20s0,0 2020
NBCUni ver sal Medi a, LLC sr. unsec. unsub84 m,,ol0e0s1,61.047s,,4 2210 4 0
Qwest Corp. notes 6 3/ 4s, 2021 1,767,00D», 091, 381
Rogers Communications, Il nc. company guaranty notes 6. 8s, 2018
(Canada) 610,000 772,055
SBA Tower Trust 144A company guaranty s2,.4 2n5,t00D,57.2140,14s6,2 2017
SBA Tower Trust 144A notes 2.933s, 017 280,000 287,746
TCl Communications, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. d
7/ 8s, 2026 2,435,008,520, 708
Telecom Italia Capital SA company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
6.175s, 2014 (ltaly) 955, 0001, 012,917
Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5.
2021 (Spain) 1,500,00D,524,375
Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. n
6.221s, 2017 (Spain) 345,000 372,600
Ti me Warner Cabl e, I nc company guar ntl, 1s&5, OnOlt, e6sl 67,.537s4, 2038
Ti me Warner Cabl e, Il nc company guarant y355,.0 0l s4e4c9.,60 838/ 4 s, 20
Ti me Warner Cabl e, Il nc company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. no
3/ 4s, 2039 350,000 467,168
Ti me Warner Cabl e, I nc company guaranty Ssr. unsec. unsub. no
1/2s, 2041 85,000 98,847
Ti me Warner Cabl e, Il nc company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. no
1/ 2s, 2042 160,000 164, 407
Verizon Communicati ns, I nc. STr unsec dn204 ,e00 07 .63552s,,9 7260 3 9
Verizon Communications, |l nc. sr unsec. 856s,u0 0 1n, 01t9%e8s, 287 23/ 4 s ,
Verizon New Jersey, Il nc ebs. 8s, 2022 640, 000 873, 394
Verizon Pennsylvani a, Inc. debs.8.35s, 20®8B®, 0001, 099,915
Verizon Virginia, I nc. debs. Ser. A, 4 5/ 8X19,2008B 222, 297

40, 459, 545

(2. 5%)

ADT Corp. (The) 144A company guaranty sr93Q,n00e0cl, On0cOt,e0s5 34 7/ 8s
ADT Corp. (The) 144A company guaranty slIr,.30uMN,sCcDd, 3n502t,e5s293 1/ 2s
Advance Auto Parts, I nc. compan uaranty sr. unsec. notes 5
2020 1,095,000, 270, 460
Autonati on, I nc. company guaranty r u n6sdesc,. 0 nGo t7e2s4 ,60 133/ 4 s , 20
CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec d2e,b4s0. 0 , N0t Be,s3 679 ,77/588s, 203
Choice Hotels International, Il nc. ompany guaranty sr. unsec.
notes 5.7s, 2020 1,195,000, 292,094
DI RECTV Hol di ngs, LLC/ DI RECTV Financing Co., Il nc. company gua
STr. unsec. notes 6. 35s, 2040 805,000 964,102
DI RECTV Hol di ngs, LLC/ DI RECTV Financing Co., Il nc. company gua
Ssr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 7/8s, 2019 1,670,00D0,997, 773
Expedi a, I nc. company guaranty sr. unsec950,n00ull, Ondo8t,e9s2 45. 95 s,
Ford Motor Co. s unsec. unsub. notes 7350s,,000 44624, 375
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Ford Motor Credit Co. , LLC s unsec. n o% 50, 6O 1 ,2004178, 8 9 2

Ford Motor Credit Co., LLC sr unsec. n2,t760,40 @20, 79s3,9 , 2404116

Ford Motor Credit Co. , LLC s unsec. u n7s4u,. 0 OnCo t8e4s5 ,54 635/ 4 s 20

Limited Brands, I nc company guaranty sr84Q,nG0k0c .96n30,t9%0s0 6 5/ 8s

Limited Brands, Inc. sr notes 5 5/8s, 2802®, 000 885,600

Macy' s Retail Hol ings, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. note

1/8s, 2042 240,000 271,141

Macy' s Retail Hol di ngs, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. note

7/8s, 2022 360,000 395,280

Marriott I nternational, Il nc. sr . unsec. 7uwd0s,u®mO0 Oh o7t9e8s, 731s7, 2019

News America Hol dings, Il nc. company uaranty sr. unsec. debs.

2024 870,0001, 113,478

News America Holdings, I nc. debs.7 3/4s,720,46001, 125, 481

NVR, Il nc. Sr unsec unsub. notes 3.95s,74£20,2200 764, 058

Owens Corning company guaranty sr. unsecb7 2oh0k0s 895s6,, 820001 9

QvVC, Il nc. 144A sr notes 7 1/ 8s, 2017 535,000 565, 042

Ti me Warner Entertainment Co. , LP debs .18, 4350,s0 022002636, 650

Ti me Warner, Il nc. company guaranty sr 1u,n85%0c,. 0 bPo, n7d1s0 ,79.573s, 203

Ti me Warner, Il nc. company guaranty sr. udn6Gsse,c0 0 On o4t 2e3s, 649.27 s 202

Ti me Warner , |l nc. debs. 9. 15s, 2023 675,000 964, 922

Toyota Motor Credit Corp. sr. unsec. unxs,udm75,nb&Pes2438.,34s4,6 2022

Walt Disney Co (The) sr. unsec. notes 12, BOH,s001M2,032810, 655

Wal t Di sney Co (The) ST . unsec. unsub. 52x,e0s0 ™ 630/88,s6,982041
36,420, 392

(2.6 %)

Al tri Group, I nc. company guaranty sr . 3un8,e0d00 nd4o3t%,s2 795. 7 s, 20

Al tri Group, I nc. company guaranty sr . 5u86s,e0c00 n8o2t6e,s9 493 1/ 4 s,

Al tri Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

2022 2,595,00BD,598, 069

Anheuser-Busch I nBev Worl dwi de, Il nc. company guaranty sr. uns

unsub. notes 8. 2s, 2039 1,313, 00, 207, 936

Bacardi, Ltd 144A unsec. notes 4 1/ 2s,1,240201, O 0Bl réndu2d, a8)4 8

Campbell Soup Co debs. 8 7/8s, 2021 715,0001, 045, 495

Corrections Corporation of Amer. a company guaranty sr. notes

3/4s, 2017 466, 000 496,873

CVS Caremark Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. nolt,e10,.00D0, 628081,9 11

CVS Pass-Through Trust 144A company gua2x,aln%4y, 32, 9n209,e6s587 . 507 s

Darden Restaurants, Il nc. sr. unsec. uns2,b27 On,ol 0eBs, 869.38,s1,9 02037

Del hai ze Group company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5.7s, 2040

(Bel gi um) 2,250, 008,120,150

Del hai ze Group company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 4 1/8s, 2019

(Bel gi um) 865,000 880, 094

Diageo I nvestment Corp. company guarant y6 7w5,.0 00n s9%7c2., 9d8edb s . 8 s,

Diageo I nvestment Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. no

1/ 4s, 2042 1,700, 000,875,511
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Gener al Mi | I s, Il nc. Sr. unsec. notes 5. 6150, ®R0OW0L 9233, 540

Kraft Foods Group, Il nc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsu

notes 6 1/2s, 2040 3,905,00H, 445, 233

Kraft Foods Group, Il nc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. unsu

notes 5s, 2042 420,000 490,506

Kroger Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. un0s5u,b0 0 On o7t 3e5s, 069.14 s , 201

Kroger Co. sSTr. notes 6. 15s, 2020 200, 000 246, 515

Mc Donal d's Cor p. sr. unsec. Ser . MTN, 6. 3s68 ®,0B8B0 983, 802

Mc Donal d's Corp. sr. unsec. bonds 6.3s, RIB,7000 763, 499

Mc Donal d's Cor p. sr . unsec otes 5.7s, T7M053,90001, 044, 293

Mol son Coors Brewing Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. n

5s, 2042 610,000 701, 834

SABMi |l Il er Hol dings, I nc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. not

4.95s, 2042 630,000 754,083

Tyson Foods, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.

2016 1,540, 00D, 775,050

WPP Finance UK company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 8s, 2014 (Un

Ki ngdom) 1,370,000,529, 698
37,280,681

(2. 0%)

Access Midstream Partners, LP/ACMP Finance Corp. company guar

STr. unsec. notes 5 7/8s, 2021 602,000 626, 080

Anadarko Finance Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7 1/ 2s, 2031 2,880,008,932,724

BG Energy Capital PLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

2021 (United Kingdom) 200, 000 224, 489

BP Capital Mar kets PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. not

4. 742s, 2021 (United Kingdom) 1,860, 00D, 200, 750

BP Capital Mar kets PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. not

1/2s, 2020 (United Kingdom) 620, 000 728, 055

Cenovus Energy, Il nc. sSr. unsec. unsub. no& 5,s0 040 14,50s6,8 ,2403402 ( Can

DCP Midstream, LLC 144A sr. unsec. not es7 /A5 ,30, 825072,04 5 6

EOG Resources, I nc STro. unsec. notes 5 53480s,,0®00 14920, 597

Kerr - McGee Corp. company guaranty sr unsec. unsub. notes 7 7

2031 885,0001, 216, 864

Mar at hon Petroleum Corp. sr. unsec. uUnsu®»25,Nnb00s6769,12/325s, 2041

Motiva Enterprises, LLC 144A sr. unsec. 8&Ps,elk0 Bl , 8255s2,, 529024 0

Nobl e Holding International, Ltd. company guaranty sr. unsec.

6. 05s, 2041 1,095, 00D, 365,805

Petrohawk Energy Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 7 1/

2018 2,910, 008,317, 287

Pride International, Il nc. sSro. unsec. n o2 ,els6 07, 070 88,s2,7 02,014607

Ras Laffan Liquefied Natur al Gas Co. , Ltd. 144A company guar a

notes 5 1/2s, 2014 (Qatar) 1,015,000, 099, 753

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

2020 240,000 286, 994

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub

6.2s, 2018 135,000 164, 381

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC sr. notes 8s65®00M®0 851, 051
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(26. 8%)
Statoil ASA company guaranty sr. unsec.1l,n00,6s0 ®B,14s1,9, 2706420 (
Weat herford Bermuda company guaranty sr .58i4dn,sC0c0 7n703t,e6s9 19 5/
Weat herford I nternational, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec
notes 6.8s, 2037 205,000 238,115
Weat herford I nternational, Il nc company guaranty sr. unsec.
notes 6.35s, 2017 240,000 280, 398
Weat herford I nternational, Ltd company 4g7ula,r0® y5 269 ,15/328s , 2
27,804,214
(9. 9%)
ABN Amro Bank NV 144A sr. unsec. notes 44, 416 04,s0 042 081374 ,(5Ne6t h e
Afl ac, Il nc. s unsec. notes 6. 9s, 20391, 395, 000, 880, 0809
Afl ac, Il nc. Sr unsec. notes 6.45s, 2040990, 0001, 269, 200
American Express Bank FSB st unsec. FRN1,SCe35 ,BOKONDT,, 0 104.,551042s
American Express Co. sr . unsec. notes 81,1450, 0®@00,199% 1, 699
American International Group, |Inc jr. 1s,udl 4 ,blOndd, s7 6F3R BO 685. 1 7
American I nternational Group, I nc. Sr . 2u,ndsdeCc,. 0SCeP,.8MbT5N ,4 759. 8 5
Aon PLC jr. unsec. sub. notes 8.205s, 230,22/155, 004, 081, 327
Associates Corp. of North America sr . ulns764, nOo,els3 06, .99955s ,
Assurant, Il nc. sr. unsec. notes 6 3/4s,1,2408%, 00D, 731, 049
AXA SA 144A jr unsec. sub. notes FRN 61,466330s,, 0 ®00,4593 6(,F2r7a5n c e
Banco do Brasi.l SA 144A unsec. sub. notiles9 65,70 08Bs,,1 4290,2127 3( Br
Bank of America Corp. sr. unsec unsub n840,s0 60 17,/082s7,, 229054 2
Bank of America Corp. sub. notes 3/ 4s1, £605,5000, 654, 057
Bank of America NA sub. notes Ser.BKNT, 9%053,s00 ®10,10716, 021
Barclays Bank PLC 144A sub. notes 10. 172,588 12,0018, (8Wknli,t0e4dl Ki
Barcl ays Ban PLC 144A unsec sub notes 6.05s, 2017 (Uni't
Ki ngdom) 2,815,008, 074, 492
Bear Stearns Cos., I nc. (The sr. not esl,60240,,0 R00,12722, 489
Bear Stearns Cos. , Inc. (The) sr. unsecl, & 5,e0087, 019/64,s7,2 020 1
Capital One Bank USA NA sub. notes 8. 8sl, 20,9000, 406, 545
Citigroup, Il nc. sr unsec. notes 6 1/8s, 8P0D8®O 95,592
Citigroup, Il nc. sr unsec. sub FRN 0. 617,8%6 1 ,2000106, 842, 538
Citigroup, Il nc. unsec sub. notes 6 5/ 8s50%,0B®0 583, 655
Citigroup, Inc. unsec sub. notes 6 1/ 81s,,6 125,3060D, 788, 267
CNA Financi al Corp. sr. unsec unsub. no&8&0, 60 B /648s3,, 323022 1
Commonweal th Bank of Australia 144A sr. unsec. notes b5s, 2
(Australia) 510,000 591, 467
Commonweal th Bank of Australia 144A sr. unsec. notes 3 3/ 4
(Australia) 100,000 105, 490
DDR _Corp. sr. unsec ub. notes 7 7/8s91Q%,00p®01,183,500
Duke Realty LP sr. unsec. notes 6 1/2s, 390,000 461,671
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Duke Realty LP sr. unsec. notes 6 1/4s,  $81800 65,840
Erac USA Finance, Co. 144A sr. notes 4 2,/23%5, 20,1458, 303
FI A Card Services, NA sub. notes Ser . BKINT6 95/, 0.0 18,s6,9 82, 001424
GATX Financi al Corp. notes 5.8s, 2016 455,000 507, 966
Gener al Electric Capital Corp. sr. unsex,. 405%,/ 86D, 82506187 4 8
Gener al Electric Capital Corp. ST unsec8 9F5RN 0SC r8.7MT,N2,050. 6 38s,
Genworth Financi al, I nc sr. unsec. unsdub23 ol CeBs, 379 75, /288s8, 2021
Gol dman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sr. not e%40, 010 ®@1s,,1 7290,1999 1
Gol dman Sachs Group, Il nc. (The) s uns ex9 5%,. 01060 ,6 9260, 1786 8
Gol dman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sub not9%50 ,60 030 14,s0,4 32, 013773
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsu
notes 6 5/8s, 2040 3,655,008, 709,705
HBOS PLC 144A sr. unsec. sub. notes 6 31,41s7,5,2000108, 2(4Wbn,i5t0e0d Ki ng
HBOS PLC 144A unsec. ub. bonds 6s, 2032, 52Un,i &0Rd 2Klln, ggd504m)
Health Care REIT, Inc. sr. unsec. notes %25, 08060 829031,0421
Hi ghwood Realty LP sr. unsec. bonds 5.858%35,200007 927, 419
HSBC Hol dings PLC sub. notes 6 1/ 2s, 203,79 45,n0 &4 d8 4K3i, n6gld20 m)
Il cahn Enterprises LP/Ilcahn Enterprises Finance Corp. company
guaranty sr. unsec. notes 7 3/ 4s, 2016 670, 000 700, 150
I NG Bank NV 144A unsec. notes 3 3/ 4s, 2071175 ,(0NCex h7e5r7l, aln0d7s )
I nternational Lease Finance Corp. sr. un8&%ik, 000 t9%6sl 60016/ 4s, 20
I nternational Lease Finance Corp. sSsr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 7
2015 1,149,000, 194,960
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA sub. notes Ser . BKANOT4, 0600 427071,77 95
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA sub. notes Ser . BIKN3IL1,6000D,2503177, 428
Liberty Mutual Group, Il nc. 144A otes 61,17 125,,0 ®@00,39525, 890
LIloyds TSB Bank PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. sub. notes Se
6 1/ 2s, 2020 (United Kingdom) 4,335,008, 722,549
Loews Corp. notes 5 1/ 4s, 2016 385,000 431, 269
Macquarie Bank Ltd. 144A unsec. sSu n o ,e88 06, 6O 8B,s1,7 22,032210 ( Aus't
Massachusetts Mutual Life I nsuranc Co .2 ,134M5A, nOoBt,e5s4 78, 770/48 s, 20
Merril |l Lynch & Co. , Il nc. jro. s u b ondls, 5/3 53,/ 0B, 022023,86 9 7
Met Li fe GI obal Funding | 144A sr. unsub.7 Inbo,t0e00 57 614/,80s8,2 2014
Metrpolitan Life Insurance Co. 144A uns3,bc000,ut0®,no6t7e sl 578 8s, 2
Mor gan Stanley sr. unsec. notes Ser. MTN,9 750,30 401,, 028001,60 0 7
MPT Operating Partnership LP/ MPT Finance Corp. company guaran
unsec notes 6 7/8s, 2021 1,090,000,177,200
Nati onwi de Financial Services, Inc. not e50 0, 0600 s52 72 041456
Nati onwide Health Properties, Inc. unsecb6, 0000 666 91,/448s7, 2013
Nati onwi de Mutual Il nsurance Co. 144A not 85, 908/ 81s2,2 , 2402399
Nordea Bank AB 144A sub. notes 4 7/ 8s, 5,012610 ,(0S0nBe, d4e5n9), 7 9 6
OneAmerica Financi al Partner s, Il nc. 14 41A, bloOn,d0s0O 07,s0,5 02, 023935
Pacific LifeCorp 144A s notes 6s, 20210, 575, 000D, 752,271
Primerica, I nc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3#4573,/04060 32903228 42
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Prudential Covered Trust 2012-1 144A company guaranty mtge. n
2.997s, 2015 313,500 325,509
Prudenti al Financial, I nc. STr notes 7 33480s,,0(R00 14936, 681
Prudenti al Financi al, I nc. Sr notes 6. 2300,200006 330, 472
Prudenti al Financi al, Il nc. sr unsec. nlo,t 1635 ,60 BT, 84s8, 5 , 2002470
Prudenti al Hol dings, LLC sr. notes FRN Sle60,A0GOM), 115.32,66s3,0 2017
Rabobank Nederland 144A jr. wunsec. sub. notes FRN 11s, perpet
maturity (Netherlands) 1,255,000, 678, 563
Rayonier, Il nc. company guaranty sr unsec. unsub. notes 3 3/ 4
2022 570,000 587,519
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC st sub. notes FRN 9 1/2s, 2
(United Kingdom) 2,640, 008,025,176
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC st unsec. unsub. notes 6. 4s
(United Kingdom) 360,000 418,608
Santander I ssuances S.A. Unipersonal 144A bank guaranty wunsec
notes 5.911s, 2016 (Spain) 2,600,00,652,000
SL Green Realty Corp./SL Green Operating Partnership/ Reckson
Operating Partnership sr. unsec. notes 15,s18%,0000, 280, 441
Tanger Properties, LP sr. unsec. notes 66%45,80500 270629, 251
TD Ameritrade Holding Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub
5.6s, 2019 985, 0001, 154, 201
Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 144A note
6. 85s, 2039 1,555,00D, 153,471
Vornado Realty LP sr. unsec. unsub. notlesl &0,10 Wb, 2 540, 1056 5
Wachovia Bank NA sub. notes Ser.BKNT, 61s,88&0,1000D, 244, 444
WEA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty 1s,r07 On,ox0els, 371 61,/483s7, 2018
WEA Finance, LLC/ WT Finance Aust.Pty. Ltd. 144A company guar
STr. unsec. notes 6 3/4s, 2019 810, 0001, 002,591
Wel |l s Fargo Bank NA unsec. sub. notes FIRNL &0 ,604070s,,1 5200, 1365 0
Willis Group Holdings Ltd. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
5 3/4s, 2021 750,000 851,812
Willis Group North America, 1Ilnc company5I1gu,alrCan t5y8 56,.629s4, 2017
142,742,098
(0. 6 %)
Aetna, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 31,46s60 ,200B27, 254, 260
Cl GNA Cor p. Sro. unsec. unsub. t 5 3/63860, (0¥ 2778, 403
Fresenius Medical Care US Finance |1, Il nc. 144A company guar a
unsec. notes 5 5/ 8s, 2019 356, 000 374,690
Fresenius Medical Care US Finance, I nc 144A company guaranty
notes 5 3/4s, 2021 839,000 887,243
Quest Diagnostics, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6.9
2037 1,045, 00D, 389,022
Quest Diagnostics, Il nc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 4 3
2020 244,000 272,660
UnitedHealth Group, Il nc. sr . unsec. uns ud75 ,n00 0els, 049 05, /487s4, 2041
Wat son Pharmaceutical s, Il nc. sro. u ec. 3ndox,e;60 4 357/18,s8,7 72 0 4 2
Wat son Pharmaceutical s, Il nc. ST u ec. 2n75,e60 3 218/14,s1,8 72 0 2 2
Wat son Pharmaceutical s, Il nc. sr. unsec. 66t €901 8686262017
Wel | Point, Il nc. notes 7s, 20109 225,000 287,450
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(26. 8%)
(0. 2%)

Brocade Communications Systems, I nc company guaranty sr. not

7/8s, 2020 580,000 627,850

Brocade Communications Systems, I nc company guaranty sr. not

5/ 8s, 2018 230,000 238,625

Del I , Il nc. sr. unsec notes 5 7/ 8s, 2019145, 000 171,869

Lexmark I nternational Il nc, sr unsec. n o& 55, 060 M s8,7 32,051930

Xerox Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4 1/ 2s, 2012,1115, 00D, 179, 214
3,091,148

(0. 5%)

Burlington Northern Sant Fe Corp. sr un6s5e,c0 0 On odtdeds, 250 93/ 4s, 2

Burlington Northern Sant Fe, LLC sr. uln,s5e2 0., OnOolx, e8s6 35, . 448s7, 2041

Continental Airlines, I n ass-through certificates Ser.97-4

6.9s, 2018 865,863 941,626

Continental Airlines, I nc pass-through certificates Ser.98-1

6.648s, 2017 413,085 443,034

CSX Corp. sSro. unsec unsub. notes 4 3/ 4s33®,004R0 368,575

Norfolk Southern Corp. sr. unsec not esl,61s15,2010100, 410, 182

Ryder System, I n sr . unsec. unsub. not4els0 ,20 010 24s1,7 , 2308198

Sout hwest Airlines Co. pass-through certificates Ser.07-1, 6 .

2022 204,282 237,989

Union Pacific Corp. 144A ass-through c¢ce3a0,f000atd4els6 ,53.52514s, 20

United AirLines, I nc ass-through certificates Ser.07-A, 6. 6

2022 459,400 489, 261
7,032,197

(3. 1%)

AEP Texas North Co. ST . notes Ser. B, 5 15 125,,0 @00 15323, 281

Appal achian Power Co. st notes Ser. L, 5580,0®037502, 685

Ari zona Public Services Co. sr unsec nd% 0e,s0 M0 14/229s,,5 0210 4 2

At mos Energy Corp. sSTr. unsub. notes 6. 357%65,2000000 931, 025

Beaver Valley Funding Corp. Sr bonds 9s3372,0000/0 345, 182

Boardwal k Pipelines LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5 7/

2016 980, 0001, 105, 993

Bruce Mansfield Unit pass-through certilf,i8&3a,els2 16, .98555s,,4 6280 3 4

CMS Energy Corp. sr. wunsec. notes 8 3/ 4%X,,2®&0,1®08, 006, 800

Commonweal th Edi son Co. l1st mtge. sec. bdod0d,s0O BO 76/285s,,0 2210 3 3

Consolidated Edi son Co. of New York sr unsec. unsub. notes 4

2042 710,000 786, 248

Domi ni on Resources, Il nc. sr unsec uns2,b4 6 nol 0eBs, 98e9r,.60877- A, 65

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC sr. mt ge. not7x5,40 010 48sl, 0 , 2000471

EDP Finance BV 144A sr. unsec. unsub. nlot%4s0,60s00D,2908118 7(1Ndet her |

El Paso Natwural Gas Co. st unsec. unsub830,on00sl ,8 133/,82s7,7 2032

El Paso Pipeline Partners Operating Co., LP company guaranty

unsec. notes 6 1/ 2s, 2020 750, 000 905, 400

Electricite de France SA (EDF) 144A not e%7 06, 0W®B0®L,, 325073,95 O(7Fr anc e

Enel Finance I nternational SA 144A company guaranty sr. wunsec

5 1/8s, 2019 (Netherlands) 695,000 735,567
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(26. 8 %)
Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec 21,ns6u%,. 0 nPo, t8e5s9 ,64 818/ 2 s 2
Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. wunsec u7n8&0u,b0 0 n 08t9%e2s, 059.02s, 202
Enterprise Products Operating, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec
unsub. notes 4. 85s, 2042 1,220,000, 313, 952
Il berdrola International BY company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
6 3/4s, 2036 (Spain) 510,000 552,273
I TC Hol dings Corp. 144A notes 5 7/ 8s, 208%0, 0001, 016, 500
| TC Hol dings Corp. 144A sr. unsec. not es33%0,00600 3280818654
Kansas Gas and Electric Co. bonds 5.647s5612,03612 610, 813

Kinder Morgan

Energy Part

ners LP

(7]
—

unils,e4c2 5 ,nOoQ Oe,s8 260.,8252s7, 2020

Mi dAmeri can Energy Holdings Co. bonds 61,1000s,,0®0M,33614, 759

Mi dAmerican Energy Holdings Co. sr. unse4lO,bOlOd s5666,11/423s, 2037
Mi d American Funding, LLC sr. sec. bonds 366 0,20/0s0 428032,91 0 3
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. STr unsec. n o2 %5, 060 B 54s0, 7 , 2702348
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. sr unsub. 5. 87585 ,20080/11, 025, 766
Pacifi Corp Sinking Fund 1st mtge. 6 1/ 4s,4&0,30/000 647, 709

Pot omac Edi son Co. 144A 1st mtge. 5. 8s, 2808l%, 000 997, 053

PPL WEM Hol dings PLC 144A sr. unsec.

Ki ngdom)

notes 5 3/8s, 2021 (Unit
3,220,008, 625, 826

Sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6

44,752,112
385,479, 454

Teco Finance, I nc. company guaranty
2017 340,000 412,288
Texas-New Mexico Power Co. 144A 1st mtg2,.8 40,n0dkd,9 415/,29s4,4 2019
We s t Penn Power Co. 144A 1st mt ge. 5. 95s,8 20,1000 990, 763
Westar Energy, I nc. sr. mtge. notes 4 1/%83*0, ROMU 2576, 6738

( 336, 285, 144 )

(0. 3%) *
CA State G. O.Bonds (Build America Bonds)7707 0.0 @1s,,0 348/,15/ 7364
I'L State G. O.Bonds

4.421s, 1/1/1
4.071s, 1/1/1

5
4

410,000 435,211
1,220,000, 263, 786

North TX, Thruway

Aut h. Re

V. Bonds (Build America Bonds), 6.71

4,658,060

1/ 1/ 49 675,000 924,156
OH State U. Rev. Bonds (Build America Bo84d5,)00 04 .99916s,,3 361/ 1/ 40
( 3,925,279 )
(0.3 %)
Barclay's Bank PLC

1

(1.75) 1/ 3

LIl BOR-BBA/202R12212

/

1.756, 171,00®96, 517

1.75/ 3 LI BOR-BBA/ 20222022 12

/

1.75%,171,00®61, 710

1.5/3 LI

BOR-BBA/ 2022 212 12

/

1.579,712,000m63, 410
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Credit Suisse International
(2.25)1/3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2029813 3 /2.28B6,537,00622,510
(2)/ 3 LIl BOR- BBA/ 2022 29812 12 /2 139,987,00482, 955
Deut sche Bank AG
(2.25)1/3 LIl BOR-BBA/ 20298183 3 /2.28B6,537,00622,510
Gol dman Sachs International
(2.25)1/3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2029818 3 /2.286,537,00®622,510
2012 12
2.325/ 3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2022/ 22325 3,487,000186, 799
2012 12
(2.325)1/ 3 LI BOR-BBA/2022.3825 3,487,000 3,348
2012 12
2.8825/ 3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2042218825 8, 593,000568, 599
2012 12
2.8825 /3 LIl BOR-BBA/ 20228825 8,593,00056, 714
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
(2)/ 3 Ll BOR-BBA/ 2022 2912 12 /2 136,598, 00071, 263
(2)1/3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2022 212 12 /2 85,910,00m®B46, 217
( 7,837,276) 4,405,062
(0.2%)
4. 625% 2040 2 15 1,011, 000,392,824
U.S. Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.125%, February
2040 454,969 681,516
0.750% 2013 9 15 20,000 20,115
0.250% 2014 6 30 574,000 574,281
2 5/ 8s 2020 11 15 416, 000 456, 912
( 3,062,304 ) 3,125,648
(0. 1%)
Korea Devel opment Bank sr. unsec. unsub.8 n0o,t000 48s6,4 , 2803156
( 797,176 ) 864, 835
(—%)
Caesars Entertainment Operating Co., I nc. bank term | oan FRN
5.461s, 2018 200, 422 179,768
SunGard Data Systems, I nc. bank term | oan6 ,FARMNO 1. 966,44s7,3 201 4
SunGard Data Systems, I nc. bank term | oaln3 4RON5 S elr3.4B,2237. 906 s,
( 321, 245 ) 320, 468
(18 2%) /
0.16% 141,049,788, 049, 783
SSgA Prime Money Market Fund 0.12% 1,002,000,002,000
Straight-A-Funding, LLC commercial paper with an effective yi
0.178%, January 15, 2013 10,000, 000 996, 165
Straight-A-Funding, LLC commerci al paper with an effective yi
0.178%, January 7, 2013 15,000, 008,995,175
Straight-A-Funding, LLC commerci al paper with an effective yi
0.178%, December 18, 2012 17,000,006, 996, 005
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(18. 2%) /
0.151% 0.167% 2013 7 6245 666, 068, 588, 465
0.104% 2012 12 13 12,500, 00D, 498, 483
( 261,124,041 ) 261,126,076
1,828,761,055 ) 1,941,939,569
BKNT
FRB
FRN

G. O. Bonds

I O

F B

MT N

PO

TBA

2011 11 2012 10 31

ASC820 ASC820

1,436,436,630

1933

ASC820

760, 619, 392
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144A 1933 144

TBA

2012 10 31

30 712 106, 3102051020 12 (524,228)
5 1,590197, 5572051020 12 158, 463
10 750 99,7732038 12 127,481

(238, 284)

2012 10 31 1,529, 066 )

Deut sche Bank AG

(1.75)/3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2023 013 3 /1.38,716,0683, 982

1.75/3 LI BOR-BBA/ 2023 3 2013 3 /1.389,716,0838, 126
1,372,108

2012 10 31 186, 552,578 )

Feder al Nati onal Mortgage Associ at2i, dm,0, DX/, 01 Nov2mb81L913783042

Feder al National Mortgage Associ dt3i3g9 0,0 08 X/,010MN/o ¥123ndb, e6rl 81,,8 2250 4 2

Government National Mortgage Assodi &t0i091010/03&/, 1 ANlo, vOebnbb,e0r7 81, 204
186,503, 278

2012 10 31

Barclay's Bank, PLC

$81,681,000 $70,27B2/190145% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (18, 754)
10,980,000 46, 4682/19019%90% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA 22,642
870, 000 (69,33D2/192420% 3 month USD-

LI BOR- BBA (30, 459)
2,931,000 172,8312/1984month USD-
LI BOR-BB2A. 40% 41,845
59,083,000 446, 7362/ 19B2onth USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 75% 368, 745
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Barclay's Bank, PLC

$283,814,0003,098, &a28)194225% 3 month USD-
LI BOR-BBA (2,724,202)
63,770,000 — 12/198B82tmonth USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 805% 244,877
38,528,000 — 12/ 1982month USD-
LI BOR- BBA. 83 % 238,103
21,257,000 — 12/198B82tmonth USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 80% 71,636
20,758,000 (4,30a)2/1981month USD-
LI BOR- BB®&. 90% 40, 745
Citibank, N. A.
2,182,000 — 10/ 7/321Imont h USD-
LI BOR-BB®A. 0625 % 69, 148
11,100,000 (12, 7872/ 1901%0% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (36,874)
21,373,000 (5,078)2/19B1month USD-
LI BOR- BB®&. 45% 18,218
59,615,000 (580,3702) 194225% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (501,681)
Credit Suisse International
132,164,000 (168, 4712) 1981/month USD-
LI BOR- BB®&. 45% (24, 415)
35,651,000 (29,0462 / 1981month USD-
LI BOR-BB®. 90% 48,317
35,313,000 2,264, 702/ 1984month USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 40% 686,579
349,988,000 341,51B2/190145% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (39,970)
60,681,000 37,4842/ 1901%90% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (94,189)
30,593,000(2,009, 128)192420% 3 month USD-

LI BOR-BBA (642,535)

126,977,0001, 858, 1B/ 19B82konth USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 75% 1,690, 585

312,020,000 2, 835,828)194225% 3 month USD-
LI BOR-BBA (2,423,649)

Deut sche Bank AG

1,104,000 — 10/ 7/321month USD-
LI BOR- BBA. 0475% 34,224
1,143,000 355 12/19019%0% 3 month USD-
LIl BOR- BBA (2,126)
52,713,000 (495,932)Y 19422Z5% 3 month USD-

LI BOR- BBA (426, 351)

66,846, 000 886, 2162/ 1982mhonth USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 75% 797,979
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Gol dman Sachs I nternational
$14,836,000 (10,221232/19B1month USD-
LI BOR-BB®&. 45% 5,951
29,746, 000 (56, 86B2/1901%0% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (121,417)
184,554, 000(2,660, 822)191225% 3 month USD-

LI BOR-BBA (2,417, 200)

124,107,0001, 346, 8BB/ 1982month USD-

LI BOR-BBA. 75% 1,183,015
25,663,000 1,823,903/ 1984month USD-
LI BOR-BB2a. 40% 677,024
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
2,505,000 4,56912/1981month USD-
LI BOR-BB®&. 90% 10, 005
68,598,000 (215, 46&) 1940225% 3 month USD-

LI BOR- BBA (124,920)

85,994,000 1,213, 0B2/1982month USD-

LI BOR-BBA. 75% 1,099,579
636, 000 (64,31B3/192420% 3 month USD-
LI BOR- BBA (35, 893)
126,742,000 — 12/ 19B8B2month USD-
LI BOR-BBA. 854 % 1,068, 435
The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
7,305,000 (91,79B3/190225% 3 month USD-

LI BOR- BBA (82, 158)

(1,329, 141)

2012 10 31

Bank of America N.A.
$2,496, 945 $— 1/ 12/4.100% (1 nsoymtthhetic TRS $hdex28
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s

Barclay's Bank, PLC
12,068, 257 — 1/ 12/(3%. 50%) 1 Swyonntthhet i c TRS (&3 ex95)
USD-LIBOR5.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s

4,680, 372 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 noSoymtthheti c TRS 132d &80
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
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MBX (6GHek46)

USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/44.050% (1 nsoynntthheti c MBX 11r2d 6> 0
USD-LIBOR)4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/(368. 50%) 1 Snyonntthhet i ¢ MBX (11r8®e ¥ 49)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/54.000% (1 nsoymntthheti ¢ MBX 12r8d 680 8
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/54100% (1 nsoynmntthheti c MBX 12rbd 6 9
USD-LIBOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
006, 449 2/44100% (1 nSoynmntthheti ¢ TRS 12id 60 4
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/44.100% (1 nsoynntthheti c TRS I56d &4 1
USD-LI BOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s

2 /(440. 0 0 %)

1 Snyonntthhet i ¢

TRS (31iHe428)

USD-LIBOR 4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/44100% (1 nSoymntthheti c TRS 26@.e&83
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2/44.1000% (1 nSoymntthhet i ¢ TRS I1d el 4
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s

2 /(368. 50 %)
USD-

1 Snyonntthhet i ¢

MB X (I13r6Ge X 8 8)

2/54.10 0 %
USD-

2/44.00 0 %
USD-

2/44.10 0 %
USD-

2/44.10 0 %

LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
(1 nSoymtthheti ¢ MBX 16/8d &1
LI BOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
(1 nBSoymtthhetic MBX |I3de&6
LI BOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
(1 nSoymntthhetic TRS 13wWde&x0
LI BOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
(1 nSoymtthheti c TRS 11iwd e 3
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
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Barclay's Bank, PLC
$2,723,752 $— 1/12/54100% (1 nSoymtthheti ¢ MBX |IHd®248
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
12,984,548 — 1/ 12/44150% (1 nsoynntthheti c TRS 1918d &xX 1
USD-LIBOR)4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
5,663,548 (8, 8419/)12/63.900% (1 nsoymtthheti c TRS 12r5d &8 8
USD-LIBOR)6. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
51,196, 089 — 1/ 12/(368. 50%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ MBX (I13rid®2e % 7 0)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
41, 454, 149 — 1/ 12/54100% (1 nsoynntthheti c MBX 18rd el3 6
USD-LIBOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
14,491,811 — 1/ 12/44.00% (1 nSoymtthheti ¢ MBX 12r6d & 1
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
1,694, 264 — 1/ 12/4.00% (1 nsoymtthheti c TRS I&Gd&x2
USD-LI BOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
979, 986 — 1/ 12/6380% (1 nsoymntthheti c TRS 12 d&&?2
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
5,375,197 — 1/ 12/(368 50%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ MBX ( 22d,e&28)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
1,301,310 — 1/ 12/54.100% (1 nsoymtthheti c MBX |IH,deX6
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Ginnie Mae |1 pool s
22,470,957 — 1/ 12/54100% (1 nsoymntthheti c MBX 14rbde&x 0
USD-LIBOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
21,608, 436 — 1/ 12/(368. 50%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ MBX (11r8Bdle @ 6 9)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
8,638,534 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti ¢ TRS 15Md &9
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
3,060, 997 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nsoynntthheti c TRS 12rid ex 2
USD-LI BOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,056,675 — 1/ 12/54.00% (1 nSoymtthheti c MBX |3Hd&%0
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
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Barclay's Bank, PLC
$9,605, 2214 $— 1/12/44050% (1 nSoymtthheti ¢ MBX I1mld @©x 9
USD-LIBOR)4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
35,917,441 — 1/ 12/54100% (1 nsoynntthheti c MBX 17r8d é1)6 8
USD-LIBOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
6,001,107 — 1/ 12/54100% (1 nSoymtthheti c MBX I1r2d ex 3
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
1,137,648 — 1/ 12/54.00% (1 nsoymtthheti ¢ MBX |12 dk4kl
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
3,689,420 — 1/ 12/5400% (1 nsoymtthheti c MBX 16,d®43
USD-LIBOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,674,650 — 1/ 12/54.00% (1 nsoymtthheti c MBX |IHdex3
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
Citibank, N.A.
13,259,907 — 1/ 12/54100% (1 nsoymtthheti ¢ MBX 12iWd 6> 8
USD-LIBOR)5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
17,833, 768 — 1/ 12/54100% (1 nsoynntthheti c MBX 13r6d 8xX 5
USD-LIBOR)5. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
Credit Suisse International
32,131, 490 — 1/ 12/44150% (1 nsoynntthheti c MBX 13rlid &8 7
USD-LIBOR)4.50% 30 year
Ginnie Mae |1 pool s
635, 433 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS |14dek0
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
9,573,419 — 1/ 12/(3%9. 00%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ TRS ( &,e&03)
USD-LIBOR5.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,496, 245 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nsoymntthheti c TRS 11wWde&xX 3
USD-LI BOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
Gol dman Sachs International
6,205,272 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nsoynntthheti c TRS 1418d €@ 3
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
3,552,525 — 1/ 12/6380% (1 nsoymtthheti ¢ TRS 110d et 8
USD-LIBOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
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2012 10 31
Gol dman Sachs International
$12,450, 5914 $— 1/12/6380% (1 nsoymtthheti ¢ TRS 13r6d &xX 6
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
9,604,674 — 1/ 12/63850% (1 nsoynntthheti c TRS 12r8d &€ 6
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
3,892,379 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS 12iWd é©x 2
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
12,064,084 — 1/ 12/6380% (1 nsoymtthheti ¢ TRS 13rbd elx 9
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
641, 732 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nsoymtthhetic TRS |146dex3
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
1,082,616 — 1/ 12/44.100% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS | Hhd®2k3
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,939,229 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS 12r0d 897
USD-LI BOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
4,836, 431 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nsoynntthheti c TRS 13r8d &% 3
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
11,129,180 — 1/ 12/(441. 00%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ TRS (hd,ex33)
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
11,214,695 — 1/ 12/44150% (1 nSoymtthheti ¢ TRS 180d&» 5
USD-LI BOR)4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,183,864 — 1/ 12/(440. 00%) 1 Swyonntthhet i c TRS (& d@&&7)
USD-LI BOR 4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,183,427 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS I1r5d e 2
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
5,487,960 — 1/12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti ¢ TRS 13r8d &85
USD-LIBOR)4.00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
17,821, 323 — 1/ 12/(368. 50%) 1 Snwyonntthhet i ¢ MBX (11r08Be 8 40)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
6,694,979 — 1/ 12/(368 50%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ MBX (49@,e&88)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
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nsoynntthhet i ¢ TRS 168d&X5
BOR)5. 50%

30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12744100 %
USD- LI

nBoymtthheti ¢ TRS 1h3ek67
BOR)4. 00 %

30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/44.150%
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)4. 50%

tic TRS 1h¥de&l6
30 year
Mae pool s

2,272/ 12/44.150%
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)4. 50%

tic TRS I13iwddx 4
30 year
Mae pool s

9031/ 12/44.100 %
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)4. 00 %

tic TRS 11®”d 8% 9
30 year
Mae pool s

(5, 5514/)12/63.90 0 %
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)6. 00 %

tic TRS 118d el 2
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/44100%
USD- LI

nSoynntt hh e
BOR)4. 00 %

tic TRS I5b5d &) 8
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/63.850 %
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)6. 50%

tic TRS |2,dk&9
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/44.100%
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)4. 00 %

tic TRS 176d &xXx 3
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/44100%
USD- LI

nsoynntt hh e
BOR)4. 00 %

tic TRS I1bhd &84
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12744100 %

nsoynntt hh e
USD-LIBOR)4. 00%

tic TRS 13Bd 884
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/(368. 50 %)

USD- LI

1 Snyonntthhe

tic MBX (I1mM®e 1 00)
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/63.850%

nsoynntt hh e
USD-LI BOR)6. 50%

tic TRS |4,d&%0
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12744100 %

nsoynntt hh e
USD-LIBOR)4. 00%

tic TRS I7Trid et 0O
30 year
Mae pool s

— 1/ 12/63.850%

nsoynntthhet i ¢ TRS | 9, d®eX9
USD-LI BOR)6. 50%

30 year
Mae pool s
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2012 10 31
Gol dman Sachs International
$905, 243 $— 1/ 12/(368 50%) 1 Swonntthhet i ¢ MBX I(r5d &xX 9)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,413,710 — 1/ 12/(368. 50%) 1 Snwyonntthhet i ¢ MBX ( h4de&k41l)
USD-LIBORG6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
3,276,910 — 1/12/638 0% (1 nsoymtthhetic TRS |19 dex7
USD-LIBOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
6,553,821 — 1/12/6380% (1 nsoymtthheti ¢ TRS 11Mdex 4
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
4,439, 489 — 1/ 12/63850% (1 nsoymntthheti c TRS 11r8d €5 6
USD-LIBOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
1,690, 756 — 1/ 12/44100% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS I1rld &gx83
USD-LIBOR)4. 00% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
2,047,714 — 1/12/6380% (1 nsoymtthheti c TRS I&Gdex2
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
13,644,857 — 1/ 12/6380% (1 nsoymntthheti c TRS 140dex 8
USD-LI BOR)6.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
7,524,472 4,703/ 12/44150% (1 nSoymtthheti c TRS 158d &89 6
USD-LIBOR)4.50% 30 year
Fannie Mae pool s
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1 2 3
— 385,479, 454 —
— 864,835 —
— 563,314, 349 —
— 4,658,060 —
— 4,405,062 —
— 320, 468 —
— 718,645,617 —
— 3,125,648 —

142,051, 781319, 074, 293 —

142,051, 7183799, 887, 786 —

1 2 3
(238, 284) — —

— (1,372,108) —

TBA — (186,503, 278) —
— 566,567 —

— 813, 651 —

(238, 284)186, 495, 168) —
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Statement of assets and liabilities 10,/31/12

ASSETS
Irvestment in securities, at value (Note 1)

Linaffiliated tssuers (identified cost $1,687,711.272) $1,800,880, 786

Affiliated msuers (identified cost $141,049,783) (Notes 1 and &) 141,049,783
Intarest and other recalvables 9,740,223
Recelvable for shares of the fund sold 2,650,843
Recelvable for investments sold 102,759,901
Recelvable for sales of delayed delivery securities {Mote 1) 275,723,630
Unreafized appreciation on swap contracts (Note 1 10.,807.062
Receivable for vanation margin (Note 1} 1.156.531
Prermium paid on swao contracts (Nate 1) 12423303
Total assets 2,357,291 068
LIABILITIES
Payable to custodian 3523144
Payable for investments purchased 104,733,431
Payable for purchases of delayed defivery securities (Mote 1) 583771108
Payable for shares of the fund repurchased 3,661,098
Payable for cempensation of Manager (Note 2) 490,151
Payable far mmaston servicing fees (Note 2) 180,620
Pavabile for custodian feas (Note 2) 12833
Pavalla for Trustes compensation and expenses (Mata 2} 357,589
Pavabla for adrministrative services (Nota 2) 2,792
Payable for distribution fees (Note 2) 428,308
Written aptions outstanding. at value (premiums $1.529.066) (Notes 1 and T) 1.372.108
Premium received on swap contracts (Mote 1) 10.521.076
Uinrealized depreciation on swap contracis (Nate 1) 11329077
TBA £ale commitmants. at value (proceeds receivable 186,552 578) (Mate 1) 186,503,278
Collateral on cartain derivative contracts, at valus (Note 1) 3.670.736
Other accrusd expences 297,088
Total liabilities 920,854,438
Met assets £1,436,436,630
REPRESENTED BY
Paid-in capital (Linlimeted shanes authonized) (Motes 1 and 4) $1,527,261.454
Undistributed net investment mcome (Mote 1) 6.088.116
Accumulated net realized koss on mwestments (Mote 1) (209,537.413)
Met unreadized appreciation of investments 112,624,473
Total — Representing net assets applicable to capital shares outstanding £1,436,436,630

{Continued on naxt paoe)

54 Income Fund
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Statement of assets and liabilities (Continued)

COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET VALLE AND OFFERING PRICE

Met asset value and redemption price per class A share
($578,866,392 divided by 120,939,883 shares)

Offering price per class A share (100,/96,00 of §7.27)
Met asset value and offering price per class B share (341, 214 580 divided by 5,723, 450 shares)"*

Met asset value and offering price per class C share (3166, 406,628 drided by 23,055,690 shares)™*

Met asset value and redemption price per class M share
($151,112 B2 divided by 21,221,276 shares)

Offering price per class M share { 100,/96.75 of 37.12)

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class R share
($5, 265,307 dinded by 728,513 shares)

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per chass RS share
(10,446 divided by 1 420 sharaghtt

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class R6 share
($10.447 divided by 1,420 sharesy

MNet asset value, affering price and redemption price per class Y share
(%195 550,001 divided by 26,313,035 shares)

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

§7.27
$7.57
$7.20
§7.22

£7.12
$7.36

$7.23
$7.35
$7.36

%7.36

* Onsingle retall sates of hess than $100,000. O sates of $100,000 or more the offering price |s reduced
* Redemption price per share ks equal 1o ret asset value less any applicable contngent deferred sales charge.
fOnsmngle retall sales of less than $50,000. Onsales of $50,000 or mose the offering price is reduced

et asset value may not recalculate dus to rounding of fractional shares.

The accarmpanying noles are an integral part of these knancial stalerments
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Statement of operations Year ended 10/31/12

INVESTMEMT INCOME

Interest (net of foreign tax of $40.457) Gncluding interest income af 3253882 from mvestments

imaffillated issuers) (Mote &) $535.668.406
Total investment income 53,668,406
EXPEMSES

Compenszation of Manager (Mate 2} 5,608,363
Irvestor servicing fees {Mote 2) 2,049,795
Custodian fees (Mote 2) 78.126
Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 2) 122,896
Administrative services (Note 2) 42,157
Distribution fees (Note 2) 2,031.437
Other 575,184
Total expenses 13,507,958
Expense reduction (Mate 2} (2.806)
Met expenses 13,505,152
Net investment income 40,163,254
Mat realized ks anmvestrments (Nates 1and 3) {1.484.872)
Mat realized koss on swap contracts (Mote 13 (38,156,213}
Met realized gain on futures contracts (Mote 13 22123 189
Met realized boss on written options (Mates 1 and 3) (11,129,1594%
Met unreadized appreciation of investments, futures contracts, swap contracts, written options,

and TBA sale commitments during the year 114,096,560
Met gain on investments B5,449,470
Mt increase in net assets resulting from operations $125,612,724

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of thesa financial statements,

56 Income Fund
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Statement of changes in net assets

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS Year ended 103112 Year ended 10/31/11

Operations:

Met imestment incoma £40.163,254 $53,058,709

Met realized gain {Joss) an investments (28.647.090) 13.122.104

Met unrealized appreciation (depreciation] of investments 114.096,560 (4,199,417)
Met increase innet assets resulting from cperations 125,612,724 61,981,396

Destributions to sharehohders (Note 11
From cedEnary incomsa
Mt investmant income

Class A (26.043,813) (42, 245,610)
Class B (954,506) (1,773.181)
ClassC (3.948,093) (7,304,305}
Class M (4,646,629) (10,221,643}
Class R (143,597) (209,934)
Class RS (100) -
Class RG (1007 =
Class (5.026,699) (6,319,275)
Ircrease in capital from settlemant paymeants (Note 9} - 433,895
Decrease from capital share transactions (Note 4) (8.602,096) (72,913,778)
Total increase (decrease) in net assets 76,245,601 (78,576,441)
HNET ASSETS
Beginning of year 1,360,189,93% 1,438.766,380
End of year (including undistributed net investment income
of $6.088,116 and $5.017 584, respectively) $1,436,436,630 $1,360,189,939

The accarmpanying noles are an integral part of these knancial stalerments

Imncome Fund 57
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Financial highlights (Continusd)

* Not annualized.

! For the period July 3, 2002 (commencement of operations) to October 31, 2012

4 Par share net investment income has been determined on the basis of the weighted average numdber of shares
cutstanding curing the penod.

& Tota! return assumes dividend reimvestrent and does nat reflect the effect of sales charges.

« Includes amounts paid through expense offset arrangaments (Note 2},

f Portiolio turnover excludes TEA purchase and sale transactions.

+Refiects a non-recurring resmbursement rélaled to restitution amounts in connection with a distribution plan
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commissaon (the SEC) which amounted to less than 50.01 per share
outstanding on July 21, 201, Also reflects a non-recurring reimbursement related to short-term trading related
lawesults, which amounted to less than $0.01 per share outstanding on May 1L 2011 (Note 9).

I Amount represents less than $0.01 par share.

# Refiects a non-recurning reimbursement pursuant to a settlement between the SEC and Prudential Secuities, Inc.,
which amounted toless than $0.00 per share cutstanding as of March 30, 2010,

b Reflects an mvoluntary contractual expense limitation in éffect during the period. For periods prior to
October-31, 2009, certain fund expenses were waived in connection with the fund’s investment in Putnam Prime
Moy Market Fund. 4s a result of such imitatson andfor wanvers, the expenses of each class reflect a reduction of the

following amounts;
P e of
average net assets
October 31, 2010 0.03%
October 31, 2009 019
October 31, 2008 009

| Excludes the impact of a current period reduction to interest expense related to the resolution of certain termanated
dervatives contracts, which amounted to 0.18% of average net assets for the period ended Octobes 31, 20000

i Includes mterest accrued in connection with certaln terminated desivatives contracts, which amounted to 0,72% of
average net assets for the period ended October 31, 2009,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

60 Income Fund
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MNotes to financlal statements 0/71/12

Within the following Motes to Tirancial statements, references to "State Street” represent State Street Bank and
Trust Company, refefences to “the SEC™ reprosent the Secunties and Exchange Commission and referonces to
“Putnam Management” represent Putnam nvestment Management, LLC. the fund's manager, an indirect wholiy-
owned subsidiary of Pubnam Investmants. LLE Unless otherwise noted, the “reparting penod” repoesants the
period fram November 1 200 threugh Octaber 31, 2012

Putnam Income Fund ithe fund} is a Massachusetts business trust, which is registered under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, a5 amended. a3 a diversificd cpen-end managemeant investment campany. The fund soaks
high current income with what Pulnam Management believes to be prudent nisk. The fund invests manly in bonds
that are securifized debt instruments (such as morfgage-backed imvestments) and other obligations of companies
and governments wotldwide denomenated in LS. doflars, are elther mvestment-grade or belaw investment -grade
(somelimes referred to a5 "junk bands™) and have intermediate- (o long-term maturites (three years of langer).

The fund offers class A, class B, chss C. class M, class R, class RS, class RE and class ¥ shares. The fund began
offering class RS and class RE shares on July 3. 3012, Class A and class M shares are sold with.a maximem frant-end
sales charge of 4,00% and 5.25%, respectively, and generally do not pay a conbingent defereed sales charge. Class B
shares, which comert bo class A shares after approximately smht years do nat pay a front-end sales charge and
are subject to a contingent deferred sales charge if those shares are redesmed within soyears of purchase, Class ©
shares have a one-year 1LO0% contingent deferred sales charge and do not convert Lo class & shares. Class B shares,
whichare not available to all mvestors, are sold at net asset value. The expenses for class A class B. class Celass M
and tlass / shares may differ Based on the distribution fee of each class, which is wentified n Nate 2Class RS,
class B and class ¥ shares, which are sobd &t nel asset value, are genemlly subject to the same expenses asclass A,
class B, class C, class M and class R shares. bat do not bear a distribution fee and in the case of class RS and class RE
shares, bear 3 lower investor senicing fee, which i identified m Note 2 Class RS, class R6 and dass ¥ shares are not
available to all Investors,

by thee riormial course of bBusiness, the fund entersiito cantracts that may iclude agreements b indemnify anothet
parly under given cimumstances, The fund’s maximum éxposure under these arrangements is unknown as this
woald invalve future claims that may be, but have not yet boan, made agaemst the fund. However, the fund's
management beam expects the risk of material loss to be remate,

Maote 1; Significant accounting policies

Tha following 15 2 summary af significant accounting palicees consstently followad by the fund in the preparation
of its financial statements. The preparation of financial Stabements is in conformity with accounting pringiples
genedally accepted in b United States of Amenc and regulnes management to make sstimates and assumplions
that affect the reparted amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the reported amounts of
increases and decreases in et assats from operations. Actusl results cauld differ from those estimates. Subse-
auent avents after the Statement of assets and liabilities date throwgh the date that the financial statements were
Issued have boanevaluatod in the preparaton of the financeal statements.

Irvestment incomea, realized and unrealized gainsand Insses and expeanses of The fund are Borne pro-rata Based on
the relative net assets of each class to the total net assets of the fund, except that each class bears expenses unique
to that clees (inclueding the distributhon fees applcable to such classes). Each class voles as a classonly with respect
o ks awn distribution plan-or other matters on which a classvole i required by law or determined by the Trustees,
[ thse fund wore adated, shames of each class would receive their pro-rata share of the net astets of the fund. in
additian, the Trustees declare separate dividends on each class of shares.

Security valuation Market quatations are not considered 10 be readily availabie for cerfain debl oliioations and
olher Investments; such Investments and valied on the basis of vatuations furnished by an independent pricing
sarvice approved by the Trustees or deaters selected by Putnam Management, Such services or dealers determing
waluations for normal institutional-size trading umits af such secunitees using methods based on market transac-
tiors for comparabile securities and various refationships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between
securitios {which consicer such factors as security prices, yields, maturities and ratings). These sacurities wili pen-
erally be categorized as Level 2 Securities quoted inforesgn currencies, If any, are translated into LS. daflars at the
current exchange rabe.

[meestments in other open-end investment companées (excluding exchange traded funds), which are classified as
{evel tsecurities, are based on thelr net assat value, The nat assal vilue of an investment company equals the botal

Invcomae Fund 61
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value of its assets less its liabilitses and divided by the number of its outstanding shares. Shares are only valued as of
the closeof reaular trading on the New York Stock Exchange each day that the exchange i open,

To the extant a prcing service ar dealer i unabla to value a sacunty or provides & valuation that Putnam Man-
apement does not believe accurately reflects the security’s fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by
Putnam Management. Certatn investments. including certain restricted and lHguld seourities and dervatives, ane
dlzo valued at tair value following procedures approved by the Trustees. Thess valuations consider such factars
as sinificant market or specific security events such as iterest rate or credit quality changes, vanous relation-
ships with other securities, discount rates, U S Traasury, US swap and credit yeilds indexs levels, convexity axpa-
sures and recovery rates. These securities are classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending oo the prorty of the
significant inputs

Such waluations and procedures are reviewsd perigdically by the Trustees. Certain securities may be valued on the
hasis of a price provided by a single source, The fai value of secusities is generally determined as the amount that
the fund could reasonably expect ba reglize from anarderly disposition of such sacurities over a reasonabie perad
of trme, By 1ts nature, a fair valug price |s a good faith estimate of the value of a secunity ina current sabe and does
nat reflect anactual market price, which may be different by a material amaunt.

Security transactions and related investment income Security transactions are recorded on the trade date (the
date the order to buy or sefl is executed) Gains or lpsses on secunties sold ane determined on the identifiéd cost
hasis. Interest income, net of any applicable withholding taxes, i recorded an the accreal basis. All premiumsy
discounts are amartized/accretadd on a yiskd-to-maturity basis.,

Secunties purchased or sold on a forward commuitment or delayed delvery basis may be settled a month or mane
after the trade date; interest moome is aconeed based on the terms of the securities, Losses may arise due to
changos in the markel value of the undorying securities of if the counterparty doas pat perform under the contract.
The fund earned cérlain fees bn connection with ibs senior loan purchasing activities: These fees are breated as
market discount and are amortized inte income in the Statement of operations.

Stripped securithes The fund may immest instripped securities which represent a participation in securitles that may
be structured in classes with nghts to receive different potions of tha interest and pringipal. nterest-only securities
recejve all of the interest and principal-only securities receiveall of the principal. If the interest-only securities expe-
frence greater than anticipated presayiments of princepal, the fume may faill b recaisn Tully s imtial ivestimant (n
these secunties. Conversely, principak-only securbies increase invalue If prepayments are greater than anticipated
and decling if prepayments are slower [han anticipated, The market value of these sacurities is highly sensitive to
changes in interest rates.

Opticns conlracts The fund wses opticns cantracts to hedge duration and comvexity and to Bolate prapayment risk.

The patential risk 1o the fund ls that the change in value of options contracts may not comrespond 1o the change in
value of tive hedged mstrements. In addition, losses may arise from charges in the value of the underlying instrus
ments if therne isan ilkguid secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rales move unexpectedy or if
the counterparty 10 the contract ks unable to perform, Realized galns and losses on purchased options are inchided
in realired gains and losses on nvestmiant securities IF a written call option is exercised, the premium originally
recemved is recorded as an addetion to sales procesds. I & wrtten put option is exercised, the premiurn orgenally
received is recorded as a reduction Yo the cost of investments.

Exchange traded ophcns are valeed at the bist sale prce o if no aales are reported, the last bid price for purchased
eptions and the iastask price for written options. Options traded over-the-counter are valued using prices supplisd
by dealers. Certain options contracts inchude premiums that do nat settle unti the axpitation date of the contracl
Weitlen option confracts outstanding al period end, if any, are listed after the fund's partlolio. See Note 3 for the
valume of written options contracts activity for the reporting pericd. The fund had an average contract amount of
spproximately $2.075.900.000 on purchased options contracts for the reporting perod,

Futures contracts The fund uses futures cantracts to hedge nferast rate risk and (o gain exposure tonterest rates:
The potential risk 1o the fund is that the changs in value of futures contracts may not correspond ta the change
value of tha hedaed instrurnents. |n addition, |osses may arse fram changes in the value of the undarlying rstru-
mentsif these s an ilhiguld secondary market for the contracts, i inferést or eechange rates move unexpedtedly ar if
thie countarpanty to the contract is unable to perform. With futures, these is mirimal counterparty crodit rsk to the
tund since futures are exchange traded and the exchange's cleannghouse, as counterparty toall exchange traded
hutumes, guasantess the futures against default, Risks may excesd amounts recoanized on the Statement of assets
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and hiatulities. When the contract is closed, the fund records a reafized gain or loss equal to the difference between
the walue of the contract at the ime 1t was opened and the vahea at the time it was cdosed.

Futures contracts ans valued at the gquoted darly settlement prices established by the exchange on which they
trade The fund and the broker agres to exchange an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the value of
the futures contract Such necpipts oF payments ant Known as "variation margin.”

Futures contracts outstanding at period end, if any, are listed after the tund'’s portiolio. The lund had an average of
approximately 2,500 futures contracts ootstanding for the reporting pericd,

Total return swap contracts The fund entered into botal returm swap contracts. which ore armangements to
exnchange a market (imked retumn for 8 penodic payment, both based on a npotionat principal amount, to hedge
sector exposure, 1o manage exposune to specific sectors or industries, o 0ain exposure (0 specific sectors of
ifvtlusties; to gain exposure ta rates of inflation in specific mgions or cauntries and to hedge mflatian I spacific
TeQIoNs OF CouUntres.

To the extent thal the total relurn of the securly, index or other financial measure underlying the transaction
ewceeds or falls short of the offsetting interest rate obiligation, the fund will recenve a payment from or make a
payment to the counterparty, Total retusn swap contracts are marked 1o markat datly Based upon guotations from
an independent prcing service of market makers and the change, il any, is recorded as an unrealized gain ar
hoss. Payments received or made are recorded as realized oains or losses, Certam todal returm swap contracts may
include extended effective dates. Payments related Lo these swap contracts are accried based on the terms of
the contract: The fund could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the Huctuation
of interest ratés o in the prce of the underlying secarity or index, the possibility that there s no igud market
for these agreements or that the counterparty may defaull on its abligation to perfarm, The fund's maximum
fisk af loss from countorparty risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitkgated by Riving a master
netting arrangement behween the hund and the counterparty. Risk of loss may excesd amounts recognized on the
Staterment of assets and liabifites.

Total return swap contracts outstanding at perled end, if any, are fisted after the fund's portfolic. Outstanding
notional amaount on total return swap contracts at the close of the reporting period are indicative of the volume of
activity during the reporting paricd.

Initerast pabe swap contracts The funid enterdd Into interost rale swap contracts, whieh are arrangemeants batwaen
two parties to exchange cash flows based on a notonal principal amount, to hedge interest rate nsk and to gan
exposure on intersst mtes.

Annterest rate swap can be purchased ar soid with an upfrant premium. Anupfront payment recabved by the fund
is recorded as a labéity on the fund's books. An upfront payment made by the fund is recorded as an asset on the
fund's books. Lipfront paymeants are recordad as realized Gains and osses at the closing of the contract interast rate
swap contracts ane marked to market daily based upon quatations from an independent oricing serice or market
makers and the change. (| any, 15 recorded as an uprealizad gain or koss. Payments recelved or made are recordad
as realized gains o losses, Certain interast rate swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments
refated to these swap contrmcts are scorued based on the terms af the contrmet. The fund could be exposed ta
credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults
on s obligation to perform. The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk is the fair value of the contract.
This risk may be mitigatad by having a master netting arrangement betwaean the fund and the countarparty. Risk of
liyss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statement of assets and labilities,

[eiterest rate swap contracts outstanting at petiad end, if any, ane lsted after the fursd's portfalio, The fund had an
average nofional amount of approcemately 54282 900,000 on nterest rate swap contracts for the repart ing period,
Master agreements The fund i5 & party to 15D (Intermatianal Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master
Agreainents (Master Agréements) with cortaln counters partios that govern over-the-counter darivative and faresgn
exchange conbracts antered inte from time to Bme. The Master Agreements may contam provisions regarding.,
amang ather things, the paties’ general obligations, representations, sgreements, collateral regurement s, events
of default and easly termination. With respect ta certadin counterparfies, in accordance with the terms of the Master
Agreements, collateral posted to tha fund = hald In a segregated account by the fund'scustodian and with respect
to those amounts which ¢an be 5ol or repledged, are presented in the fund's portfolio, Collateral posted 1o the
tund which cannat be sold or repledaed totaled $2131.208 at the close of the réporting period

Collateral pledged by the fund s segregated by the lund's custdian and identitied In the fund's partfelic. Collateral
can be in the form of cash or debt securities ssued by the U5 Government or related agencies or other sstunties
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as agreed to by the fund and the applicable counterparty. Collateral requirements are determmed bazed on the
fund's net position with each counterparty:

Termination events apphicable to the fund may occur upon & decling i tha tund's net assets below a specifiod
threshold aver a certain pericd of time Termination events applicabls to counterparties may ocour upon a decline
ir the counterparty’s long-term and short-term credit ratings below a specifiad lavel In aach case, LDon SECUr-
rence, the other party may efect to tarminate early and cause settiement of all denvative and torekgn exchange
contracts outstanding, including the payment of any Ipsses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determined by the terminaling party. Any decizion by one of mare of tha fund's colintespartios bo ebact
early termination coubd impact the-fund's future denvative activity

Al the close of the roporting pericd, the fund had a nat labiity poston of 987 260 00 cpan darvative contracts
subiect to the Master Agreements, There wias no collateral posted by the fund.

TBA purchase commitments The fund may enter into TBA (fo be announced) commitments to purchase securt-
thes for a feed unit price at a futire date beyond customarny settiement time Although the unlt price Has been
estabiished, the principal value has not been finalized. However, it is anticipated that the amount of the commit-
ments will not significant Iy differ from the prncipal amount. The fund holds, and maintains until settiement date,
cashar high-grade debt ohiigations inan amount sufficisnt to meet the purchase prics, or the fund may enterinto
offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income on the seciritles will fot be earmed until
settlement date. TBA purchase commitments may be considerad secunties themsalves, and invalve a risk of ioss
if the value of the security to be purchased decines prior o the settiement date; which risk is in addition ta the risk
of decline n the valie of the lune's other assels Unsattied THA purchase commdtments are valued at fair valug of
the underlying securities, according to the procedures descnibed under "Security valuation” above. The contract is
rnarked to market daify and the change in market value is recarded by the tund as an unrealized gain or loss.

Although the fund will generaily enter into TEA purchase commitments with the intention of aoguinng secun-
ties forits portfolo or for defivery pursuant to options contracts it has entered into, the fund may dispose of a
carmmitmant praor to sattlemant i Pubnam Management desms it appropniate b do sa.

TBA sale commitments The fund may enter inte TEA sale commitments to hedge its pertfolio pesitions or to sell
mortgage-packed sacurties it owns under dotayed delivery arrangements, Proceads of TEA sale commitrmaents
are not recelved until the contractual settlement date During the time a TBA sale commitment s outstanding,
equivalent daliverabhe securities, or an offsetting TBA purchase commitment deliverable on or before the sale
cammitmeant date, are held as "cover” for the transaction.

Linsettled TBA sale commitments are vahued at the fair walue of the undertying securities, generally actarding to
the procedures describad undar “Secunty valuation” above. The contract is marked to market daily and thechange
ir market value ks recorded by the tund a5 an wnreatized gain or less I the TRA sale commitment is closed thraugh
the acgulsitson of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment. the fund realizes a gain or loss. if the tund dellvers
securties under the commitmeant, the fund reafizes a gain or 3 loss from the sale of the securities based upon the
unit price established at the date the commmitment was entered into, TEA sale commitments outstanding at period
eng, IFany. are listed aftor the fund's port folio,

Interfund lending The fund, alang with ather Putnam funds, may participate in an Interbund lending program
pursuant to an-exemptive order issued by the SEC. This program allows the fund to borrow from o kend to ather
Putnarn funds that permit such transactions. Interfund lending transactions ame sybsect toeach fund's mvestment
palicies and borrowing and lendina imits, nterest earned or paid on the interfind lending transaction willbe based
on the average of cortaln current market rates, During the reporting perod. the fund did not ubilize the progam.
Line of credit The fund participates, along with ather Putnam funds, in a 3315 million unsecured committed lne of
cradit and a $185 milion unsacured uncommattied line of creded, both provided by State Street. Borrowings may be
rmade far temporary ar emergency purposes, including the funding of sharshokder redemption reguests and trade
sefthements Inberest 15 charged 1o the fund based on the fund’s barrowing at a rate-equal o the Federal Funds rate
pliis 1.25% for the committed ina of ¢redit and the Federal Furds rate plus 1.30% far the usscommitted line of cradit.
A closing fee equal to Q02% of the committed line of credit and $50,000 for the uncommitted ine of credit has
been pald by the parcipating funds, in addition, a commitment fee of D1 per annum on any unubillzed portion
of the committed line ol credit s allocated to the participating funds based on their relative net assets and paid
guarterty. Dunng the reparting pencd, the fund had no borrowings aganst these arrangemants

Federal taxes it i the pohcy of the fund to distnbute all of its taxabde income within the prescnbed time penad and
otherwise comply with the provisions of the tntermal Revenus Code of 1986, s amendsd (the Code), applicabie
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to regulated investment companies., It is also the intention of the fund to distribute an amount sufficient to avoid
impasition of any excise tax under Secticn 4982 of the Code.

The fund is subject to the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ASC 740 fncome Taxes (ASC 740).
ASC 740 sets forth a minimum threshaold for financial statement recoanition of the benefit of a tax position taken or
axpected to be taken ina tax retum. The fund did not have a llability to record for any unfecognized tax benefits in
the accampanying financial statements. Mo provision has been made for federal taxes on mcome, capital gains or
unreakized appreciaticn on securities held nor for axcise tax on income and capital gains, Each of the fund's fedaral
tax returns for the prior three fiscal years remains subject o examination by the Internal Revenue Servica.

At October 31, 2002, the fund had a capital loss carryaver of $194.801.386 available to the extent allowed by the
Code to offset future net capital gain, if amy. The amounts of the carryovers and the expiration dates are:

‘Short-term Long-term Total Expiration
£16,899 346 £21,706,087 38,606,432 -
92 884 454 M/ 92 Bod 454 QOctober 31, 2016
63,511,499 M 63,311,492 Oclober 31, 2017

* Under the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2000, the fund will be permitted ta carry forward
capital losses incurred In taxable years begimning after December 22, 2010 for an unlimited period. However, any
lesgas mourred during those futura years will be required to be ulilized prios (o the losses incurred in pre-enactiment
tax wears, As a result of this ordenng rule. pre-enactment capital loss carryforwards may be more Iikely to expire
unused. Addithorally, post-enactment capital lasses that are carried forward will retain their character as either
shart-term or long-term capital losses rather than being consadersd alk short-term as under previous Bw

Distributions to shareholders Distributions to sharehalders from net investrent income are recorded by the fund
on the ex=dividend date. Distributions from capatal gains, if any. are recorded on the ex-dividend date and paid at
least anmually, The amount and character of income and gains to be distributed are determined in accordance with
incarme tax regulations, which may differ lrom generally aceepted accounting principles. Theze differences include
temporary and/or permanent differences of income on swap contracts and interest only securities, Reclassifications
are made 1o the fund's capital accounts to reflect income and gains available for distnbution (or available capital
loss carryovers) under income tax regulations. For the réporting pericd ended, the fund reclassified $1,671,215 to
increase undistributed net investment income and $1,671,215 to increase accumulated net realized losses.

The tax basis components of distributable sarnings and the federal tax cost as of the close of the reporting period

were as follows:

Unrealzed apprecation $£105.132 841
Linrealized depreciation (6,977, 078)
Met unrealized appreciation 98,155,563
Ungistributed oidinary income 6,895, 242
Capitat loss carryforward (194.801,386)
Cost for federal ncome tax purposes $1.843,784,006

Note 2: Management fee, administrative services and other transactions

The fund pays Putnam Management a management fee (based on the fund's average net assets and computed and
paid manthiy) at annual rates that may vary based on the average of the aggregate net assets of mest cpen-end
funids, as defined in the fund's management contract, sponsored by Putnam Management. Such annual rates may

vary as follows:
0.550% of the first 35 bélion, 0.350% of the mext $50 billion,
{0.500% of the next 35 billion, 0.330% of the mext 550 billion,
0.450% of the next $10 billon, 0.320% of the mext $100 billion and
0.400% of the next $10 billion, 0.315% of any excess therealter,

Putnam Management has contractually agreed, through June 30, 2013, to waive fees or reimburse the fund’s
expenses to the extent necessary to limit the cumulative expenses of the fund, exclusive of brokerage, interest,
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taxes, investment-related expenses, extraordinary expenses. acquired fund fees and expenses and payments
under the fund's investor servicing contract, investment management contract and distribution plans, on a fiscal
year-to-date basis to an annual rate of 0.20% of the fund’s average net assets over such fiscal year-to-date period.
During the reporting period, the fund's expenses were not reduced as a result of this limit,

Putnarm Imestrments Limited (PIL). an affilate of Putnam Managemont, is authorized by the Trustees to manace a
separate portion of the assets of the fund as determined by Putnam Management from time to time. Putnam Man-
agement pays a quarterly sub-management fee ta PIL for its services at an annual rate of 0.40% of the average net
assets of the portion of the fund managed by PIL.

The fund reimburses Putnam Management an allocated amount for the compensation and related expenses of
certain officers of the fund and their staff who provide admanistrative services to the fund. The aggregale amount
of all such reimbursements is determined annually by the Trustees,

Custodial functions for the fund's assets are provided by State Street, Custody fees are based on the fund's asset
level, the mumber of its security holdings and transaction volumes,

Putnam Investor Services, Inc,, an affiliate of Putnam Management, provides investor servicing agent functions
to the fund, Putnam Imvestor Services, Inc. received fees for Investor servicing (except for Class RS and RE shares)
based on the fund's retail asset level, the number of sharehalder accounts in the fund and the level of defined
contribution plan assets in the fund. Class RS shares pay a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class RS
shares at an annual rate of 0.12%. Class RE shares pay a menthly fee based on the average net assets of class RE
shares at an annual rate of 0.05%. Investor servicing fees will not exceed an annual rate of 0.32% of the fund’s
average nelt assets, Prios to March 1, 2012, investor servicing fees could not exceed an annual rate of 0.375% of the
fund's average net assets. During the reporting period, the class specific expenses refated to investor servicing fees
winre as follows:

Class A 21,267,246 Class RS 4
Class8 59,908 ClassRE 2
Class C 247,415 Class ¥ 232730
Class M 235,068 Total $2,049,795
Class R 7433

The fund has entered into expense offset arrangements with Putnam Investor Services, Inc. and State Street
whereby Putnam Investor Services. Inc's and Stabe Street's fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash balances.
For the reparting pericd, the fund's expenses were reduced by $2, 806 under the expense offset arrangements.

Each independent Trustee of the fund receives an annual Trustee fee, of which $1119, a3 a quarterly rataines, has
been aliocated to the fund, and an additional fee for each Trustees meeting attended. Trustees also are reimbursed
for expenses they incur relating to their services as Trustees.

The fund has adopted a Trustee Fee Deferral Pian (the Deferral Plan) which aliows the Trustees to defer the receipt
of all or a portion of Trustees fees pavable on or after July 1, 1995, The deferred fees remain invested in certain
Putnarn funds until distnbution in accordance with the Deferral Flan.

The fund has adopted an unfunded noncontributary defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covering
all Trustees of the fund who have served as a Trustea for at least five years and were first elected prios to 2004,
Benelits under the Pension Plan are egual to 50% of the Trustee's average annual attendance and retainer fees for
the three years ended December 31, 2005, The retirement benefit is pavable during a Trustee's lifetime, beginning
the year following retirement, for the number of years of service through December 31, 2006, Pension expense
for the fund is included in Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of operations. Accrued pension
liability iz included in Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of assets and liabilities. The
Trustees have terminated the Pension Plan with respect to any Trustee first elected after 2003,

The fund has adopted distribution plans (the Plans) with respect toits class A, class B, class C, class M and class R
shares pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, The purpose of the Plans is to com-
pensate Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Pubnam Invest-
ments, LLE, for services provided and expenses incurred in distributing shares of the fund, The Plans provide for
payments by the fund to Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership at an annual rate of up to 0.35%, 1LOD%,
1.00%, 1.00% and 1.00% of the average net assets attributabde to class A, class B, class C, class M and class R shares,
respectively. The Trustees have approved payment by the fund at an annual rate of 0.25%, 100%, LO0%, 0.50% and
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0.50% of the average net assets attributable to class A, class B, class C, class M and class R shares, respectively.
During the reporting period, the class specific expenses refated to distribution fees were as follows:

Class A $2,139.203 ClassM 792.892
ClassB 404,512 ClassR 25062
ClassC 1,669,768 Total $5,031,437

For the reparting pericd, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership. acting as underwriter, recaivied net com-
missions of 8110,700 and $13,012 from the sale of class A and class M shares, respectively, and received $32,495 and
§7.212 in contingent deferred sales charges from redemptions of class B and class C shares, nespectively,

A deferred sales charge of up to 1.00% and 0.40% is assessed on certain redemptions of class A and class M shares,
respectively. For the reporting peried. Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership. acting as underwriter,
received 33,408 and no monies on class A and class M redemptions, respectivedy.

Mote 3: Purchases and sales of securities

During the reporting pericd. cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of investment securities ather than
short-term investments aggregated $2,266.429.858 and $2.035,48,665, respectively. These figures include
the cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of long-term US. government securities of $5,972188 and
§5,971,484, respectivaly,

Written aption transactions during the reporting period are summarized as follows:

Written swap option Written swap option
contract amounts pramiums
Written options outstanding at the
beginning of the reponting penod $2,343 044,374 $125.397 305
Options opened 1,772,454 238 65,113,914
Oplions exercised {B85.880,454) (24,099,944}
Qiptions expired = =
Options closed (3,351.086,158) {164,882 209)
Witten options outstandmng at the
erxd of the reporting pariod $79.432.000 $1.579.066

Note 4: Capital shares

At the close of the reporting period, there was an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest authorized.
Transactions in capital shares were as follows:

Year ended 10/31/12 Year ended 10/31/11

Class A Shares Amaunt Shares Amount
Shares sold 27,350,698 $189,503,530 31,938,569 $218.7%0,518
Shares isswed in connection with
reimvestrmient of distributions 3.272191 22 530,760 5,196,313 35,449,398

20,622,889 212145299 37,134,882 754,239,916
Shares repurchased (32.950,300) | (224,777.619) (38,643,7000 | (263.845,934)
Met decrease (2,327,461)  $(16,634,320) (1,514,818) $09,606,022)
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Year ended 10,/31/12 Year ended 10/31/11
Class B Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sold 1,588,528 $9.538.158 2,105,943 $14.318,416
Shares issued in comnnection with
reinvestment of distributions 108,522 744,380 208,992 1.412938
1.497 050 10,282,538 2314935 15731354
Shares repurchased {1.651,519) (11.377.763) (2,787 583) (18.884,104)
Het decrease {154,469) $(1,095,225) (472,648) $(3,152,750)
Year ended 10,/31/12 Year ended 10,/31/11
ClassC Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares soid 5,123.472 £35,260,152 B.428924 $£57.395,078
Shares issued in comnection with
rexnvestrnent of distributions 76,116 2585453 660,999 4,480,909
5.499 588 37 854,585 9,089,528 61.875,987
Shares repurchased (7.4811,2200 (51,136,247 {8,652.088) (58,620,817}
Het increase (decrease) (1,911,632)  $(13,281,702) 437,840 $3,255,170
Yoar ended 10/31/12 Year ended 10,/31,/11
Class M Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sokd 1131897 §7,605,763 4,252,290 428,443,376
Shares isswed in connection with
resnvestanent of distributions 57125 387404 96,626 B46,826
1.189.022 B.083.167 4,348,925 20,090,202
Shares repurchased (5.356,881) (36,496,132) (12,052,732) (80.978,751)
Het decrease (4.167,859)  £(28,412965) (7,703,807  $(51,888,54%)
Year ended 10/31/12 Year anded 10/31/11
ClassR Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares soad 372015 $2.551 886 308,145 £2.097.773
Shares isswed in connection with
reinvestment of distributions 18,450 127,087 24,597 167075
390,465 26784073 332,742 2.264,848
Shares repurchased (355,775) {2.444.067) (234,680 (1.602.134)
Het increase 34,690 $234,906 08,053 $662,714
For the period 7/3/12
(commencemaent of operations) to 10/31/12
Class RS Shares Amount
Shares soid 1,406 $10,000
Shares isseed in connection with reimestment of distributsons 14 100
1.420 10,100
Shares repurchased - -
Mat increase 1,420 $10,100
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For the period 7/3/12
(commencement of operations) to 10,/31/12
Class R6 Shares Amount
Shares spid 1,406 $10,000
Shares issued in connection with reimestment of distributions 14 100
1,420 10,100
Shares repurchased - -
Met increase 1,420 $10,100
Year ended 10,/31/12 Year ended 10,/31/11
Class Y Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares soid 20.514 428 4144552 458 19,234,583 $133.635,790
Shares issued in comnection with
rexnvestrnent of distributions 533,133 3744348 554,836 TAZZIN
21.047 561 148 296 806 19,789,419 137,467,901
Shares repurchased (13902 881) (97,729.796) {21,652 3365 {140 652 242)
Het increase (decrease) 7,144,680 $50,567,010 (1,862,917)  $(12,184,341)

At the close of the reporting period, Putnam Investments, LLC awned the following class shares of the furd:

Shares owned Parcentage of ownership Value
Clats 75 1,420 100% £10,446
Class 6 1420 100 10,447

Note 5: Summary of derivative activity
The following is a summary of the market values of derivative instruments as of the close of the reporting persod,

Market values of derivative instruments as of the close of the reporting period

Asset derivatives Liability derivatives
Darivatives not
accounted for as Statement of Statement of
hedgling instrumaents assets and assets and
under ASC §15 liabilities location  Market value liabilities location  Market value
Investmeants,
Receivables, Net Payables, Met
assels — Unnealized assals — Lnrealized
Interest rate contracts appreciation $11.837 BIB* depreciation %7.662.930°
Tetal $11,837 818 7,662,930

* Includes cumulative apprecation/depreciation of futures contracts as reported in the fund's portfobo. Only currant
day's variation margin is reported within the Statement af assets and kabilities

The fallowing is a summary of realized and change i unrealized gains or losses of dedvative instrumeants on the
Statement of operations for the reporting penod (see Note 1)

Amount of realized galn or (loss) on derivatives recognized In net gain o (1os2) on investments

Derivatives not accounted for

as hedging instruments under.

ASC 815 Options Futures Swaps Total
Interest rate contracts $(44,634,368) $22.123,189 $38156213)  B(60,667.392)
Total $(44,634,368) $22,123,189 $(38,156,213)  S(60,667,392)

Income Fund &9

135/286



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Changein unrealized appreciation or (depreciation) on derivatives recognized in net gain or (loss) on investments

Derivatives not accounted for
as hedging instruments under
ASC B15 Oiptions Futures Swaps Total
Interest rate contracts £17,757.596 801,521 659) £30,3097 359 £46,633 206
Total $17,757,596 ${1,521659)  $30,397,359 $46,633,296

HNote &: Transactions with affillated issuer
Transactions during the reporting pericd with Putham Money Market Liguidity Fund, which is under common
ownership and control, were as follows:

Market value at Market valua

the beginning at the end of

of the reporting Imvestment  the reporting

Hame of affiliate period Purchasecost Sale proceeds incame period
Putnarn Maney Market

Liquidity Fund® $235.139.135  $999.698,920 51,093.788,272 $253,8682 | §141.049,783

* Management fees charged to Putnam Money Market Liquidity Fund have been waived by Putnam Management.

HNote 7: Senior loan commitments

Senior loans ane purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis and may be settled a month or mone
after the trade date, which from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash balances; interest
income is accrued based on the terms of the securities. Senior loans can be acquired throwgh an agent, by assign-
rment fram another halder of the loan, ar as a participateon interest in another hodder's portion of the loan, When the
fund imvests in @ loan or participation, the fund is subject to the risk that an intermediate participant between the
funid and the boerower will fail bo meet its abligations to the fund, in addition te the rsk that the barmower under the
loan may default onits obligations,

Note B: Market, credit and other risks

In the normal course of business, the fund trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions where
risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market {market risk) or failure of the contracting party to the
transaction to perform (credit risk). The fund may be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution or other
entity with which the fund has unsettied or open transactions will default. Investmaents in foreign securities involve
certain risks, including those related to ecanomic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency
fluctuations. The fund may invest a significant portion of its assets in securitized debt instruments, including mart-
gage-backed and atset-backed investments. The yviebds and values of these imvestmeants are sensitive to changes
ininterest rates, the rate of principal payments on the underlying assets and the market's perception of the issuers,
The market for these investments may be volatile and limited, which may make therm difficult to buy or sell.

Mote 9: Regulatory matters and litigation

I late 2003 and 2004, Putnam Managemsent settied charges brought by the SEC and the Massachusetts Secunties
Division in connection with excessive shart-term trading in Putnam funds. In July 200, the fund recorded a receiv-
able of $424 890 related to restitution amounts in connection with a distribution plan approved by the SEC. This
amaunt, which was received by the fund in December 2011, is reported as part of Increase in capital from settle-
ment payments on the Statement of changes in net assets, These allegations and refated matters have served as
the general basss for certain lawsuits, including purparted class action lawsuits against Putnam Management and,
in a limited number of cases. some Putnam funds, In May 2011, the fund received a payment of $2,005 related (o
setthernent of those lawsuits. This amount ks reported as a part of Increase in capital from settlement payments on
the Statement of changes in net assets, Putnam Management has agreed to bear any costs inturred by the Putnam
funds as a result of these matters.

TO Income Fund
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Mote 10: New accounting pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ssued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
20M-04 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 8200 — Amendments o Achieve Comman Fair Value
Measwrement and Disclosure Roquirements in LS. GAAP and IFRS™. ASU 2011-04 amonds FASE Topic B20 "Falr
Value Measurement ™ and seeks to develog common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing infor-
mation about fair valwe measurements in accordance with GAAR ASU 200-04 is effective for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after Decamber 15, 2011, The application of ASU 2011-04 did not have a matenal impact
on the fund’s financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASH issued ASU Mo. 2001-11 “IVsciosuras about Offsetting Assets and Liabitities”, The
update creates new disclosure reguirements requiring entities to disclosa both gross and net information for deriv-
atives and other financial Instruments that are either offset in the Statement of assets and liabilities or subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. The disclosure requirements are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January §, 2013 and interim periods within those annual pericds.
Putnam Management is currently evaluating the application of ASU 20M1-1 and its impact, if any, on the fund’s
financial statements.

Imcome Fund 7
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The fund's portfolio 10/21/12

U.5. GOVERNMENT AND AGENCY
U.5. Government Guaranteed Mortgage Obligations (1.2%)
Govarnment Mational Mortgage Ascociation
Pass-Throwgh Certificates
31/ 2, July 15, 2042
is, TBA, Janiary 1, 2063
Is. TBA, Movember L, 2042

LS. Government Agency Mortgage Obligations (48.8%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Carporation
Pass-Through Cartificatoes
a5, _fune 1, 20437
35, TBA, Novemnber 1, 2042
Federal Mational Mortgage Associatiaon
Pats-Thisugh Certificatag
7s. January 1, 2017
bs, TBA, November 1, 2042
ds_ with due dates from Jurnse 1, 2042 to November 1, 2042
Is. TBA, February 1, 2043
Is, TBA, Novemiber 1, 2042

£12,740,958
R0, OO
2.000,000

16,902,928
12,000,000

4,084
432,000,000
129,393,276
93,000,000
365,000,000

Total U.S. government and agency mortgage obligations (cost $715,277,298)

Agency collateralized montgage obligations (14.8%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.
IFE Ser. 3408, Class EK, 24,9135, 2037
IFB Ser. 2976, Class L, 236355, 2035
IFE Ser. 2009, Class A5, 23,489, 2034
IFB Ser. 3072, Class 5B. 22,8655, 2035
IFB Ser. 3249, Class P5, 21.5695, 2036
IFB Ser. 3065, Class DC, 19, 218s, 2035
IFB Sor, 2090, Class LE, 16.3995, 2034
IFB Ser, 4105, Class HS, 10, 6.3586s, 2042
IFE Ser. 3803, Class SF, 10, 6,386s, 2038
IFE See. 3881, Class PS, 10, 6.386s, X037
IFE Sar. 3907, Class 5,10, 6.3365, 2040
IFBE Ser. 3708, Class 54, 10, 6.236s, 2040
IFE Ser. 4112, Class SC, 10, 5.936s, 2042
IFE Ser, 4105, Class LS, 10, 59365, 2041
IFB Ser. 4012, Class E5, 10, 5 8365, 2038
IFB Ser. 3852, Class NT, 5. 7865, 2041
IFB Ser, 3752, Class P35, 10, 5,786s, 2040
FRB Ser. 3036, Class A5, 51/ 2, 2035
Ser. 2632, Class C1, 10, 55, 2038
Ser. 3626, Class DI, [0, 5s, 2037
Ser. 4122, Class TI, 10,4 1/2s, 2042
Ser. 4018, Class DI, 1O, 4 1/2s, 2041
Ser. 3747, Class HI, [0, 41,25, 2017
Ser. 3707, Class PI, 10, 4 1/2<, 2035

£1,595,458
241,219
152,957
910,150
831,250
1021933
1,224,160
5,699,613
10,582,208
5,400,405
6,153,570
16,896,667
13,350,682
5,855,774
13,974,101
3,864,995
8,640,765
54,334
325,425
151,385
7,598,000
9,540,782
2,373,740
B.576,302
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$14,016.617
1059575
2130156

17,206,148

18,B13,752
12 569,063

4,309
45,619.375
144,176,926
06,941.600
383,164,444
701,439,469

$718 645,617

$2.537.269
385951
203,308
1,438,791
1.260.950
LEeQ3ea7
1.718.586
1,293 844
B30.547
#63.449
B33.854
2331571
2314901
1,174,258
2,532,387
4,258,030
1.340.874
47 462
18,003
6.153
11254976
1151.763
194.448
B60.032
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ations cond.

Agency collateralized mortgage ohlig
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp,
Ser. 4116, Class ™I, O, 4s, 2042

Ser_ 4090, Class B1, 10, 45, 2042

Sor. 4026, Class I, 10, 45, 2041

Ser. 3740, Class KL, 10, 45, 2053

Ser. 4077, Class Al 10, 3s, 2027

Ser. T-56, Class A, 10, 0.5245, 2043
Ser. T-56, Class 3, 10, 0.484s, 2043
Ser. T-56, Class 1, 1D, 0, 2903, 2043
Ser. T-56, Class 2, 10, 0,1315, 2043
Ser. 4077, Class TO, PO, zero %, 2041
Ser, 2835, Class FO, PO, zero ¥, 2041
Sev. 3369, Class BO, PO, zero %, 2037
Ser. 3391, PO, zero %, 2037

Ser. 3300, PO, zero %, 2037

Ser. 3206, Class EQ, PO, zero %, 2026
Ser. 3175, Class MO, PO, zerp %, 2036
Ser. 3210, PO, zaro %, 2036

FRE Ser. 3117, Class AF, zora 'y, 2038
FRE Ser. 3326, Class WF. zero %, 2035
Federal Mational Mortgage Association

IFB Ser. 06-62, Class PS, 38,6365, 2036
IFB Ser. 6-8, Class HP, 23,7945, 2036

IFB Ser, 05-45, Class DA, 23,6475, 2035
B Ser. (5-122, Class SE, 22.363s, 2035
IFB Ser. 065-75, Class G5, 19.618s, 2035
IFE Ser. (5-106, Class JC, 19.471s, 2035
IFB Ser 05-A3, Class OF, 15 8465, 2034
IFB Ser. 11-4, Class C5, 12.4795, 2040

IFB Ser. 12-96, Class PS, 10, 6.489s, 2041
IFB Ser. 12-88, Class 5B, 10, 6.459s, 2042
IFB Ser. 12-75, Class 5K, 10, 6.439s, 2041
IFB Sar. 12-4, Class SN, 10, 63805, 2040
IFB Ser. 12-75, Class K5, 10, 6.3359s, 2042
|FB Ser. 12-3, Class C5, 10, 6.339s, 2040
IFB Ser. 12-3, Class 5D, 10, 6,209, 2042
IFB Ser. 11-87, Class WS, 10, 6.289s, 2041
IFB Ser. 11-67, Class BS, 10, 6.289s, 2041
IFB Ser. 11-27, Class AS, 10, 6.268s, 2041
IFE Ser. 12-30, Class HS, 10, £.239s, 2042
IFB Ser. 10-35, Class SG, 10, 6.189s, 2040
IFB Ser. 12-113, Class C5, (0, 59395, 2041
IFB Ser. 12-4, Class 5Y, 10, 5.739s, 2042
IFB Sar. 11-53, Class 5, 10, 5,730, 2041
Ser. 12-132, Class SA 10, 55, 2042 &

Ser. 12-118, Class 10,10, 45, 2042

Ser. 12-124, Class U, 10, 45, 2042 &

Ser. 12-118, Class M1, 10, 45, 2042

Ser. 12-9%, Class PI, 10, 45, 2041

Ser. 03-W10. Class 1,10, 145, 2043

26 Income Fund

£15.001,000
3,942 209
3,334,403
11311989
16,113 806
13,276,356
4,713,314
15,927,926
5672428
3103607
0,085,348
63,832
155,557
G40, 514
40,601
133077
E5174
36,311

o5 745

1.687.145
947,643
1875011
1671382
756.625
971,467
218,706
2,008,134
10,776,578
f.605,663
15.076,955
7.703,392
10,255,306
10.150.844
3712935
5,935,499
19,226 252
12952, 783
30,327 106
29,451,158
4,953,087
6.427.420
20,180,315
13.754,000
12,365,582
25.247.500
8,550,000
12,477,726
10,759,108
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£2,306,404
444,721
280,455
167,531
1,649,550
227,845
61.852
119.45%
17.726
2,646,694
7833327
29,76
141,272
BEE 639
38,092
125,043
31,585
29,842
86,171

3,129,439
1,606,813
3,122,042
2,540,758
1,109,932
1,555,765

2pe.as?
2,413,340
2,244,761
1,571,738
3,026,397
1,367,352
1,539,904
1,878,478

6A5.980
1,032,777
3,360,766
1,836,187
5,773,088
1924651

950,758
1,110,722
2480976
2,297,806
1,904,701
4,531,926
1,473,358
1,812 830

4R1,218
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Agency collateralized mortgane obligations cont,
Federal National Mortgage Association
Ser. 01-50, Class B1, 10, 0.41s, 2041
Ser. 2002-We. Class 1AI0, .263s, 2042
Sor. 2005-W4, Class 1410, 0.11s, 2035
Ser, (03-34, Class PL PO, zero &, 2043
Ser. 07-b4, Clags LO, PO, zova %, 2037
Ser. 07-14, Class KO, PO, 2era %, 2037
Ser, 06125, Class OX, PO, zero %, 2037
Ser, 06-B4, Class OT, PO, zero %, 2036
ser, 06 46, Class QC, PO, zero %, 2036
Governmient Mational Mortgage Association
IFB Ser. 11-56, Clacs SA, 23.611s, 2041
IFE Sar. 10-158, Class S0, 14,368z, 2040
IFB Ser. 11-70, Class WS, 9.279s, 2040
IFB Ser. 11-72, Clacs 8E, 7,135, 2041 F
IFB Sar. 11-56, Class M5, 6,863, 2041
IFB Sar. 11-61, Class C5, 10, 6,469, 2035
IFB Ser, 11-70, Class 5M, 10, 5.676s, 2041
Ser, 10-35, Class QI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2040
Ser. 11-116, Class La, 10, 4 1/25, 2039
Ser, 11-116, Class BI 10, 4s, 2026
IFB Ser. 11-70. Class Y, W0, 0,155, 2040
Ser 11-70, PO, rero %, 2041
Ser, 10-151, Class KO, PO, zov0 %, 2037
Ser. 06-36, Class 0D, PO, zoro %, 2036
Ser. 99-31, Class MP, PO, zero %, 2029

Structured Asset Securities Corp, IFE Ser. 07-4, Class 1A3,

13, 6.038s, 2045

Skructurad Asset Securitizs Corp, 1444 Ser. BB-RFE,
Class A, 10, 6.15, 2028

Commercial mortgage-backed securities (12.1%)
Banc of Amenica Commercial Mortgage, Inc,
Ser, 04-4, Class D, 5.073s, 2042
e, 07-1, Class XW. 10. 0.3065. 2043 )
Banc of America Commercial Mortgage, inc. 1444
FRB Ser.05-2, Class E. 5.523s, 2043
Ser. 04-2, Class F, 4.9925, 2038
Ser. -4, Clags X 10, 0.B51s, 2042
Ser, -5, Class XC, 10, 0,7065. 2041
Ser, 02-PB2, Class ¥C, 1D, 0.457s, 2035
Ser, 07-5, Class XW, 10, 0.3925, 2051
Ser, 05-1, Class XW, 10, 0.059s, 2042
Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Socurities. Inc.
FRB Ser, O7-T28, Class AJ, 5.971s, 3042
FRB Ser, 05-T20, Class C, %155, 2042
Ser. 04-PWRE, Class D, 4,880, 3041
Ser. 04-PREI, Class X1, 10, 0.968s, 2041
Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities. Ing. 1444
Ser. 06-PW1d, Class X1. 10, 0.1665, 2038

£993,509
1,204,755
271,958
264,141
241,838
G75,066
91.077
BY,423
65,980

12,596,452
2,780,250
11,858,000
9,422,000
6,198,651
23,489,038
5,789,000
12,782,239
11,405,725
9,305,445
15,722,313
31,727,101
1,187 507
72,651
34,045

30,481,136

749024

2,385,000
10,289,744

1,590,000
1,350,000
19,800,034
32,726,591
9,480,158
21,161,218
295.342.189

1,708,000
1,900,000
1,889,000
£.029,954

17,554,540
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$6.209
5577
722
235,511
225508
534,543
87.246
65,845
61622

20,091,718
4,012,090
14,184,502
10,442 829
6,891,598
5,259,128
1458481
2,057,142
1202277
90857
4,580
31.246,316
1.C87.389
68,044
32213

5.791.416

116,161
212,850,949

2.368.603
96,275

1625775
1,360,800
203,366
402,373
891
268,049

101302

16592765
1835854
2,019,034

93,750

305447
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Commercial mortgage-backed securities conf.

CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444 Ser, 11-C1, Class XA,

10, 1.477s, 2044
Citigroup Cormemircial Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 05-C3,
Class A, 4.96s, 2043
Citigroup Cormmerncial Mortgage Trust 1444 Ser. 06-C5,
Class XC, 10, 0.117s, 2049
Citigroupy/ Deutsche Bank Commarcial Martgags Trust 1444

Ser. 07-CDd, Class XW, 10, 0,382<, 2049
 5er.07-CDA.Class XC.10,0.1465, 2049
Commercial Mortaage Pass-Through Certificates

FRE Ser. 06-C7, Class AM, 57735, 2046

Ser. 05-C6, Class AJ, 5.200s, 2044 F
Commaercial Mortgage Pass-Through Cartificates 1444

Ser (05-LPS, Clage ¥C 10, 0.517s, 2043

Ser. 06-C8, Class 15, 10, 0,185, 2046
Credit Suisse Morigaoe Capital Certficates

FRB Ser. 07-C4, Class A2, 5.762s, 2030

Ser. 06-CS5, Class AX, 10, 0155, 2039
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Certificates 1444
Ser. 07-C2, Class AX, 10, 0.071s, 2049
L5 First Boston Martgage Secunties Corp,

FRB Ser. 04-C2, Class D, 5.5755. 2036

FRB Ser. 05-C4, Class B, 5.29s, 2038

Ser, 05-Ch, Class AJ, 5.23s, 2040

Sar, 05-C5, Class AJ, 5.15, 2038

FRB Ser. 04-C5, Class B, 4.929s5, 2037

Ser. 02-CPN1. Class E. 4.891s, 2035

Ser. 0d-Cd, Class AJ, 4.772s, 20359 )
C5 First Boston Mortgage Secunities Corp. 1444

Ser. 9B-C1, Chass F, bs, 2040

FRE Ser. 03-CK2, Class G, 5.744s, 2036

Ser. 03-C3, Chass AX, 10, 1.717s, 2038
 Ser. 02-CP3, Class AX, |0, 1.092s, 2035 -
DL Commercidl Mortgage Corp, 1444 FRB Ser. 98-CG1,
Class B4, 7.204s, 2031
First Unign National Bank-Bank of America Commercial
Mortgage Trust 1444 Sor. 01-C1, Class 3, 10, 1.5625, 2033
G-5tar, Ltd, 1444 FRB Ser, 02-24, Class BFL, 2.211s, 2037
(Cayrman lslands)

_ GE Business Loan Trust 144A Ser, 04-2, Class D, 2.9645, 2032
GE Capital Commercial Mortoage Conp. FRE Ser. 05-C4,
Class A, 5.307s, 2045
GE Capatal Comemercial Morbaage Carp. 1444

Ser. 05-C 3, Class XC, 10, 0145, 2045

Ser 07-C1, Class XC, 10, 0,099, 2049
GMAC Commercial Martgage Securities, inc.

Ser. 97-C1, Class X, 10, 1.234s, 2025
Ger.05-C1, Class X1, 10, 0.592s, 2043

Greerwich Capital Commercial Funding Corp, 1444 Ser. 03-C1,

Class G, 4,773, 2035

28 Income Fund

1$28.997.7%
2,050,000
78.310.174

49335522
156,412,855

4,560,000
4.413.000

25782679
58.374.571

4030946
29,693,744

85,317,269

1.733,000
2. 760.000
2984000
1,650,000
2,840,000
1,528,000
4,030,000

2,450,512
2,984,000
52667498
4.637.655
3,188,000
1787 888

417,000
252,769

1.387,000

207,747,950
127,913,840

2,590,351
33468108

1.618.000
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$1.716,670
2,161.500
1,090.078

640,245
1435870

4,947,955
4,486,355

220,028
743,458

4,043,530
409,774

320,323

1,828,857
5,626,358
3172.8587
1,744,380
2,911,000
1526732
4,220,288

2,658,589
2,087,374
143,953
12,842
3,254,025
18

375,300
146.606

1151.210

1,424,605
953,726

106,554
428,291

1,602,292
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1ORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (39.2%)" cont. Principal amount
Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.
G5 Mortgage Securities Corp, Il

Ser. 06-GG8, Class Al 5.622:, 2030 £1.924,000
Sor, (6666, Class A2, 5.606s, 2038 344,109
G5 Mortgage Securities Corp. 11 14448
Ser. 98-C1, Class F, 65, 2030 520,327
Ser. 06-GG6, Claras ®C, 10, 0.087s, 21_}33 90,166,062
JPtorgan Chase Commercial Mortoage Securities Corp,
FRE Ser. 07-LD12, Class A3, 5.971s, 2051 19,773,000
Ser. 07-LDA2, Class A2, 58275, 2051 1,900,990
FRB Ser. 04-CRY, Class B, 5.665s, 2041 2,082,000
Ser, 02-C3, Class D, 53145, 2035 1,521,000
FRB Ser, 02-C2, Class E, 5 2565, 2024 1,540,000
FRE Ser. 04-CBX, Class B, 5.021s, 2037 1,143,000
Ser. D6-LDPA, Class X, 10, 0,54 25, 2045 58,925,774
Ser, 07-LDPY, Class X, 10, 0.311s, 2049 ?‘3.254.3'-_?2

JPMorgan Chase C-unmErl:iaiMuﬂgagé
Securities Corp, 1444

FRB Ser. 01-C1, Class H, 5.6265, 2035 1,456,198
Ser, 05-CB12, Class X1,10, 0.337s, 2037 21.575427
Ser. 06-LDPG, Class X1, 10, 0.054s, 2043 52,666,223
LB Commercial Conduit Mortgage Trust 1444
Ser. 99-C1, Class F, 6418, 2031 556,463
Ser. 99-C1, Class G, 6,415, 2031 851,777
Ser, 98-C4, Class G, 5.65, 2035 ¢# 417,870
Ser, 28-C4, Class H, 5.65, 2035 BO&, 000
LB-UBS Commsercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 0B-C1, Class AM, 6.157s, 2041 1,623,000
Ser. 06-C7, Class A2, 5,35, 2038 2,253,256
Ser, 07-C2, Class XW, 10, 0,499, 2040 8,204,233
LB-UBS Commergial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRB Ser. 02-C7, Class H, 5.7475, 2036 4,110,000
FRB Ser. 04-C1, Class G, 5.0775, 2036 7,400,000
Ser, 06-C7. Class XW, 10, D.657s, 2038 41,196,186
Ser, 05-C5, Class wCL, 10, 0.465s, 2040 88,971,202
Ser. 05-C2, Class ¥EL, 10, 0.353s, 2040 142,065,927
Ser. 06-C7, Class XCL, 10, 0,267, 2038 B8 B38 BE3
Sor. 07-C2, Class ¥CL, 10, 0,139, 2040 181,727,114
Ser, 05-C7, Class ¥CL, 10, 0,103s, 2040 120,650,106
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Investars, Inc, Ser. 96-C2,
Class 15,10, 2.406s, 2028 A3.271
Merrill Lyncn Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser. 07-C1, Class A3, 5.847s, 2050 475,000
FRB Ser. 08-C1, Class AJ, 5,805s, 2051 F 1,828,000
Sor. 03-KEY1, Class C, 5.373s, 2035 3.163,000
Ser. 05-CKI1, Class AJ, 5.261s, 2037 1,632,000
Merrill Lynich Mortgage Trust 144s
Ser. 04-KEYZ, Class XC, 10, 0.855s, 2059 15,288,451
_Ser, 05-MCPL, Class XC, 10, 0. 19@s, 2043 38,085,568
Merrill Lynch,/Countrywide Commeerdal Mortgage Tnust FRE
Ser, 06-4, Class AZFL, 0.3345, 2049 965,470
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$1.703.980
344109

536,030
165,017

21,084 444
1539010
2132 384
1521,000
1,540,000
1.126.826

887.397
B69.817

1475711
231909
182,120

570375
B56.025
427,151
820320

1.848.110
2,253 256
153222

4,128,244
6431725
B78.715
1228247
Gag 297
050 820
2556901
714007

54

309.011
1783417
3.216.128
1.663.661

176,784
444,535

950,445
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Commercial mortgage-backed securities conf.
Mezz Cap Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
Ser. 04-C1, Class X, 10, 9,144 2037 F $1.966,742 $68,500
Ser. 06-C4, Class X, 10, 5.9598s, 2045 5,840,451 582,293
Ser. 05-C3, Class X, 10, 5.806s, 2044 1831911 133,913
Margan Stanley Capital |
Ser. 06-HQY, Class B, 5,832s, 2044 5,140,000 6,205,115
FRB Ser. 06-T23, Class A2, 5 3,/ds, 2041 669,468 676,417
Ser. 07-I0714. Class A2, 5615 2049 1.401.343 1,448,515
FRB Ser. 07-HG12, Class A2, 5.576s. 2049 1,283,061 1,317,704
06-HQ10 Ser. 06-HO10, Class AJ, 5.3895, 2041 1943000 1,680,695
Morgan Stanley Capital | 1444 Ser. 03-106, ClassC,
5.126s, 2041 2.350,000 2,403,345
Maorgan Stanley ReREMIC Trust 1444 FRB Ser, 10-C308,
Class A3SB, 5.843s, 2043 430,286 444,270
Momura Asset Securities Corp. 1444 Ser, 28-D6, Class B1,
s, 2030 2,002,000 2132130
TiAA Real Estate (DO, Ltd. Ser. 03-14. Class E. Bs, 2038 1.607 898 160,750
TiAA Seasoned Commaental Mortgage Trust FRB Ser. 07-C4,
Class A, 5.585¢, 2039 5,105,000 3.357.126
Wachgowia Bank Commarcial Mortgage Trusk
Ser, 05-C17, Class D, 5,396s, 2042 5,740,000 6,471,004
Ser. 06-C 29,10, 0.387s, 2048 192,802 855 2,759,009
Ser. 07-C34, 10, 0.3475, 2046 ) 16,806,172 203,355
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortoage Trust 1444
FRB Ser, 03-C8, Class F, 5.206s, 2035 2,569,000 2632,711
Ser. 05-C18, Class ¥, 10, 0.335s, 2042 23,507,956 164.556
Ser. 06-C26, Class XC. 10, 0.042s, 2045 11,138,704 24,842
WAMLU Commarcial Mortgage Securitios Trust L1444 Ser. 05-C14,
Class G, 5.725, 2036 1249000 112,391
Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency) (12.3%) 1ETAN
ASG Resecuritization Trest 1444
FRAESer. 09-7, Class GRS, 5.13%, 2036 1.700,000 1,682,108
_FRBSer 10-3,0.5075, 2045 - 6,650,000 3,845,400
Citigroup Mortoage Loan Trust, Inc. Ser. 2005-WF2,
Class AF4, 49645, 7035 2.364,007 2,328,547
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc. 1444 FRB Ser, 09-7,
Class 442, 2.6145, 2035 ) 4,500,000 3,555,000
Countrywioge Alternative Loan Trust FRB Ser. 05-16,
Class Ad, 0.451s, 2035 3,020,231 2,205,376
Countrywide Assat Backed Cortificates
FRB Ser. 05-AB1, Class A3, 0.5115, 2035 13,039,318 11,453,153
FRB Ser. 07-11, Class 2A2, 0.331s, 2047 _ 6,831,758 6,685,122
First Plus Home Loan Trust Ser, 97-%, Class B1, 7,795,
2023 (In default) ! 134,710 13
GSAA Hore Ecquity Trust
FREB Ser. 04-10, Class AF4, 4819, 2034 3735135 3.924.048
FRE Ser. 05-8, Class A3, 0.641s, 2035 12,629,389 10,166,658
FREB Ser. 05-9, Class 2A3, 0.581s, 2035 7,919,102 6,389,619
FRE Ser. 05-5, Class AZ, 0.581<, 2035 17 694 335 14,951,713



MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (39.2%)" cont.
Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency) conf,
MASTR Adjustable Rate Mortgaoe Trust FRE Ser. 04-13,
Class 347, 2.627s, 2034
Opteumn Mortgage Acceptance Corp. FRBE Ser. 05-3, Class A2,
0.551s, 2035
Structured Asset Mortgage investments, Ing. Ser. 07-AR4,
Class X2, 10,0 1/2s. 2047
WAMU Martgage Pass-Threugh Certificates

FRB Ser. 2004-AR13, Class ATBZ, 0.74s, 2034

FRB Ser. U5-AR11, Class A1CS, 07215, 2045

FRB Ser, 05-AR10, Class AL1C3, 0.711s5, 2045

FRB Ser, 05-AR11, Class A1B2, 0.6615, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-AR13, Class ALCA, 06415, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-ARB, Class 2AB2, 0.631s, 2045

FRB Ser, 2005-AR17, Class A1B2, 06215, 2045

FHB Ser, 05-AR11. Class ALE3, 06115, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-ARS, Class 2ACT, 0.601s, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-AR2, Class 2423, 0.591s, 2045

FRE Ser, O5-ARB, Class 2AB2, 0.581s, 2045

FRB Ser, 2005-AR17, Class A1BS, 0.561s, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-ARZ, Class 2421, 0.5415, 2045
Wells Fargo Mortoage Backed Securities Trust FRE Ser. 04-H,
Class Al, 2.615s, 2034

Total mortgage-backed securities (cost $500,131,292)

CORPORATE BOMDS AND NOTES (26.8%)"

Basic materials {2.1%)

-ﬁ._irgas, Inc. s, unser. ursub, notes 3 1.{'4';. 2015

Alleghary Tochrologies, IRe. 5r. LRt

ursub. notes & 3/8s, 2019

Celanese LS Holdings, LLC sr. notes 5 7/85. 2021 (Germarny)

CF Industnﬁ Inc. mmpawguatantysr unsec,
ursub, notes 7 1/8s, 2020

Dorntar Corp. company guadanty sr. unsec,

umsub, notes 6 1/4s, 2042 (Canada)

Eastman Cr'e-mlcal Co. sr. unsec. notes 4.8z, znqz
Eastman Cremical Co, sr. unsec, notes 3.65, 21:!22
Enstman Chemical Co, . unsec, unsub. nates &,5s, 2018
Eastman Chemical Co, er. unsac, unsub. nates 2.4z, 2017
Georgia-Pacific, LLC sr. unsec. unsub, notes 7 3/4s, 2029

Georgia- -Pacific, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. notes 5.4s, 2020

Intarmational Paper Co. 1. unsac. notes 9 5/8s 3019
International Paper Co. sr. unsec. notes 8.7s, 2038
Intarnational Paper Co. sr. unsac, notes 7.95s, 2018
LyondellBasell fndustries MV srundec. notes &5, 2021
(Metherlands)

Mosaic Co, i_ThE] st unsec, notes 3 3/4s, 2021

Packaging Com. of America sr, unsec, ursub, notes 3_9:_:. 2022
FPG Industries, bnc, &2, unsec, unsub., debs. 745, 2019

$4,100,000
5,659,557
130,690,633

13,678,784
5421173
13,688,036
5,666,551
22,715,242
10,808,574
7,545,173
1505668
5871074
12112279
9,510,073
2,244 530
2,855,489

1,756,171

Principal amount
2485000

835,000
835,000

415,000

645000
1,745,000
1,245,000

300, DD'D
395 Dﬂ-l:ll
470,000
2,120,000
028,000
510,000
1,400,004

875,000
640,000
945,000
1,130,000
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$4,192,250
4,867,219

2.801,332

11.626.966
5,794,821
9,444,745
4,844,885

15,730,305
9,349,417
5,885,236
5,468 646
4.843.636

10,961,613
8,178,663
1773404
2584218

1.731.294
177,035,957

563,314,349

$515.740

1067838
929,981

525,997

697,074
1,894,163
1317.445

356,857

409,851

E47.988
2516124
1,315,180

782430
1.820.543

1,011,719
624,278
876,025

1,400,437
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Basic materials cont.

Ria Tt Finance LSA, Lid. company guaranty sr, unsec,

notes 5,25, 2040 (Australia) 52 475,000 £2, 970,567

Rock-Tenn Co. 1444 st. unsec. notes 4.9s, 2022 407.000 442314

Fack-Tenn Ca. 1444 st ursec, notes 4.45s, 2019 393,000 426,146

Fohm & Haas Co. st unsec. unsub. notes 7.85s, 2029 1,815,000 2482984
Sealed Air Corp. sr.notes 7 7/8s, 2017 725,000 172125

Sealed Aur Corp, 1A4A notes 5 5/8s, 2013 678,000 694,950

Teck Resources Limited sr. notes 10 3/4s, 2019 (Canada) 82,000 38,740

Temple Inlmd Inc. 5. unsEC. urrsub notes & 5;35. 2018 1 nanmn 1 !.ﬂﬁ 538

Union Carbeide Carp. 5r, unseL. unsul, bands 7 I.-"ds- 2096 135,000 163,726
Westvaro Corp, comipany guaranty se. unsec,
unsub. notes 7.955. 2031 _ 465,000 616,352
Xstrata Fimance Canada, Ltd, 1448 company
guaranty sr. unsac, notes 65, 2041 (Canada) 590,000 644,975
watrata Finance Canada, Lid, 1444 company
guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 5.85. 2016 (Canada) 610,000 691,200
Capital goods (0.5%) WB0AT
B/E Anrospace, Inc. s1 unsec. unsub. notes 5 1/4s, 2022 1,085,000 1,133,825
Legrand 54 unsec, unsub. debs. B 1/2s, Z-EIEE (France) 1,393,000 1,815,716
FaricerHanﬂlfmCﬂrp 51, unsec, unsub. nates Ser, MTN,

6 1/45, 2038 435,000 605,142
Republc Services, InC. company guaranly si. umsec,

_Mobes 5,7s, 2041 595,000 738,347
Republic ser'.r-:e-:. Inc. cmnmn;.- gu.:lrmt;.r:u unsec.
notes 3.8s, 2018 T20.000 709,457
Fegubht Sarices, INC. COMPAany Quaranty St UASEE,
unsub. notes 5 1/2s, 2009 660,000 Th2.459
United Techrologies Corp. se. ursec, notes 5.75, 2040 100,000 134,568
United Techrologies Corp, 5. unsec, unsub, notes 4 1/2s, 2042 905,000 1,040,902
United Techrolegies Corp, 5. ursec, unsuty. notes 3.1, 2022 560,000 602,982
Communication services (2.6%) e
Armerica Mavil SAR de OV compainy uaranty &7 unses.
unsub. notes 6 1/8s, 2040 (Hexico) BE0.000 1,162,168
America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty unsec,
unsub. noles 2 3/8s, 2016 (Mexico) 670,000 £98,199
American Tower Corp. sr. unsec. notes 7s, 2017 # 1,210,000 1,453,048
ATET. Inc. 57, unsec. unsub. bonds 5 1525, 2018 1,160,000 1,408,553
ATET, Inec. 5r. ungec. unsub. notes B.3s, 2033 1,535,000 2,055,215
Bestsouth Capital Funding unsec. notes 7 7,85 2030 1.570,000 2,140,554
CenturyLink, Inc. sr. unsec. debs. Ser. G, 6 7/8s, 2028 2,025,000 2,130,642
CenturyLink, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub, notes Sae P, 7.65, 2039 B55,000 B76,376
Comcast C;n'rn mr'wan'gr ﬁu&aﬂw ST, Unsec.

_unsub. notes 6,955, 2037 700,000 972411
Corning, Inc. sr, wnsec. unsub, notes 5 3/4s, 2040 265,000 327,229
Cravwm Casthe Tawers, LLC 1444 company
guaranty sr. notas 4 883s, 2020 1.915.000 2,188,315
DI5H DBS Corp, company guaranty sk unsec, notes 6 3,/4s, 2021 1,635,000 1,820,981
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Cemmunication services cont.
France Telecosm sr, unsec. unsul. notes 5 3.-’35 2019 (France) F830,000 $1.055.808
France Talecom sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 1/8s, 2021 (France) B8S, 000 984 595
Frontier Communications Corp, sr, unsec. notes 8 1/25, 2020 B00,000 524,000
HBCUnwersaI Meda, LLC sr. unsec, wunsub. notes b. ds ECHEII 845,000 1107421
Quwest Cnrp notes & 3/ds, 2021 1,767,000 2091381
Regers Communizatsons, Inc. company guaranty notes 6,83,
2018 (Canada) 610,000 T12055
SBA Tower Trust 124A company guaranty v notes 5.101s. 2017 2,425,000 2724462
58A Tm Trust 1444 notes 2.933s, 2017 280.000 287,746
TCl Communications, InC. compary guaranty ir, unsec.
ursub. dens. 7 7/8g, 2026 2,435,000 3520708
Telzcom Halia Capital 54 company guaranty 5. Unsec,
ursub, notes 5.1755, 2004 (Raly) 955,000 1012917
Telefonica Emisiones SAU campany gualarly 57, UNSEC.
notes 5.462s, 2021 (Spain) 1,500,000 1524375
Tedefonica Emisiones SAL COMmpany Quaranty sr. unsec.
ursub, notes 6.221s, 2017 (Spainy 345,000 372600
Time Warmrca}e Inc. :umpﬂ'rfg.ﬂrm'ly r, notes 7. 3& 2038 1, 1&5 000 ]_.&15,5?4
Time Warner Cable, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. b 3/4s, 2018 355,000 449,088
Time Warner Cable, Inc. COMpany Quaranty sr., unsec.

_ ursub, notes & 3;"45 2039 350,000 467.168
Tirme Warnertah'a InC. comipanny gmranty SF. UNSEC.

ursub, notes 51425, 2041 B5.000 98,847
Tirme Warner Cal:ne, INC. coMmpany uaranty Sr. UNsec.
ursUb. notes 4 142, 2042 160,000 162 407
Verizon Communicatians, Inc. s, unsec, notes 7.355, 2089 424,000 652,976
Venzon Communications, Inc, sr, unsec,
urisub, notes 8 3/4s, 2018 856,000 1.198,272
_'h'enzm Mew Jersey, II'II.'. debs. 8s, 2022 640,000 873,394
Verizon Pennsyluama Inc. debs. B. 355., 2050 795,000 1049615
Verizon Virginia, Inc. debs. Ser. A, 4 5/8s. 2013 219.000 222.297
Consumer cyclicals (2.5%) o e
ADT Corp. (Tha) 1444 company guaranty sr. Unsec,

notes 4 7/8s, 2042 930,000 1,000,053
.ﬂDTEum{ThE} 1444 Company guaranty sr unsec.
notes 3 1_.-"25 2022 1,300,000 1352529
Advance Auto Parts, Inc. Company Quaranty s unsec.
notes 5 3/4s, 2020 1,095,000 1.270.460
Autonation, Inc. COMIPENY GUAFANEY S LNSEC. Nes TS L 2'013 445,000 724, -I}H
CBS Corp, company guaranty s, unsec, dehs nl:-tes ?‘i‘?’&s 2’-]30 2,400,000 3,369,758
Choice Hatels International, Inc. COmpany

guaranty sr. ursec, unsub. notes 5,75, 2020 1,195,000 1,292,094
DIRECTY Holdings, LLC/TIRECTV Financing Cao., Inc. company

guaranty sr. ursec, notes 6.35s, 2040 805,000 964,102
DIRECTY Hnﬂlngs LI.C..-"I:HFIEET\-' Financing Ca,, Inc, company

guaranty sr. unsec, nsub. notes 5 7,/8s, 2019 1,670,000 1.5972.773
Expedia, Inc. company quaranty sr. unses.
ursub, notes 5.95¢, 2020 950,000 1048924
Ford Mater Co, sz, unsec, unsub. nates 7.45, 2046 350,000 424,375

Income Fund 33
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 CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (26,8 ‘Principal amount value
Consumer cyclicals conf.

_Ford Motor Credit Co,, LLC s¢. unsec, notes 55, 2018 $350,000 $1.047.832
Ford Mator Credit I:‘_u LLC sr. unsec, nates 4. 20?5 2016 2,760, 000 2,939,441
Ford Mator Credit Co,, LLC sr. unsec, wnsub. m:l:esﬁ 3.-"-!-5 2&21 740,000 _&15.455
Limited Earands, inc. company guaranty ST, unsec.
nates 5!135 2021 840,000 963,200
Limited ands inc. sr. noles 55..-’3& 022 B20.000 BB5.600
Macy's Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr, unsec.
rates 5 1/8s, 2042 240,000 271,141
Macy's Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr, unsec.
rotes 3 7/8s, 2022 360,000 395,780

_Marriott International, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub nutesSﬁ 2019 TE0.000 798,717
News Amarica Hml:hngs Inc. company guaranty sr, wnsec,
debs. 7 3/4s. 2024 870,000 1,113,478
Mews America Holdmgs, Inc. debs, 7 3/4s, 2045 790,000 1,125,481
NV, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.95s, 2022 740,000 764,058
Owens Corning company guaranty SF. unsec. notes 95, 2019 672000 856,800
CVC, I, 1444 5r. nates 7 1/8s, 2017 535,000 505,042
Time wWarner Entertainment Co., LP debs. A3/8s, 2023 ) 1.450.000 2066650
Time Wﬁmﬂr. Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds 7.7s, 2032 LB:::EI 000 2,710,955
Tume WamEr Inc. cm‘lpamrgwmtysr unsed, notes 4.7, 2021 365,000 d25 EI'BE
Time Wamer. Inc. debs.9.15s, 2023 E-?E.ﬂm 964 922
Tn'mla Motor Cred: tCum &, unsec. Lnsub. nntesl 35, 2022 2075000 2, MB A45
Walt Disney Co, (The) st unsec. notes 2 3/4s5, 2021 1,305,000 1,380,655
Walt Disney Co, (The) sr, unsec. unsul, notes 4 3.."335. 2041 520,000 608,698
Consumer staples (2.6%) RAN0
Altria Group, Inc. companyy guaranty s unses, notes 9.7s, 2018 308000 438,275
Altria Group, Inc, COMpAany Quaranty sr. unsec.
motes 9 1/4s, 2019 586,000 826,943
Altria Group, Inc, company guaranty 57, Urnsec,

_unsub. notes 2.85s, 2022 2,585,000 2.588,069
Arheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide, Ing. company
guaranty sr. unsec. unsub, notes 8.25, 2039 1,315,000 2,207,936
Bacardi, Ltd. 1444 unsec. notes 4 1.-"'25 2021 rBen'nera) Ldiﬂ.ﬂm 1,602,848
CanptreilSman debs. 8 ?r'sa 202 ?ls.nm 1,045,495
Cormections Corporation of Amenca company
guaranty sr. notes 7 3/4s, 2017 456,000 #96,873

OS5 Caremark Cum 51, unsac. unsub, notes &. ﬁs 2019 LE-iU,DﬂIU 1,688,511
C'u‘SPas.&ancum Trust 144A COMmpany
guaranty sr. nobes 7.507s, 2032 2,194,319 2,929,658
Darden Restaurants, Inc. sr, unsec. unsub, notes 6.8, 2057 2, zmcm 2,893,190
Delhaize Gn:up comgany guaranly s, unsec. notes S, 75, 2040
EEl%fglLa‘n) 2,250,000 2120150
Delhaize Group cormgpany guearanty s, unsec, notes 4 1/8s,

2019 (Belgum) 895,000 880,094
Diageo Investment Corp. compary guaranty s, unsac,
debs. Bs. 2022 B . 675,000 972,084
Diageo Investmant Corp. cOmMpany Quaranty sr. unsec.
unsub. nates 4 1/45, 2042 1700000 1875511
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Consumer staples cont.
General Mills, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 5,655, 2019 190,000
Kraft Foods Gmup inc. 144A company guarant'_.- . UnSec.
ursiUb, notes b 1425, 2040 3,905,000
Kraft Foods Group, Inc. 1444 company guaranty sr unses,
urrsuly, notes Ss, 2042 420,000
Kroger Co, company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.4s, 2017 605,000
Kroger I:D. sf. notes 6,155, 2020 200,000
Mv:Dn:mIdchrp sr.unzec, Ser. MTH, 635, 2038 680,000
McDenald's Corp. 5r. unsec. bonds 6.35. 2057 530.000
MchnaIdchm, SE UNsec. notes 5. '-|'5, 2039 775,000
Malsan Coces Bre-.wng Co. mmp;ny guarantg.- . LINGBE,
unzub. notes 5s, 2042 610,000
SABMiller Holdings, Inc, 1444 company quaranty 57, unsec.
noles 4 98g, 2042 630,000
Tyson Foods, Inc. company guaranty sr, unsec.
ursub, nates b.6s, 2016 _ 1.540.000
WPP Finance LIK company guaranty sr, unsec, notes Bs, 2014
{United Kingdom) 1.370,000
Energy (2.0%)
Access Midstream Partniars, LP/ACMP Finance Corp, company
Guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5 7/85, 2021 602,000
Anadarko Firance Co. company guaranty sr unsec.
ursub, notes Ser. B. 7 1/25, 2031 2,880,000
BG Energy Capital PLC 1444 company guaranty sf. URSec,
notes 4s, 2021 (United Kingdem) 200,000
[ Caplra Markets PLC COMDANY QUaranty 5. UnNsec.
ursub, notes 4.742¢, 2021 (United Kingdom) 1.860,000
BP Capita Marke!s PLC company Quasanty Sf, unsec.
ursub, notes 4 1,25, 2020 (United Kingdom) £20,000
Cenavus Energy, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub, notes 4,455, 2042
[Canaca) 985,000
DCP Midstream, LLC 1444 sr. unsec, notes 5.355, 2020 175,000
EOG Resources, IncC. 51, unsec. nobes 5 5/8s, 201% 340,000
Kerr-MoGee Comp. company guaranty sr. unsec.
ursub. notes 7 7/8s, 2031 885,000
_Marathan Petroleumn Corp. sr, unsec. unsuby, notes & L-"I'- 2041 525,000
Motiva Enterprises, LLC 1444 5. unsec. notes E.ﬂE& 2040 895,000
Noble Holding International, Ltd, company
guaranty sr. unsec, notes 6.05s, 2041 1,095,000
Petrahawk Energy Corp. company guaranty sf, unsec.
nales 7 1/4s, 2018 2,910,000
Pride hterrlamnaﬂ Inc, st. unsec. notes 7 7,/8s, 2040 2,160,000
Ras Laffan Liquefied Natural Gas Co.. Ltd, 144A company
_guaranty sr.notes 5 1/2s, 2004 (Qatar) 1,015,000
Spectra I:nerg:.r Capital, LLC company gunranrgrsr UMSEC.
notes 5,655, 2020 240,000
Spectra Enl!rgy' ._aputal LLE eompany guaranty &1 Unsec,
ursub. notes B.2s, 2018 135,000
Spectra Energy Capital, LLC . notes 85, 2019 650,000
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$233.540
5.445 233

490,506
735,001

J01.834
754,083
1.775.050

i
37,280,681

626,080
3932724
224,489
2.200.750
728,055
1,068,430
§57.456
420,597
1.216,864
679.235
1,252,592
1.265.805

3317287
3210167

1,099,753

164,381
§51.051
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 CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (26,8 ‘Principal amount value

Energy cant:
Statoil ASA company guaranty s unsac, notes 5,15, 2040
{Narway) $1,900,000 $2,419,762
Weatharford Bermiuda company Guaranty s unsec,
notes 9 5,/8s. 2019 584,000 773,691
‘Weatherlord International, INC, Comparty Guaranty s unsec.
Lnsub. notes 6.8s, 2037 205,000 238115
Weatharlord Internatianal, Inc. company Guaranly 56 unsec.
unsub. notes 6.35s, 2017 ) ) ) 240,000 280,298
Weatherford International, Ltd. company guaranty 61,/25, 2036 470,000 529538
Financials (9.9%) RROe
ABM Amro Bank NV 1444 sr, unsec. notes 4 1/4s, 2017
(Matherands) 4,460,000 4,834,506
AMac, Inc. 5r, unse. notes 6.9s, 2039 1,595,000 1,880,089
ﬂ.ﬂa-: In-: S, UNSeC. mtﬂsﬁ 45& EMI] 530,000 1,269,200
Armerican Express Bank FSB 58 unsec, FHN Ser, BEMT,
0.514s, 2017 1,035 000 1014802
American Express Co. st unsec. notes & 1.-'35 213 1,450,000 1,961,699
American International Gmup. Inc. jr. sulb. borids FRB
B,175s, 2068 1,414,000 1,763,965
Ammerican internaticnal Growp, INC. 5. unsec. Ser. MTH,
5.86s, 2018 2,440,000 2855479
Acn PLC jr. unsee. sub. notes B.205s, 2027 3255000 4,001,327
Assaciates Comp. of Narth America sr. unsec. nates 6.955. 2018 1,764,000 2,130,995
Assurant, Inc. sr. ungec. notes 6 3/45, 2034 1,485,000 1,731,049
AXASA LAAA |r unsec. sub. notes FRN 64635, 2049 (France) 1,630,000 1536,275%
Banco do Brasil SA 1444 ynsec. sub. notes 5 7/8s, 2022

(Brazil) 1,365,000 2143173
Bank of America Corp. sr. unsec. unsub notes 5 ?,-"Bﬁs 2042 840,000 1 CIE? 2"95
Barik of Armerica Carp, sub, nates 7 3/4s. 2015 1,485,000 1,654,057
Bark of America NA sub. notes Ser. BKNT, 5.35. 2017 005,000 1,016,021
Barclays Bank PLC 144A sub. notes 10.179s, 2021
(United Kingdom) 2,881,000 3A21.041
Barclays Bank PLC 1444 unsec. sub. notes & 055 2017
{Linibed Kingdom) 2815000 3074492
Bear Stearrs Cas., Ine. (The) s nates 645, 2017 1,020,000 1,222 489
Bear Stearns Cos., Inc. (Thel sr. unsec. notes 7 1/4s, 2018 1.685.000 2096720
Capital One Bank USA NA sub, notes 8,85, 2019 1,050,000 1,406,545
Citigroup, Inc; sr. unsec, notes 5 L-"Bis 2018 _B0.000 85,582
Cmgmup Inc. sr. umsec. sub, FRN 0. 5?55. 2016 1,961,000 1,842,538
Citigroup, Inc. unsec. sub. notes 6 5/8s, 2&32 508,000 583,655
Citigroup, Inc. unsec. sub. notes 6 1/85. 2036 1,615,000 1,788,257

ENA Flrlartrai(urj:i 5P UNSEL. Lnsul. notes 5 3,-"4s 2021 580,000 bB3, 332
Cnmmnnweallh Bark of Australia 144A <. unsec, notes 5s,
2019 {Australia) 510,000 501,457
Comrmonwealth Bark of Australia 1444 sr. urses,
rates 3 3,/4s, 2014 (Australia) 100,000 105,450
'DDR Corp. s1.ungec, unsub. notes 7 7/85. 2020 910,000 1,183,500
Dukz Realty LP S, UNSEC, rtnu'.-sﬁ L"Es EﬂlE—l 330,000 dEl 671

%5 Income Fund
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Financials conf.
Drukez Realty LP sr. unsec. notes & 1/45, 2013%
Erac'l.liﬁ.-"—lnm:e Co, 1444 sr. notes 4 1.-"25 2021
FiA Card Services, M b, ngtes Ser, BRNT, 7 :I..-"&ﬁ 2012
GAID': Flnarc-al E:urp. notes '::.Hs. 201&_
General Electric Cagital Cn-rp. sr. unsec, 5 5/8s, 2018
General Electric Capital Corp. sr. ungec. FRM Sar. MTH,
0.638s, 2016
_Genworth Financial, Inc. sr. unsec, unsub. nates 7 5{35. 2021
Gaoldman S.nch:s Gmun Ir'r_ {Thed s, notes 7 L-"Es 2019
_Goldman Sachs Group. Inc. (The) 5r, unsec. B.155, EDIE
Goldman Sachs Groug, Inc. (The) SI..th notesﬁS.Ms. 2&3?
Hartfard Financial Sem"EEma.rn I (The) sr. unsec.
ursub, notes B 5/8s, 2040

HBOS PLC 14dA s ursec, sub, notes 6 3/4s, 2018
{United Kingdom)

HBDSPLC 1444 unsec, sulb, bonds &5, 2033 (United Kingdom)
_Haaith Care REIT. Inc. sr, unsec. notes 4 1.-"&5 2019=
H:ghwncu: Re.allyu? s, unsec. bonds 5. B, 17w

_ HSBC Holdings PLC sub. notes & U?s 2037 (United Kingdom)

leahin Entermses LF‘,-"I:ahn Entemrtse-s Finance Coep,
COMparky guaranty Sr. unsec. nmes?ﬁ.-"-iﬁ 2016

IMG Barik MY ldemsec. notes 3 EMS EDI‘.I' [Hetherlm:fs}
_International Lease Finance Corp, st. unsec. notes 6 .u’d‘s 2019

Intennatlnnal Lease Flnan-cu Corg, 51, unsec,
urnsub, notes 4 7/8s, 2015

* IPMorgan Chase Bank NA sub, notes Ser. BKNT, 65, 2017
JPMgrgan Chase Bank NA sub. notes Ser. BRINT, €5, 2017
_Liberty Mutual Group, Inc, 1444 notes & 125, ?ﬂﬁ'ﬁ

Lloyds 5B Bank PLC COMPany QUranNty sr, unsec.

sub. notes Ser. MTH, & 1.."'25, 2020 (Unized Kingdom)

Loews C-:rp notes 5 1/4s, ?Cllﬁ

Macuuar!e Bark Ltd. 1444 unsec. sub. niotes 6 5/8s, 2021
(Australia)

/ Massamus-r:h‘s Hul:ual Lll‘u msulance CD JMA rutﬂsﬁ ?.rfﬁs 2039
Memll L}rncn &Co..Inc, jir sul, bonds 7 3/4ds, 2038

MetLlle Global Funding | 1444 sr. unsub. notes 5 1/85, 21]14
Me‘rrl:rl::dllan Life Insurance Ca. 144#. ursec, sub, nates . Bs— 213?5
Margan S!anle_u,-' sr. unsec. notes Ser, MTH, § 3/4s, 2016

MPT Operating Partnerskip LP/MPT Finance Corp, company
guaranty s urget, nates 67/85, 2021 ¢

Mationwice Flr\an:tal SErViCes, Inc. notes 5 :r..l’B&. 21:]15
Nationwige Health| Pmpa’hes, Inc. unsac. notes & l,-"-'ls 20130
Mationwice Mulual Insurance Co, 1444 notes 9 3/8s. 2039

_ H-urdﬂa B-ank AB 1447 sub m-tes 4 ?.-"Bs 2021 {Smdan]
OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc., Mmmrm 75, 2053
Pac:fu: LIFECDrp 1444 51 notes 65, 2020

Primerica, Inc. s, Unsec. Lunsub. nates 4 3 ds, 2082
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$64,000

2,235,000
1.695,000

455,000
2,405,000

895,000

3.230.000

940,000
295,000

350,000

3,655,000

1.175,000
2,520,000
825,000
835,000
3.945,000

670,000

715,000

895,000

1,142,000

404,000
1,311,000
1,715,000

4,335,000
385,000

2.880.000

2,305,000

1,535,000
715,000

3,000,000

970,000

1,090,000
Erﬂﬂ Dﬂﬂ
660,000

85.000

5160000
1010000
1,575,000

357,000

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

$65.840
2,458,303
1,698,044

507.966
2,856,748

873.205
3.397.288
1,179,991

696,768
1043173

4,709,705

1,245,500

2211854
£93.421
827,419

4843512

700,150
757107
962005

1194960
477.795

1537428

1925890

4,722,549
431,269

3.172.320
3,547,704
2022697

764,082
3,967,158
anm:'

1.177.200
527.446
£60,487
122429

5459,79

1.050.295

1752271
393,842
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Financials cont,
Prudential Covered Trust 20121 144A company guaranty mige,
notes 2.997s, 2015
Prudentia! Financial, Inc. 52, notes 7 3/8s, 2019
Prudential Fimancial, Inc. s notes 6.2, 2015
Prudentsal Financial. Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6 5/85. 2040
Prudern it Holdings, LLE s notes FRM Ser. AGH 1. IEs 2017
Fabobank Nederland 1444 r, unses. suly. notes FRN 11s,
perpetual maturity (Notherlands)
Rayonisr, Inc., comgpany guananty sr, unsec.
unsub. notes 3 3/4g, 20228
Rayal Bank of Scotland Group PLC sr. sub. notes FRN 9 1,2,
2022 (United Kingdom)
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC sr. unsec.
_unsub. notes €.45, 2019 (United Kingdom)
Santander ksuances 5.A, Uniparsonal 1444 bank
guaranty unsec. sub. notes 5 9115, 2016 (Spain)
SL Green Realty Coro /5L Green Operating Partnershig)
Reckson Operating Partnership s unsec. notes 55, 2018w
Tanger Properties, LP gr, umsec. notes 6 1/8s, 20208

TD Ameritrade Holding Corp, company cuaranty sf. unsec,
unsub. notes 5,65, 2019

Teachers In:umm:e&ﬁ.nnuqty Association of America 1444
notes 6.85s, 2039

'I.rnmadnHealtyLPsr unsec. unsub. notes 4 L-’as 15k
Wachevia Bank NA sub. notes Ser. BKNT. Gs. 2017
_WEA l-'lnanl:e LLC 1444 comparny guaranty sr. notes 7 1/8s, 2018

WEA Flndnr.e LLC.?’WT Fimance Aust. Poy. Ltd. 1444 mmnam
guaranty sr. unsec. notes b 3/4s, 2019

Walls Fargo Bank MA untec. subs. notes FRM 06475, 2016

Willis Group Holdings Ltd, company guaranty s ursec.
unsub. notes 3 3/4s. 2021

Wlllla Grﬂup North #rnema. Iﬂl: company guarant'_.' b, 25 .Ed}l?

Health care (0.6%)

Aptna, Inc, sr. unsec, unsub, notes 6 3,/4s, 2087

CIGNA Cowp. &r. unsse. unsob. notes 5 3/8s, 2042
Fresenius Medical Care LIS Fingnice . inc. 1444 comparny
guaranty sr. unsec, notes 5 5/8s, 2019

Fresenius Medical Care US Fmarr:e Inc. 1444 cumparry'
guaranty sr. notes 5 3/4s, 2021

Quest Diagnostics, Inc. company guaranty &1, Unsoc,
mates 6,955, 2037

Guest Diagnostics, Inc, company guaranly S ursec,

notes 4 3/4s, 2020

UnitedHealth Group, Ine. 5. unses. unsub. notes 4 5/85 2041
Watson Pharmacaaticals. Inc. sr unsec, notes 4 5/8s, 2042
Watson Pharmaceuticals, Inc. s unsec, rotes 3 L.-"-':s, 2022
‘Watson Pharmaceuticals, Inc. &1, unsec. notes 1 1/85, 2017
WEI-Pomt Inc, notes ?s 2019

38 Income Fund
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$313.500
340,000
300,000
1,135,000
160,000

1,255,004
570,000
2,640,000
320,000
2600000

1,185,000
645,000

2SO0

1,555,000
1,180,000
1,880,000
1,070,000

810.000
1,180,000

750,000
510.{103

1,660,000
660,000

356,000
839,000
1,045,000

244,000
975,000
345,000
275,000

§5.000
225,000

$325,509
436,681
330,472
1,485,027
153,630

1678563
587519
3025176
418,608
2,652,000

1,280,441
769,251

1154201

2, 153 4?1
1 zbd Lh:-b
2,244,444
1,316,437

1,002,591
1,150,350

851,812

585,694
142,742,098

2,254,260
778.103
374,630
867,243

1,389,022

272,660
1,000,474
3711877
281187
66.026

287.450

8,053,292
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Technology (0.2%)

Brocade Communications Systems, Inc, company
guaranty sr. notes 6 7/8s, 2020

Brocade Commumications Systoms, Inc, company
cuaranty sr. notes & 5/8s, 2018

Deell, Ine. sr, unsec. notes 5 7/8s, 2019
Lexmark international Inc, 5r. unsec, notes 5.95, 2013
Xeros Corp, sr unsec, notes 4 1725, 2021

Transportation (0.5%)
Burlirgton Northarn Santa Fe Corp. . UNGer. notes
53/4s, 2018

Bullr‘gﬂnnmnrlhem S-antaF-e LLC sr. unsec. nnt1554:. 2041

Centinental Arfings, Inc, pass-through certificates
Ser. 97-44, 6.9, 2018

Centinental Airlines, Inc. pass-through certificates
SEI' EB l.ﬂ. B.E48s, 2017

C...M Cﬂru. 57, UN5&C, unsul. I'IC-IE543.-"45 2042

Marfalk Southerm Cum SF. UNSec. notes &S, 2111

Ryder System, Inc, st unsec, unsub. nates 2 1..5’2_5, 2018
Southwest Airlines Co, pass-through certificates Ser. 07-1,
6.155, M)22

Linion Pacsfic Corp. 1444 pass-thiowgh cedificates 5.214s, 2014

Umited AirLines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser, 07-A,
66365, 2022

Utilities and power (3.1%)

AEP Tenas Marth Co, & nates Ser. B, 5 1/2s, 2013
Appalachian P:r.r-we-.r Con S notes Ser. L, 5.8s, 2035
Arizona PubIIESEP".'u':E Cu 8¢ Unsec. notes 4 1/3s, 2&42
Atmas Energy Corp. sr. unsub. notes 6355, 2017
Beaver Valtey Funding Corp. sr. bonds 3s, 21}1?

Boardwalk Pipelines LP company guaranty sr. unsec
nates 5 7,/8s, 2016

Bruce Manshiakd Uit pacs- thrawegh certificates 685, 2024

- CMS Energy Corp. sr. unsec. notes 83/4s_2019
Commonwealth Edison Co. 1st mitge. sec, bonds 5 7/8s, 2033
Consolidated Edisan Co, of New York sr, unsec,
urisuby, notes 4.25, 2042
Dorminion Resources, Inc. sr, unsec, unsub, notes Ser, 07-4,
fs, 2017
Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC sr, mitge, notes 4 1/4s, 2041
EDP Finarce BV 1444 sr, unsec. unsub. notes s, 2018
(Metherlands)
El Paso Matural Gas Co. sr. nsec. urts.ub bonds B 4/8s, 2052
ElPaso F'lpelmﬂ Partners Clp-e'ahﬂg Cﬂ e Comipany
guaranty sr.ursec, notes 6 1/2s, 2020
Electricite oe France SMEDFJ 1444 notes 6,355, EDSE{ancE}

Enal Finance Intarnational 54 144A company
guaranty sr. UNsec, notes 51_..-"35, 20159 {Netherlands)

152/286

$580,000

230,000
145,000
855,000

1.115.000

365,000

1,520,000

B6S,B63

ﬂ]3 EIEI‘;
339 ﬂi}ﬂ'
1,115,000
410000

204,282
590,000

459,400

15,000
580,000
380,000
765,000
337,000

Q0,000
1,835,121
2,280,000

480,000

710,000

2460000
725,000

1,940,000
830,000

750,000
970,000

G495, 000
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§627.850

238625
171869
£73.5%0

1179214

3,091,148

o i
1,863 487

941,626

443 034
368,575
1410182
417,389

237.989
416.355

485 261
7032197

523,281
702,685
429,501
931.025
245,182

1,105.993
1,955 468
3.006,800

625.021

T8E.248

2.989.687
BL0.007

1,981,710
143, 211

905.400
1.357.507

135,567
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CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (26.8%)" cont.

Utilities and power cont.
Energy Transfer Partners LP s ursec, unsub, notes
6 1/2s, 2042

Enargy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec, unsub. notas
25, 2022

Enterprise Products Operating, LLC company
guaranty sr. unsec. unsub, notes 4 855, 2042

Iberdrala nternatiaral BY company guaranty sr. e,
unsub. notes & 3/45, 2036 (Spain)

ITC Holdings Corp, 1444 notes 5 7/8s, 2016

ITC Holdings Corp. 1444 sr. unsec. notes 6.055, 2018
Kansas Gas and Electric Co. bonds 56473, 2021
Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP sr. unsec, notes 6.855, 2020
MidAmarican Energy Holdings Co, bonds 6 1/8s, 2036
MidlAsmerican Energy Holdings Co, sr. unsec, bongds

6 1/ 2, 2037

MidAmerizan Funding, LLC sr. sec. bonds 69275, 2029
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 5. unsec. notes 6,355, 2038
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. sr. unsuby, 5.8s, 2037
PacifiCorp Sinking Fund 15t mige. 6 1/4s, 2037
Potomac Edisan Co. 1444 1st mtge. 5.85, 2016

PPL WEM Haldings PLC 1444 sr. unsec, notes 5 3/8s, 2021
{Linited Kingdom)

Tego Fnance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.
unsub, notes 5,572, 2017

Texas-Mew Mexico Power Co, 1444 1st mige. bonds 9 1/25, 2019

West Penn Power Co. 1444 1stmige. 5955, 2017
‘Westar Energy, Inc. sr, mtge, notesd 1/8s, 2042

Total corporate bonds and notes (cost $336,285,144)

MUNICIPAL BONDS AND NOTES (0.3%)*

CA State 6.0 Bonds (Build America Bonds), 7 1/25, 4/1/34
IL State G.0. Bonds

4.421s, 1/1/15

40715, 1/1714

Morth TX. Thruway Auth. Rev, Bonds (Build America Bonds),
6.718s, 1/1/49

O State U, Rev, Bonds (Build America Bonds), 4915, 6/1/40
Total municipal bonds and notes (cost $3,925,279)

PURCHASED SWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING (0.3%)"

Fixed right % to receive or (pay)/ Expiration
Floating rate Index/Maturity date date/strike
Barclay's Bank PLC
(1.75)/2 month LISD-LIBOR-BBA,/Dec-22 Dec-12/1.75
1.75/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA,/Dec-22 Dec-12/1.75
1.5/ month LSO-LIBOR-BEA/Dec-22 Dec-12/15

40 Income Fund

$2.265,000
780,000
1,220,000

510,000
890,000
330,000
561,362

1,425,000

1,000,000

410,000
360,000
295,000
785,000
450,000
835,000

3,230,000

340,000

2,840,000
£30,000
530,000

770,000

410,000
1,220,000

675,000
845.000

_m
‘amount

£26.171,000
26171000
78,712,000

153/286

Value

$2,859,488
892,090
1,313,952

552,273
1,016,500
358,654
610,813
1,820,227
1,314,759

566,143
483,103
407,724

1,025,766
647,709
997,053

3625826

412,288
5,845,944
990,743
576,678
44,752,112

$385,479,458

Valus

$1,038,576

435211
1,263,786

924,156
206,331
$4,658,060

$296,517
261,710
163,410
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PURCHASED SWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING (0.3%)" cont

Counterparty
MM%WMHW Expiration Contract
Credit Sulsse International
{225/ T month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ Mar-23€ Mar-13/2.2% $86,537,000
(233 month USD-LIBCR-BBA/Dec-22¢ Dec-12/2 139,987,000
Deutsche Bank AG
(2.25)/3 month LSD-LIBOR-BBA/ Mar-25 % Mar-13/2.25 86,537,000
Goldman Sachs International
(2.28)/Tmonth USD-LIBOR-BRA/ Mar-23 € Mar-13/2.25 6,537,000
2335/ 3month USD-LIBOR-BBA/ Dec-22 Dec-13/2 375 3 487,000
(2.325}/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEA/Dec-22 Der-12/2 325 5487000
2.8825/5 month USD-LIBOR-BEA,/Dec-42 Dec-12/2 8835 8,552,000
{2.8825)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA/Dec-42 Dec-12/2 BE2S 8,553,000
JPMorgan Chasa Bank NA
(233 month USD-LIBCR-BBA/Dec-22E Dec-12/2 136,598,000
{23/3 month USD-L BCR-BBA/ Dec-22 Dec-12/2 A5,910,000
Total purchased swap options cutstanding (cost $7,837 276)
LS. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS (0.2%)° Principal amount
LS. Treasury Bonds 4 625%, Fabruary 15, 20401 %1.011,000
L.5. Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.1250%,
February 15, 20401 454,969
LS, Treasury Motes 0, 750%, Septamber 15, 2013 20,000
LS. Treasury Motes 0.250%, Jure 30, 20144 574,000
U.5. Treasury Notes 2 5/8s, November 15, 2020 416,000
Total U.5. treasury obligations (cost $3,062,304)
FOREIGN GOVERNMENT AND AGENCY
BONDS AND NOTES (0.1%)" Principal amount
korea Development Bank s, unsec. unsub. notes 4s, 2006 FB00,000
Total foreign government and agency bonds and nates (cost $797,176)
SENIOR LOANS (—%)* ¢ Principal amount
Caesars Entertanment Qperating Co,, Inc. bank term loan
FRM Ser. BG, 5.461%, 2018 $200.422
SunGard Data Systerns, Ing, bank tarm isan FRN 1.9645, 2014 6,470
SunGard Data Systems, Inc. bank term ioan FEN Ser, B,
3.906s, 2016 134,059
Total senior loans (cost $321,245)
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (18.2%)° Principal amount/shares
Pubnam Money Market Liquidity Fund 0.16%L 141,049,783
SSaA Prime Moy Market Fund 0.12%» 1.002,000
Straight-A-Funding, LLC commercial paper with
an effective yield of 0.178% January 15, 2013 10,000,000
Straight-A-Funding, LLC commercial paper with
aneffective yield of 0.178%, Jamuary 7, 2013 15,000,000
Straight-A-Funding, LLC commarcial paper with
an effective yield of 0.178%. December 18, 2012 17 000,000

154/286
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Value

§522.510
482,955

522,210

522,510
186,799
3348
568,500
56,714

471,263
346.217
$4,405,062

Value
£1,392 6824

681,516
20,115
574,281
456,912
$3,125,648

Value

$864,835
$864,635

Value

§179.768
6473

134,227
$320,468

Value

£141,040,783
1.002.000

9.996.165
14,995,175

16,936,005
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LS, Treasury Bills with effective yields rmnging from
0.151% to 0, 167%, July 25, 2013 & 364,666,000 $54, 584,465
LS. Treagury Bills with an elfective yield of 0.104%,
December 13, 2012 4 ) 12,500,000 12,498,483
Total short-term investments (cost $261,124,041) $261,126,076
Total investments (cost $1,828,761,055) $1,941,939,569
Key to holding’s abbreviatians
BENT Bank Mote
FRE Foating Rate Bonds: the rate shown is the current interest rate at the close of the reparting pericd
FRM Floateng Rate Mobes: the rate shown i< the current interest rate at the close of the reporting period
G0 Bonos  General Qbligation Bonds
IFB Imverse Fioating Rate Bonds, which are securities that pay interest rates that vary inversely to

changes inthe market interest rates, As interest rabes rise, inverse floaters procuce bess current
incorme, The rate shown is the current interest rate at the close of the reparting period.

10 Interest Cnly

MTH Medium Term Notes

PG Princigal Qnly

TBA To Be Announced Comenitments
Motes to the fund's portiolic

Uintess noted otherwise. the notes o the fund's portfolio are for the dose of the fund's reparting period, which ran from
Meaverrber 1, 201 through Octaber 31, 3012 {the reporting period). Within the follow ng notes to the portfolio, references
to "ASC 820" reprosent Accounting Standards Codification ASC 820 Fair Waiue Moasirermonts snd Disclosures.

* Percentages indicated are based on net assets of $1.436 436,630,
t Noreincome-produding securnity.
# Theasecunity, in part or in entirety, was pledged and segregated with the broker to cover margin requirements for
futures contracts at the close of the reporting penod.
A Forward commitrent, in part o inentirety (Note 1)

« Senior loans are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, a5 amended, but contain certain restric-
tions an resale and cannot be sold publicly. These loans pay Interest at rates which adjust pericdically. The interest
rates shown for seniar loans are the current interest rates at the close of the reporting penad. Seniar loans are akso
subject to mandatory and,/or optional orepayment which cannat be predected. As a result, the remaning maturity
rmiay bee subrstantially kess than the stated maturty showe {Notes 1and 73,

§ Extended settiement diate on premium,

F |5 valued at fair value following procedures approved by the Trustees. Securities may be classified as Level 2 or
Level 3 for ASC 820 based on the securities” valuation inputs,

I Security was péedged, or punchased with cash that was pledged. to the fund for collateral on certain derivative
contracts (Note 1.

i Affiliated company (Mote &), The rate quaoted in the Sacurity description is the annuakized 7-day yield of the fund at
the close of the reporting period

P Sec ity was pledged, of purchased with cash that was pledged, 1o the fund for collateral on ceraiin danvalves
confracts. Therate quoted in the security description is the annualized 7-day yiskd of the fund at the close of the
reporting perod (Note 1)

R Heal Estate irvestment Trust

At the close of the repoarting period, the fund maintained liquid assets totaling $760.619.392 tocover certain
derjvatives contracts.
Dent abligations are considered secured unless otherwise indicated,

42 Income Fund
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1444 after the name of an issuer represents securities exermpt from registration under Rule 1444 under the Securn-
ties Act of 1933, as amenced  These securities may B¢ resold in transactions exempt from registration, narmally to

cualified institutional buyers.
See Mote | tothe financial statements regarding TBAS
The dates shown on debt obligaticns are the onganal matunty dates

FUTURES CONTRALCTS OUTSTANDING at 10/3112

Mumber of
contracts Walue
LL5, Treasury Bond 30 yr (Long) 712 $106,310.500
5. Treasury Note 5 yr (Long) 1.590 197,557,500
U5, Treasury Mote 10 yr (Long) 750 99,773,438
Total

WRITTEN SWAP OPTIONS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/12 (premiums $1,529,066)
Counterparty

Fixed Obligation % to recelve or (pay)/ Expiration
Floating rate index/Maturity date date/sirlke
Deutsche Bank AG
(L7583 month USD-LIBOR=-BBAMar-23 ¢ Mar=13/1.75
1.75/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEA Mar-23 E Mar-13/1.75

E Extended settlement date on premium

TEA SALE COMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/12 (proceads receivable $186,552,578)
Principal

Agency amount
Federal Mational Mortgage Association, 35,
Movamier 1, 2042 £42.000.000
Fedoral Mational Mortgage Association, 3s,
Movemnber 1, 2042 133,000,000
Government National Mortgage Association, 3s,
Mowvember 1. 2042 100,000
Total
INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10,/31/12
Uplront Payments
Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination  madeby
Motional amount recelved (paid) date  fundper annum
Barclay’s Bank, PLC
$81,681,000¢ $70,279 12/19/14  0.45%
10,980,000 & A6 468 12719717 090%
870,000 (69,339 12/19/42  2.40%
2031.000% 172,831 12/19/42 % month LiSD-
LIBOR-BBA
59,083,000 446,735 12/19/22 3 manth LISD-
LIBOR-BEA

156/286

date

Dec-12
Dec-12
Dec-12

Contract
amaount

$39,716,000
39,716,000

Settlemant
date

11/14/12
11/14/12

11720712

Payments
recelved by
fund per annum

3 month USD-
LIBOR-BBA
Imoath USD-
LIBOR-BBA
Jmaonth UsD-
LIBOR-BBA

Unrealized
appreciation;’
{depreciation)

B(524 278)
158,463
127,481

$(238,284)

Value

§5353.982
B38.126
$1,372,108

Value
$45.819.375
139,618,825

1,065,078

$186,503,278

Unrealized
appreciation/
(depreciation)

§(18.754)
22.642
(30.459)

41.845

368,745
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‘Swap counterparty/ pmﬁm Termination  made by received by appreciation/
Ban'Fa]r‘S- Bank. PLC cont.
2283814000  R(3.098.828) 12/18/22 1.75% T month LISD-
. B LIBOR-BBA $(2.724.200)
B3.770,000€ = 12/19/22 I month USD-
LIEDR-BBA 1.805% 244,877
38.528,000¢E — 12718/ 5 month USD-
LIEDR-BEBA 1LE3% 238,103
21.257.000¢ - 12/19/22 I manth LSD-
LIBOR-BBA LEl% 71,636
20,758,000 {4,300) 12/19/17 3 manth USD-
LIEOR-BBA 0.90% 40,745
Citibank, M.A.
2.182,000% — 10/7/21 3 month USD-
LIBEOR-BBA 5 0625% 69,148
11.20:0,000 € (12,787) 12/19/17 0.90% T month LISE-
_ _ LIBOR-BEA (36,874)
21.373,000€ (5,078) 12/19/14 3 manth USD-
LIEOR-BBA 0.45% 18,218
50,615,000 ¢ (580,373) 12/18/22 1.75% T mcnth LESD-
R LIBOR-BEA {501,681}
Credit Suisse International
132,164,000¢ (168,474) 12/19/14 3 manth USD-
LIBOR-BBA 0.45% (24.415)
156510008 (29.046) 12/19/17  Imanth USD-
LIBOR-EBA 0.90% 48,517
35,313,000 2,884,717 12/19/42 3 manth USD-
LIBDOR-BBA 2.40% 686,579
340.038.000€ 141513 12/19/14 0.45% T month LISD-
= LIBOR-BBA (39.970)
£f.641,000 € 37,489 12/19/17 0.90r% 3 manth LIS0-
LIBOR-BEA (04,189
30,593,000 {2.000,736) 12/19/42 2.40% I manth L50-
LIBOR-BBEA (642,535)
126,977,000 1,858 196 12/19/22 3 manth LSD-
LIBEOR-BBA 1.75% 1,690,585
512,020,000 (2.835,518) 12/19/22 1.75% T month LIS0D-
LIBOR-BEA (2,423 649)
Deutsche Bank AG
1,104,000 - 1047421 3 manth LS0-
LIBOR-EBA 304759 34,724
1,143,000¢ I55 12/18/17  0.90% T month LFSD-
LIBOR-BBA (2.128)
52.713,000¢€ (495,932) 12/19/22 1.75% 3 month L50-
LIBOR-BBA (426,351}
66,846,000 & B8, 216 12/19/22 I month USD-
LIBDR-BBA 1.75% 797.979

44 Income Fund
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INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10,3112 cont.

Upfront
Swap counterpartyy premium
Motional amount received (paid)
Goldman Sachs International
$14, 836,000 $010,221)
29,746,000 € (56,860)
184 554,000 € (2660,812)
124,107,000 1,346,836
28 663,000 1,823 903
JPMargan Chate Bank NA
2,505.000 ¢ 4,569
£8,598,000 & {215.468)
85,994,000 € 1,213,091
636,000E {64.216)
176,742 000 & -
The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
7.305,0000 (91.799)
Total

Termination
date

12/19/14
12/19/17
12/19/22
12/19/22

12/18/42

12/19/17
12/18/22
12/19/22
12/19/43

12/19/22

12/19/22

Payments
made by
fund per annum

3 monkh LISD-
LIBOR-BEA
0.90%

1.75%

3 manth LISD-
LIBOR-BBA

3 month LISD-
LIBOR-BEA

3 manth LUSD-
LIBOR-BRA

1.75%

3 month LrSD-
LIBOR-BBA
2408

3 month LIS0-
LIBOR-BEA

1.75%

¥ See Mote 1o the financial statements regarding extended effeclive dates,

TOTAL RETURN SWAP COMTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10,3112

: Uplrant
Swap counterparty) premium  Termination
Mothonal amount recatved (paid) date
Bank of America NA.
£2,496,945 f— 1/12/41
Barclay's Bank, PLC
12,068,257 - 1/12/36
4,680,372 - 1/13/41

Fixed payments
recaived (paid) by
fund per annum

4.00% (1 month
USC-LIBOR)

(5508 ) 1 month
UED-LIB0a

4.00% (1 manth
LSD-LIBORY

158/286

Payments
received by
fured per annam

0LA5%
Fmonth USD-
LIBOR-BBA

3 month USE-
LIBOR-BBA

1L75%

2.A0%

0.90%

Jmonth USD-
LIBOR-BBA

1.75%
3 month USD-
LIBOR-BBA

1.854%

3 month USD-
LIBOR-BBA

Total raturm
v by
or paid by fund

Synthelic TRS
Irvchen 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mae

poals

Synthetic TRS
Irdex 5,50%

30 year Fannie Mae

pools
Synthetic TRS
Imckex 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mae

pocls
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35,951
(121.417)
2,417.2000

1183015

677024

10,005
{124,920)

1.089.579
(35.893)

1,068 435

(82.158)
$(1,329,141)

Unirealized

(depreciation)

$17.328

(635.095)

32,420

Income Fund 45



Swap counterparty/
Barclay’s Bank, PLC cont.
$10.110,205

22,882 316

15,306,583

12,592,588

4,006,449

B.145,064

7.810,062

57.592.738

2.5372,378

59,795,290

31,318,385

46 Income Fund

1/12/38

1/12/40

1/12/38

1/12/40

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/40

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/38

1/12/41

received (paid) by
fund per annum

(6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

4.50% (1 manth
ISD-LIBOR)

(6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

5.00% (1 month
USD-LIBORY

5.0% (1 month
LSD-LIBOR)

4.00% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

4.00% (1 month
USD-LIBORY

{4.00%) 1 manth
USD-LIBOR

4.00% (1 month
LISD-LIBORY

4,00% (1 rmonith
LISD-LIBOR)

(6.500%) 1 month
WsD-LIBOR

5.00% (1 month
SD-LIBOR)
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recaived by
of paid by fund

Synkhetic MBX
Inclax &.50%

30 year Fannie Mag
pools

Synthatic MBX
Index 4.50%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Syntnetc MBX
Indlex 6.50%

Z0 year Fannig Mae
poals

Synthetic MBX
Indes: 5.00%

30 year Fanniz Mae
pools

Synthatic MBX
Index 5,00%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Synthate TRS
Inclex 4.00%

Z0 year Fanmie Moo
pools )
Synthete TRS
incle: 4.00%

30 year Fannig Mag
pools

Synthetic TRS
Indlex 4.00%

30 year Fannig Mag
poals

Synthatic TRS
Incex & .00

20 year Fannia Mas
pools

ynthatic TRS
Inclex 4.00%

20 year Fannis Mao
pools

aynthetic MBX
Inclex 6.50%

30 year Fannie Mae
noals

Synthetic MBX
Index 5.00%

%0 year Fanniz Mae
poals

G

appreciation/

$(51,745)

12,600

(139,749)

28,808

25,649

27.804

56,511

(51.428)

260,883

16,464

{365,188)

63,791
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TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/12 cont.

Upfrant
Barclay's Bank, PLC cont.

1,741,992 £— S12/40
5436874 - 1/12/41
2,471,752 - 1/12/41
2723752 - 1/12/41

12,984,548 - 1/12/41
& 663,548 (.843) 1/12/30

51,196,089 - 1/12/38

41,454,149 - 1/12/41

14,401,811 24 1/12/40
1,604,264 - 1/12/40

979,986 = 1/12/38
5,375,197 2 1/12/38

received (paid) by

4,04 (1 month
LISD-LIBOR)

4.00% (1 manth
USD-LIBOR)

4.00% (1 month
aD-LIBOR)

5.00% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

4.50% (1 month
USE-LIBOR)

6.00% (1 manth
LSD-LIBOR)

(6.50) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

500 (1 manth
LUSD-LIBOR)

4.00% (1 maonth
USD-LIBOR)

4,00% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

6.50% (1 month
LISD-LIBORY

(6.50%) 1 month
UE0-LIBOR

160/286
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Total return Unrealized
received by - appreciation/
orpaidbyfund  (depreciation)

Symthetic MBX
Irchex 4,00%

30 year Fannie Mag
poals

Symthetic TRS
Irchex 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
pools

Synthetic TRS
indhex 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
pi_;lcls

Synthetic MBEX 5,548
Indiex 5.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
poaly

Symthetic TRS
Index 4,50%

30 year Fannie Mae
poals

Symthetic TRS
Index 6,00%

30 year Fannie Mag
poals

Synthetic MBX
Index 6,50%

30 year Fannie Mag
pocls

Synthetic MBX
Index 5.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
poals

Synthetic MBX
Inciex 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
pools

synthelic TR 6,732
Inches 4,00%

30 year Fannie Mao

pools

Synthetic TRS 2.882
Indhex 6.50%

30 year Fannie Mag
poals

Synthetic MBX
Indiex 0.50%

30 year Fannie Mag
poals

$3.185

3730

17,153

83.511

25.588

(312.6/0)

84,435

26.501

(32.828)
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Swap counterparty/ .
Barclay's Bank, PLC cont
$1.301,310

22,470,957

21,608,436

B.638,534

3.060,587

2,056,675

9,605,224

558917441

6.00L.107

1,137,648

3,689,420

2674650

48 Income Fund

premium  Termination

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/38

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/490

1/12/40

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/40

1/12/40

1/12/40

received (paid) by
fund per annum

5.00% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

2.00% (1 month
LISD-LIBORY

(6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

4,00 (1 maonth
USD-LIBORY

A4.00% (1 month
LSD-LIBOR)

5.00% (1 month
JSD-LIBORY

4.50% (1 month
USD-LIBORY

5.00r% (1 month
LISD-LIBOR)

5.00% (1 month
LISD-LIBORY

5.00% (1 rmonith
LISD-LIBOR)

5.00% (1 month
SD-LIBORY

5.00% (1 month
WSD-LIBORY

161/286

receivedby  appreciation/
orpaidbyfund  (depreciation)

Synthetic MBX
Indax 5.00%

30 year Ginnie Mag 1
pools

Synthatic MBX
Index 5.00%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Syntnetc MBX
Indlex 6.50%

Z0 year Fannig Mae
poals

Synthetic TRS
Index 4.00%

30 year Fanniz Mae
pools

Synthatic TRS
Inclex &.00%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Synthats MBX
Incdlex 5.00%

Z0 year Fanmie Moo
pools

Synthete MBX
incle 4.50%

30 year Fannig Mag
pools

Synthatic MEX
Index 5,00%

30 year Fannig Mag
poals

Synthiatic MBX
Index 500

20 year Fannia Mas
pools

Synthatic MBX
Inclex 5.00%

20 year Fannis Mao
pools

aynthetic MBX
Incdes 5.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
noals

Synthetic MBX
Index 5.00%

%0 year Fanniz Mae
poals

$5,906

45,770

(131,969)

59,949

21,2432

3E70

14,0/

75,154

12,223

2,141

5,033
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TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS QUTSTANDING at 10/31/12 cont

Citibank, N.A,
$13,259,907 £— S12/41  5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX $27.008
LISD-LIBOR) Irvchen: 5, 00%
30 year Fannie Mag
poals
17.833.768 - 1/12/41  5.00% (1 manth Symthetic MEX 36.325
LISD-LIBORY Ircbex 5.00%
30 year Fannie Mae
pools
Credit Suisse International
32,131,490 - 1/12/41  4.50% (1 manth Synthetic MBX 5937
LS0-LIBOR) Iriches: 4.50%
30 year Ginne Mae |1
poals
635,433 - 1/12/41  4.00%(1 month Synthetic TRS 4,410
USE-LIBOR) Inchex 4.00%
30 year Fannie Mae
pocls
9,573,419 <= 1712739 (5.00%) lmonth Synthetic TRS (38.603)
USD-LIBOR Indiex 5.00%
30 year Fannie Mae
poals
2,496,245 - 1/12/41  4.00%(1 month Synthetic TRS 17.323
USD-LIBORY Irchex 4, D0%
30 year Fannie Mag
poals
Goldman Sachs International
6,205,272 = 1/12/41  4.00%(1 month Synthetic TRS 43,063
USD-LIBOR) Index 4.00%
30 year Fannle Mag
poals
3562535 - 1/12/38  G.50%(1 month synthetic TRS 10,448
USD-LIBORY Incex &,50%
30 year Fannie Mae
pools
12,450,594 -~ S12/38  6.50% (1 manth Synthetic TRS 36.616
USD-LIBOR) Index 6,50%
30 year Fannie Mae
poals
49,604,674 - 1/12/38  6.50% (1 manth Synthetic TRS 28.245
USD-LIBOR) Index &.50%
30 year Fannie Mae
pools
3802379 - 1/12/41  4.00% (1 month Symthetic TRS 270012
USC-LIBOR) Irichex: 4,00%
30 year Fannie Mae
poals
12,064,084 - 1/12/38  6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS 5479
USE-LIBOR) index 6.50%
30 year Fannie Mag
pi_;lqls
Income Fund 49
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: Upfront
Goldman Sachs International cont,
$641,732 i

1082616 =

2.939.229 -

4,836,431 -

11,125,180 =

11,214,895 -

2,183 964 -

2185427 -

5.487.960 =

17.821.385 o

6,694,972 -

12,068,257 -

50 Income Fund

premium  Termination

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/40

1/12/41

1/12/41

1/12/38

1/12/38

1/12/35

received (paid) by
fund per annum

4,00% {1 month
USD-LIBOR)

4.04% (1 manth
LISD-LIBORY

4.00% (1 month
USD-LIBORY

4,00 (1 maonth
USD-LIBORY

(4.00%) L month
USD-LIBOR

4.50% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

(A.00%) L mohlh
USD-LIBOR

4.00r% (1 month
LISD-LIBOR)

4.00% (1 month
LISD-LIBORY

(6.50%) 1 month
LISD-LIBOR

(6.50%} 1 maonth
WsSD-LIBOR

5.50% (1 month
WSD-LIBOR)
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recaived by
of paid by fund

Synkhetic TRS
Inclex &.00%

30 year Fannie Mag
pools

Synthatic TRS
Index 4.00%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Syntnetic TRS
incle £.00%

Z0 year Fannig Mae
poals

Synthetic TRS
Index 4.00%

30 year Fanniz Mae
pools

Synthatic TRS
Indlex 4.00%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Synthate TRS
Incdlex 4.50%

Z0 year Fanmie Man
pools )
Synthete TRS
incle 4.00%

30 year Fannig Mag
pools

Synthetic TRS
Indlex 4.00%

30 year Fannig Mag
poals

Synthatic TRS
Incex & .00

20 year Fannia Mas
pools

Synthatic MBX
Inclex &,50%

20 year Fannis Mao
pools

aynthetic MBX
Inclex 6.50%

30 year Fannie Mae
noals

Synthetic TRS
Index 5.50%

%0 year Fanniz Mae
poals
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§4,453

1513

20397

33,563

(77.233)

80,755

(8677

15,152

38.085

(108 8407

(40,858)

3,085



TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/12 cont.
o 2 ;
Swap counterparty/ _premium  Termination  received (paid) by
Goldman Sachs International cont.
816,307,122 §— 1/12/41  4.00% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)
16.637.141 - 1/12/41  4.50% ({1 month
USD-LIBOR)
4,846,336 2212 1/12/41 450681 month
LSD-LIBOR)
1,650,857 %3 1/12/41 4.00% {1 manth
USD-LIDOR)
3,949,800 {5,554 1/12/39  6.00% (1 manth
USD-LIBOR)
8,007,239 - 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month
USO-LIBOR)
744,383 . 1/12/38  6.50% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)
10,971,874 - 1/12/41  4.00% (1 monin
SD-LIBOR)
2,296,098 24 1/12/41 4.00% (1 maonth
USD-LIBOR)
4,892,619 - 1/12/41  4.00%(1 month
USD-LIBOR)
24,413,328 - 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR
1,649,017 = 1/12/38  6.50% (1 manth
USD-LIBOR)

164/286

received by

Synthetic TRS
Irchen 4,00%

30 year Fannie Mag
poals

Synthatic TRS
Indiex 4.50%

30 year Fannbe Mae
poals

Synthatic TRS
Irchex 4.50%

30 year Fannie Mae
poals

Synthetic TRS
I 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mae
poals

Synthetic TRS
Irckea: B, 00%

30 year Fannie Mae
poals

Symthatic TRS
Irnches 4. 00%

30 yeor Fannie Mao
pools

Synthatic TRS
Index 6.50%

30 year Fannie Mag
pools

Synthetic TRS
Irchens 4. 00

H) year Fannie Mae
poals

Synthetic TRS
Inciex 4, 00%

A0 year Fannie Mae
pools

Synthetic TRS
Irchex 4, 00%

30 yaar Fannie Mao
poals

Synthatic MBEX
Ik B.50%

30 year Fannie Mag
poals

Synthetic TRS
Indiex B.50%

30 year Fannie Mae
paals

Income Fund 51

EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000(E14869)

Oooooooooooobooooooad

orpaidbyfund  (depreciation)

$113.167

119.816

37174

12,359

18,462

55.568

76,073

15934

53.684

(143.100)

4.850



TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/12 cont.

Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination

Hational amount received (paid) date
Goldman Sachs International cont,

210,730,985 1/12/41

3.5376,229 1/12/38

805,243 1/12/38

2413710 1/12/38

3.276,910 1/12/38

6,553,821 1/13/38

4,459,489 1/12/38

1,530,756 1/12/91

2.047.714 1/12/38

13,644,857 1/12/38

JPMargan Chase Bank NA
7.524, 472 1/12/41

Total

52 Income Fund

received (paid) by
fund per annm

4,00% {1 month
USD-LIBOR)

.50% (1 month
ISD-LIBOR)

(6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

(6.50%) L month
USD-LIBOR

5.50% (1 month
LSD-LIBOR)

6.50% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

6.50% (1 month
USD-LIBORY

4.00r% (1 month
LISD-LIBOR)

6.50% (1 month
LISD-LIBORY

6.50% (1 month
LISD-LIBOR)

4.50% (1 manth
USO-LIBOR)
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Total retuirn
recaived by
of paid by fund

Synkthetic TRS
Ircle 4.00%

30 year Fannie Mag
pools

Synthatic TRS
Index &.50%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Syntnetc MBX
Indlex 6.50%

Z0 year Fannig Mae
poals

Synthetic MBX
Index 6.50%

30 year Fanniz Mae
pools

Synthatic TRS
Index &, 50%

20 year Fannie Mae
pools

Synthate TRS
Index 6,.50%

Z0 year Fanmie Man
pools

Synthete TRS
index 6.50%

30 year Fannig Mag
pools

Synthetic TRS
Indlex 4.00%

30 year Fannig Mag
poals

Synthatic TRS
Index 6500

20 year Fannia Mas
pools

ynthatic TRS
Inclex &, 50%

20 year Fannis Mao
pools

Synthetic TR
Index 4.50%

30 year Fanniz Maa
pools

$74,470

9.929

(5,529)

(14,741}

9,637

19,274

15,056

11,725

6022

40,128

58,F96

$807.126
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ASCA20 estabishes a three-level higrarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The waluation hierarchy is based
upon the transpanency of inputs to the valuation of the fund's ivestments, The three levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Valuations based on quated prices for identical securities in active markets.
Level 2; Yaluations based on cucted pnces i markets that ane not active or far which all ssgrificant mputs are
observable, either directly or indirectiy.
Leval 3 Valuations bacad on inputs that are unobservable and sigrificant 1o the far valus meaturement.
Thia followeng is o summaey of the inputs used to value the fund's net assets as of the clase of the reporting penod:

Valuation inputs
Investments in securities: Levell Level 2 Level 3
Corporate bands and notes — 385,479,454 -
Fareign government and agency bonds and notes = BE4.835 -
Mortgage-backed securities = 563314349 =
Murvicipal bonds anc notes - 4658060 -
Purchased swap ophions outstanding = 4405062 -
Senior lnans - 320468 -
L5, Government and agency mortgage obégations - 18645617 =
L5, Treasury cbligabons - 3125648 -
Short-term investments 142,051,783 119074293 =2
Totals by level $142,051,783 $1,799,887,786 §—
Valuation inputs
Other financial Instruments: Levell Lewval 2 Lewvel 3
Futures contracts $(238.284) g 5-
WiriTtan swap eplions autstanding - (1.372108) -
TBA sale compmitiments - (186,503 278) -
Interest rate swap contracts - Sen56Y -
Total eatudm Swa cantracts - 813651 -
Totalsby level $(238,284)  ${186,495,168) $—
At the start and close of the reporiing period, Level 3 investrments insecurities wene not considerad a signinicant
portion of the fund's partfalia.
The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial staterments,
income Fund 53

166/286



(2)

2011

10

31

1, 4
235,

) (

20110

10,
139,

586,
135

125,

011 ) 1,

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31

039,563%, 073, 085
123, 430,581
780 923, 957
330 291, 405
878,720, 894
13,974,599, 273, 645
163,665, 186, 916, 442
3,083,125 280, 996
13,487,594d, 229, 259
1,943,606,1%58, 140, 265

482,
235,139,
10,137,
3,197,
18,881,

) ( 6)

842
82

75,072 6,
904
6,441,838 587,109
175,171,335, 965, 115
3,810,813 347,317
467,310 42,591
170, 941 15,580
33,192 3,025
303,550 27,666
5,190 473
430,124 39,202

397,305

]?68, 686, 936, 374, 127

23,682,341,
194,584, 530,
9,296,444 847,
255,697 23,
583,416, 258, 172,
1,360,189,DB33, 967,

158, 409
734,434
278
304
554
711

1,535,863,5%®, 978, 604
5,017,584 457,303
(179,219, A&), 334, 030)
(1,472,0870134, 166)
1,360,189,DP33, 967, 711
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20110 31

(843,019+403,267, 344 ) 6.84 623
7.13 650
(6.84 96.00 100)
6.78 618
(39,859,:150,0877, 919 )
6.80 620
(169,692-200965, 322 )
(170, 346-2832389, 135 ) 6. 71 612
6.94 633
(6.7196.75 100)
(4,722,5893,823 ) 6.81 621
6.91 630

(132,549+7197169, 155 )
* 10 10

* %

+
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276,

20110

568

31
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66,546, 10®, 065, 012
66,546, 10%, 065, 012
5,462,831 497,882
1,929,407 175,846

99,137 9,035
121,709 11,0093
37,548 3,422
2,068,688 188,540
401,284 36,573
1,657,153 151, 033
1,010,367 92,085
21,601 1,969
681, 487 62,111
13,491,212, 229, 589
(3,814) (348)

13,487,398 ,229,241
53,058, 70%, 835,771
25,917,16®,362,0091

(20,841, 655), 899, 508)

(27,736,5912), 527, 912)

35,783,

1713,

261, 278

(4,199,417()382, 735)

8,922,

687 813,

214

61, 981,

396,

648, 984
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3,000

1,267,700, 000
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| SDA

24,404,709

183,090, 274 168,634, 683
TBA
TBA(

TBA

TBA

TBA
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325
185
1.25
1.30 0.02
50,000
0.13
1986
4982
ASC740 ASC 740 ASC 740
2011031
156, 195, 953
92,884, 454 2016031
63,311,499 2011031

2010 2010 12 22
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425,447 6,669, 952

90, 756, 372

(41,040, 435)

49,715, 937
7,856, 628

(156, 195, 953)

1,667,462, 752
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63,220
31,113

11,

25,357

3,556, 480,

024,

24910,

372
628,

697
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183,091

5,185

3,464, 666,

C ) C )

1,912,967, 448201, 227, 292

2,044,626, 427,222,229

(1,574,042, 738)446, 160)

(39,606,800),606, 056)
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2011031 2010031

() ¢ ) () C )

31,938,5@98, 790,51852,072,58B845,055,909

5,196,3135,449,398 6,943,8027,126, 038

37,134,834, 239,91659, 016, 324®2, 181, 947

(38,649, T@BB, 845, 93835, 183, 3@83)0, 031, 282)

(1,514,81(89, 606, 022)23,833, 0162, 150,665

2011031 2010031

() C ) () « )

2,105,9434,318, 416 2,596,86127,589, 257

208,992 1,412, 938 347,433 2,336, 846

2,314,9385,731,354 2,944,3009, 926, 103

(2,787,5838,884,10403,570, 6%52%, 061, 002)

(472,648()3,152,750) (626, 3530)4, 134,899)

2011031 2010031

() ¢ ) () C )

8,428,92%7,395,07819,617,8033, 332,927

660, 999 4,480, 9009 558,516 3,783,588

9,089,92%1,875,98720,176,31%87, 116,515

(8,652, 0888,620,81702,234,3%59p, 121,551)

437,840 3,255,170 17,941,94@1, 994, 964
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2011031 2010031

() ¢ ) () C )

4,252,2928,443,376 9,433,3563, 396, 961

96, 626 646, 826 121,762 812,575

4,348,9229,090, 202 9,555,1184, 209, 536

(12,052, 73820, 978, 75106, 321, 088, 296, 772)

(7,703,8QB)1,888,549)3,234,0321,912, 764

2011031 2010031

() ¢ ) () «C )

308,145 2,097,773 372,599 2,533,362

24,597 167,075 27,304 184, 731

332,742 2,264,848 399,903 2,718,093

(234,6890)1,602,134) (161, 43401, 090, 419)

98, 053 662, 714 238,469 1,627,674

2011031 2010031

() ¢ ) () «C )

19,234,5833,635,79032,275,2222,582, 968

554,836 3,832,111 1,214,3688,308, 414

19,789,4187, 467, 90133, 489, 62830, 891, 382

(21,652, 33@P, 652, 24296, 513, §338, 379, 445)

(1,862,911, 184, 341)13,024, 3257, 488, 063)
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ASC 815
250,687, 357 386,839,050
250,687,357 386,839,050
*
ASC 815
- ; 597,583 597, 583
13,547, 7607, 736, 68B1)439| 2385) 628 069)
13,547}, 7607, 736, 68a,)841| §3%) 030} 486)
ASC 815
- ; (459, 348)Y 459, 348)
(9,855,/]59D3, 868 1a%,883| 738, 896} 357
(9,855,[59D3, 868 188, 424 418, 437} 0009
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276, 568
802, 255,673
948, 013, 999

2003 2004 SEC
2011 SEC
424,890

2011 9,005
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Statement of assets and liabilithes 10,2111
AsseTs
Fwesimant in focuntes, a8 valug [Moda 1)
Lnattiisted issers (ideifien oost §1,410,586,01 1)
ATREe] duuers (identilied cost 3235, 132,135 (Nede )
Iterst and ol Pes meceteabies
Receyvable for shares of the fund sola
Recniiahis ot imasiments Soid
Recaivable for sales of oelayed delvery securities (Note 1)
Lineali peed Brgineciation on saan comiracts {Noke 11
R mivable for vanataon marngn (heote 1)
Ergmism pad on Swap contracns (Noke 15
Totsl pziots

Paysbile tousiogian

Digtributions payable 1o shaehciders

Payable for investments purchased

Payastile for putchases of delayed defvery sEcuriies (Mote 1)
Payabile for shanes of the hatd ripuichased

Fayanie for compensation of Marager [(hote 21
Payabin for invesion sernicing fees (MWate 23
Fayatie hor cussodian fees (Note 2

Fayable har Trughes combencatnm and eapensss [Mabe ¥)
Fayahie far adminmmatee tnrecit (Notn )

Prayahls for cladripuon fees (Note 7)

‘Wiritten aptans outatanding, M vug (prémiurs recrvod §125,307 305) (Motet 1.and 3)
Eramim recelvisd on swap combracts (Mte 1)

Liripeali s Shnneriation o Swa comiracts (Mete 1)
Colaberal on cemtain gemwbve coniracts, at walug (Mabe 1)
Orhar aocrued expenses

Totad Habdities

Het assats

REPRESENTED BY

Paid-in capdil (UNETTed Shanes authonzed ) (Fobes 1and 4)
Uincastriputed net imestmaent incoma (Mabe 1)
Accumulated net reak2ed W0ss on imeSIments (hote 1)

Mol urevalped deprecistion of fveshbmenrta

Total = Reprasenting ral assets applicable to capital shates cutstanding

{Cortinued on nexl page)
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$1,482,130,554
235,139,135
10.057.730
3597 330
L8] RIS
13874508

16 G5, 156
B8535
15.087.506
1.843,606,153

745092

a4
BALLAS
175,171,333
3810813
57,510
FRR
5510
3550
5190
450134
168,686,936
35482341
104,584,530
G236, 444
246,607
583,416,214

$1,360.389.955

$1.535.863,550
E017 58
(179214, 108
(1472097)
$1.360.150,939



Statement of assets and labilities (Continued)

COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET WALUE AND QFFERING PRICE

Not assot valuie and redemption prico per clas A thare

(REA1 015 408 chvichpci by L35, 2407, 544 shuares)

Offering price per class A shaes (100,96.00 of §6 84"

[Nt asset vaioe and offerng price per class B thare (539 552, L00 deided by 5 877 919 ahares)™
Net asset vaiue and offorieg price per class C shang (F 580000400 chvced by 24005, 527 shares)™
Mt assat vakse and recemption pron per Class M share

(BP0 346, 722 divicked Iy 25,380,135 shanes)

(Offering price per class b shane | 150/5% 75 of B6.710

et asset vnlue, offorieg price and redemption price per class & share
(R TXR ST diviciat by BO%A23 sharss)

Het psset vadue, oMerng peice and redemplion price pes £lass Y shane
(R1Z2 549,777 greiciec by 19,169, 155 shanss)

* O iincgie sntad fabes Of bk i R00 000, On dakis of $100.003 of e e offenng D 15 neduded
S ReCBmpDon Drce Dar ENate 5 B0’ 10 e asseT valle less any apnkcabhe conlingent oefemad sakes change
v e e il sl of et 1 SS0L000 O ket of §50 D00 & o 1R cflerryg pHce [ recuced

That accpmganying netes are an inbegeal part of thiste fnancal watnments
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§7.13
5678
$0.80

.71
BE.Ed

3£ £l
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Statement of operations Year 2nded 10731710

INVESTHENT INCDME

fereit (not of formgr tar of B2, 2500 (i iuding ntomtt incomaof 276,568

fram mvesimanls m afhbabed ssuers] (Nabs B) REESEG 107

Toitad invesimaent incams 66,546,107

EAPENSES

Comppasatean of Manager (fate 21 SAEA3L

reesine spreing lees (MNale 2) LSz any

Curstoctian fees (Mobe 2) =0 137

Trustee compersation and expenses (Hoto 3 1715

Adrinmniraliee sendioes (Mabe 23 IT 5B

Dietributon fews — Clas & (Noto T o.0eE fBE

Dratpilation lees = Class B (Note ) 401284

Datribugiun lees — Claaa © (Node 2 LEST 153

Dmtribution fees — Clavs M (Mote 2) 1014, 567

Dtniution fiees — Clans B (hote 2 Z1604

Crhar EHL 487

Totad pxpenses 13491112

Expere reduction (Mobe 2 (5814
Nat sxponses 154487 398

Nal irvestmant incoma 53,058 704

Met realized gaen on irvestments [Notes Lang 33 25917169

Met resdzed loss on swap contracts (Mate 1) (ROBAL G55
Mat readized losson futures contmets (Mote 1) (ZT.736.561)
Mot resliped gak o witlben aplions {(Moles 1a0d 33 IS5 TELITL

Nut irwaliopd depreciation of mstments, e contracty, Swap condracts, wiithen opbcs,

and TRA sakp commiltrrend s during tho yedr iﬂi'—ﬂ.l‘_l]}
et galn o investments B,E2.687

Matincrease innet assets resulting from operations SO0 501 308

Thir accompavpng nodes are an integral part of Mese inancal slatemens

I
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Motes to financial statements 1031

Mote 1 Significant accounting policles

Putnarm income Fund (the fund) s a Masachuetts busingds trust regisbired unde the Fvestmaent Campany Aot
af 1540, a5 amended, a5 & diversfied opereend management insestms compaery, Tha fund seeks bigh curent
mnaome-condibent with whatl Putnam irvedtment Maragemenl LLC (Putram Menagemaont ], the Fund's manager,
an indirect wholly-gwned subssdiary of Putnam bvestments, LLE, boleves to be prudent sk, The furd invesis
mainly in Dords Ehat afe wecurieed debl nstruments (wucih &5 mot pag e-backed Insestmers) ard ather obliga-
tions of companies and goverrmants wordwide denceninated in LS. dollars, are pithee imvestment -grade of below
Freedimenl-Grbde (Sormelemed rplarmad B oL “junk Bands™) and hive infeimadisto- b |0rg-besm matuntiss (B
oS o banger). The waids and values of securitioed dobt instrumants are sensitive to changss in inberest rates.
e ravte of prncipa! payments on e underlying sssels and Uhe marked's perteplion of the issuers. The marke [or
thesso investmaesnts may be volatile and bmited, which may make tham deficult ba buy or soil, The fund may consider,
amang alher hendd, credt, ivlerest rabe snd prepayrenl ek, a8 well a5 genesnl markil cand tions, whin decsding
‘whethor to buy or sell investmeenits. The furd may also wse derivatives, such as hutures, oplions and swap contracls,
o Bodls hedging and rn=hecging puEeses.

Thir fund cdfers class A, ciass B, class € class M, clans R and class Y shares, Class A and class M shares ane sold with a
rnaimum frenb-end taie charge of 4,000 and 3255, respactively, and genenlly da nal pry 8 conbingent detared
sates charge. Cless B sharps, which cormert ba class & shanes aftor approsmately eight years, do not pay & frort-and
Sabes Chaepe and are subect 1o a contingent delened s3es change A Those shares ar redesmed withon sic years of
purchase. Class C shams have o ong-year LO0S contingent defprmod salies charge and do not conver Bo clms A shares,
Clads B shaves, which ore pat mvaslable to all evesions, ae scld of net assel valkoe. The expenses Tor class A, cls B,
class €, class M and class B shares may differ based on the datribution foe of sach class, which = idertifiedin Nole 2.
01355 Y shanes, wihaCh 20 soid 3l nal assel valkud. 200 Qenerm iy Ssubct 10 e Same enpenses as chads A, Class B, class T
class M and class R shares, bul do nof bear & distribution fee. Class Y shams are not available bo allivestors.

Fror 0o August 2. 20N, o L00% redempion fee appked on any shates [hat wene redeomed (edhe oy sailing or
enchanging o dnather fund) witfin 7 days of purchase. The redemption foe wad acoounbed for as an addibion 1o
pal-in-capital Effpctive August 2, 20710, this redormption fos ne longer agplies ho sharnes redesmed.

bivesirmend income, reslized snd i ped Gising and lodses and expenides of the fund ane bome pro-nka bised an
i refative net assets of sach chass tothe botal ot assets of the fund, oot That each class bears expensas uniguee
f bhast el Cinchuding the distributicn hoes applicabie bo such clirses) Each tland voles a8 o clnss only with respect
10 s gram chsirination plan of other matters on wivch a class vobe i requemd by b or crtesmmined by the Trustees.
i it o] were bquidated, shares of esch class would receive bheir pro-raba shane of the et asseds of the fund. In
adcktion. the Trusteos ceclre separate deidends on sach class of shares.

In the normal course of usaness. (ke fund enbors into contracts that may inchude agrosmens to indemesty analher
party under given cicemstances. The fund's masimam esposure under these amangaments is unknown as this
wald invohve fuure caims That may Be, bul have oty been, made apsinat the fund. However, the funds
managemTt bearn eupects thir risk of matenal loss to be romobe:

This Tedlivaing i & wummany of sigrificant aocounting policies condaiently aewed by thie fund in the preparation
af its financial statements. The proparation of financial staternents is in conformity with accounting principles
geresally accepbed in ke United States-of America and requines managemaend fo make eslimales and assummbions
ihat affect the reported amounts of assets and Babities in the finandial statements and the roponed amouants of
ncrases and ded neaves el assets rom operations. Adfusl results could differ Frami bose eslimates. Subseguent
events afier the Statement of assets and liatelities date through the date that the financial statements were issued
g beisien ivabudted in i propaation al this financisd seytsments. Urkess othiraoe notied, the “reparting penod™
repiesents the pariod from Novemioer 1, J0I0 through Octobar 512010

A} Security valuation Marke! quotabions are nol cordidersd 1o be readity aesilabiie for cortan debil obigatons
and cther investmants: such investmants ane valued an the basss of valuations furnished by an Independent
priong sefvioe approved By The Trustees of dealers selecied by Pulnam Mansgement. Sicch services or dealers
datorming vaiuations for normal instiutionaé-zim trading units of sach securities using mathads based on market
Transaotions 1oF companible Lalutibes shd vanous islatanshipd. Jenemlly recogniaed By institulonal iraders,
betweoon socurities (which consador such Factors as seourily prioes, ylelds, masuritics and ratings), These securities
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will penerally be categorized as Leval 1. Securties quated in forelgn curencies, I any. are transiated inba LS.
dicilars &1 1h curnent gachange rale.

T the extent & prding Sendce of dealer = unabie to value a seufity of provides a valuation thal Putnam
Hanagement does not bebeve atourately reflects the securty's fair value, the security will be valuod ab Fair value
by Putnam Mansgement. Cortain invesiments, mcloding oenain restrcied and ilbged seouniles and denva-
tivns, are also valued a2 faif value following pracedures aponoved by tho Trustees. These valuations consides such
laclon as signdicant martke? o specilic security events such as inlerest rale or credil qualily Changes, vanous
relationships wath ofher secuntios, descount mbes, LS. Troasuny US. swap and credit yickds, indes levels, convoxity
Enp0snes and recovery rafes. Thse securities afe classified as Leved 2 of as Level 3 depending on Ehe pority of
e smgnificant imputs.

Suchvaluations and procedures ane reviowed periodecally by the Trusiees. Certain seounties may Do valued on the
basiy of a price provided by a single source. The fair value of scourities is generally determined a3 the amount that
s fund could easorably expect 1o realpe frem an crdery dispostion of such securithes over a masonable perisd
of fme. By its nabure, & fair valop price i a poaod faith estimate of the wakee of o security in a current sale and does
ool reflect amactusl marked peice. wiich may be different by a matevial amount.

1B) Joint irading sccount Puriuant Eo an exsmplea order from the Secuntes and Exchange Commitiion (the SEC),
s Pundl may transder urirrested cash balances inio b joird irading acoount afong withs the cash of clher reghtered
mvestmend companies and certain other accounts managed by Putnam Maragoment. These balances may be
st i isswes of short=taem investmemts having matunibies of up to 90 days.

) Repurthase agreements The: fufid, o any joint trading account, hnough its custodien, retemes delvery of the
uncietlying secusities, the market value of which at the time of purchase is required 1o be in an amount at keast
qizal ta 1k ressle peice, inckiding adcrued inferedt. Collateral far coertasn Bri-oarty reponchade agréements is held
at tha counterpartys custodian in 3 segmgated account for tha bonefit of thi fund and the counterparty. Putnam
Hanagemend i nesponihie for determenang that the vales of those underiying setuntios 5 alall bmes a1 et
oquasl ta thi msale price. inchading accrusd intenest, In the event of default or bankrupdcy by the othar party to the
agresmant. retentson of (he collaters] msy e subject 1o logal srocsedings.

D) Security transactions and related investment income Securily transactions are mecorded on the trade
date (ke dale ihe ordor 1o buy o Sall s execubed) Gaing or DStes on securibies sold ane deberminad on the
dentdied cost Dasis.

Interest ncome s recorded on the sccrual basis Al premismafdiscourds are smanizeddacorsted on a
yiedd-to-maturity basis.
Sacumiies purchased or 4ol o & hrwasd commibment or detayed delivery Bk may be setiied 8 month of mone

after the trode date; interest incoma is acorued based on the terms of the secunities. Losses may anse due fo
ehange in Ehe market valua of the undarlying secunties o il ERe counbepamy doss nel perloem undor (he contra L

Thar furd earmed certain fees n cormection with its senior loan purchasing actrvibies. These fees are troated as
rarked disoount anc ane amorlieed inba NComd in the Slabemseed of operatioes.

E} Stripped securithes The tund may imeest in siripped socuritics which represent a particepation n securitics that
may be structuned in classes with rghts 1o recelve diffesent portons af the inberest and principal. erest -ory
securities recedve all of the intenest and principal-ony securibees roceve ol of the prircipsl. if the imeress-onky
Secunties experienoe grester than andiopaled prepaymments of principal, the hand mary fail 1o redoup haly i1 irtal
vestmont in these securilies. Comwertely, principal-only socurdtios incroasas in walue if prepaymonts ano groabor
than anticipated and decline il prepayments are shower than anticipated. The marked value of these securities is
highly senstive bo changes inimerest rales.

F} Fulures contracts The fund uses lutures contracts (o hedge interest rate risk and to gain exposae bo inberest
mates. The pobential risk $o the fund is that the change i value of Futures contracts may not cosrespond fo the
changs in value of the hedged instruments. bn adriion, losses may arlse from changes in the valus of e under-
hyirg instiurnents if theng & an Siguid secondany market fof the conleacts, if nlenest oF dxchange rabis Mo uniex-
pectedly o IF the counterpary ie the comfract (5 unabie bo perform. 'Wilh fulures, thene B minimal countepany
crndil rsk to bhe fund sinon histuees ane exchange traded and the sechange’s claainghouse, &5 countorparty toall
exchange traded fufues, guarantees the futures aganst default Bisks may excesd amounts recognized on the
Staternent of assets and labilitees. When the conbract i chosed, the fund records a reslized gain or loss egusl to
the diffarance betwaen thi value of the conitract at i time it wars openssd and the walue at T tma i was chosed
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Futunes eontracts ase valued at the guated daily seitiement orices established by the excharge on wiich they
trade, The fund ard the broker agree 1o exchange an amount of cash egual to the dally fluctuation in the value of
s fubures CORRRBCL Suich rooopls OF BayTMENLS 10 Rnawn s “vriabon mangin” Fubuirs contracts outstandng at
pariod snd, if arry, & listed aftov tha fund s peetfolin.d The fursd bad anaveragn number of contract of approcimatsiy
X000 cen Bubunes comiracts for the mporiing panod.

G) Dptions contracts The fund uses oobions contracts bo hedge duration, convexity and orepaymaent ek and 1o
el iy eaposure 10 inbenes) rales. The polenbisl rsk Lo D fund is thal D change in value of options Conliscos masy
nok cormespand bo the change in value of the hedged instrumants. Inadcition, losses may arse from changes inthe
waliaz of the underiying instruments If thee is an lisud secondary markel Tef the contracts. if inberest or exchange
rabes move tedly oe I the ¢ paity to the contract is unable to perform. Roolized gairs and losses
an putchased cptans are mcludes in reaked gans and losses on imestmaent securitien, I 4 weitien call aptien ts
mercised, the premiun origirally mceived & reconded a an addition 1o sales proceede IF a writhen pot opfion it
meercised, the premium anginaly recensed i reconded asa reduction to the cost of Ivestments.

Exchange Iraded options ang valued o1 1he Lrst sale prce or, ifng sales ane reported, the Last bid pnce for purchased
apliors and B last ask price (o weitien oplions. Dotions traded cwer -the-counter are valued using prices supplied
by dealers. Wiitten cpltion contracts outstanding af perod end, # any, anz lsted after the fund's portholia. See
Mode 3 far the wolumea of writien ophons conbracts activity for the reporting period. The fund had an avrge
contract amount of appreadmately §1267 300,000 oh purchased optiors contracts for the reparing perad.

H) Total et swap contracts The fund entered wto fotal return swao contracts. which are amangements io
enchange o markel linked return for s periodic payment, both based on a robionsl princpal smaund 1o hedge
SRCIor SEpoRung, D mansgo ooposure b specific sectors or industries and bo gain exposure to spocilic sectors
indisines. To the extent thal the total nefurn of the securlly, index ar olfer irancial measure underlying the irani-
action uceeds or fafls sho of the offsatting inferest rate oblgation. the fund will receive a payment from or make
a payment 1o the courterpanty. Tetal retum swap contracts ane marked to market daily based upon guotatsans
from an indepanclent pricing senvice or marked makiesrs and the change, if ary, 15 necorded a6 an unesalired gain
of lass. Paymenis received of mode ae recorded a4 realined pairs of lossed Cerain tolal neurr Swan contracts
may inchate extended effective dates. Payments related bo these pwap contracts an accrued based oo the tems
al the contract. The fund could be exposed to cred t or market risk dise to urdavorable changes in the Roctuation
of interest rates o i ke price of tha underlying securily or index, the possitlity that them & no lguid market
for these sgreaments of that ihe counlerpaity may default on its cbligation 1o perform. The fufd's maminum
risk of loss from countenparty risk is tha fair varlue of the contract. This risk may be mitigated by having a master
nietling arrangement bitween the fund snd the counterpany: Risk ol loss may excesd amounls recognized on the
Statement of msats and labilties, Total return swap conkracts outstandng ot period end, i§ ary, ans listed aftor the
Turel's porthalio. Cutstanding nodicnal amaurt on otal reburn swap cortracts &% the close ol The repaiting pornod
v indicative of tha volurme of activity during the reporting period.

1) Interest rabe swap conbracts The fund enlered wlo milerest rale seap confractiy, whech are Arrangements
batwoon bwo parties 1o exchange cash fows hased on a nobonal pancipal amount, o hedge milerest rabe risk and
16 Gain experiure of nleresl rales. AR siberest rale Swap dan be purchased of sold wilh an upfienl pramiun, An
upirant paymont received iy the furd is recorded as a llablity on the fund's books. An updront payment made
oy the tund ks recorded as an asset on the hand's beoks. Ualront payments are recorded as realized gains and
by al the closing of he conbract. Inferest rsbe swap coniracls s meaked fo markel daly besed upon guols-
tiens from an independend pricing service o market makers and the changse, i ey, is recorded 08 an unneal-
o gakn or loss, Pyments ecehed or made ane recorded a5 realieed gains or losses. Cortain intarest mée Swan
conbmcts may Include extenced effective dates. Payments related o these swap conbracts 2 accrued based
on the terma of the contract. The fund could be expased to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in
i fluctuation of inferest mtes o If the counterparty defaults on its obligation ko peeform. The tund's masimum
rizie of boas from countenparty risk 14 the fair virkie of the contract Thes risk may be matigated by having a mster
metting arrangement between the lund and the coumberparnty. Risk of kass may eedeed smounts recoondgied on the
Staterment of atsets and labilibes. Inb rabe swop tontract dirg &t period end, # ary, ane izted aller the
tund’s perticlio. The fund had an average notional amaunt of aporammately §5,669 500,000 oninterest rabe swap
contracty for the repactng penod.

J) Credit default contracts Tne Tund eriensd INE oredit defaust CONITacts 1o Pedos croa risk. in & credit defalt
contract, the pratection buyer typscally makes an up fran? payment and o periodic stream of payments ko &
coymbarparty, tho protection saller, inechangs for the night toeceive a contingent paymsnt upon 1 ooourmence

&
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of & onedil evont an the refenence abligation er all ather equally mnked cbligations of the reference entity. Credit
ewenits arg conbract specific bl may include bankmuptcy, lailure to pay, restruciuring and cbiligation accoloration,
An upirent paymend neceived by the fund. as the protectson selier, is reooeded a3 o kabiity on the Rund's Bola AR
uipfrant payymant made by thi furd, s the protection buyes, o recondod as an awset on Ehe fund's books. Perindic
payThents nesceived or paid Iy the fund ae recorded &5 eafized gains oF kxsses. The credil defaul contracts ans
marked to market daily based upon quotations from an indeperdent prcing service or market makors and the
change. if any, is recorded 25 an unrealzed gam or kots. Upon the aocunende of 3 credit avent the ditfernce
betwoon the par wlue andimarkot vaiuo of the reference obligation. not of any preportional amaunt of the upfront
payTreent. i pecorced as a reshzed gain af less,

in addition tobearing the risk that the credit event will ocour, the fund could be exposed (o market risk due tounfa-
erabile changes i intenest ra1es o in the price of (he underlying Secarity or indes o the possRNEY that the hund
iy beunabis o dose ol its position at the wame tirs or at the same price i i @ had porchaded the underlying
reference chligations. In certan circumstances, the fund may ener inbo oMsedting credit default confracis whsch
would mitigabe its risk of loss. Risks of logs may exteed amounts recognized on the 5 t af assets and liabili-
thag. Tha lund's masimum rick of loes from counterparty risk, ither a8 the protection salier or as the probection
Buryor, i the Lt value of the contract, Tha risk may be miligatoed by having & mistes nelling arrangement bebween
A fned aenal thee courderparty, Wisere thee furel 5.2 seller of pretectson, the macenum potendial smeunt of Ritue
paymaents the fund may bo reguered o male @5 equal to the notional amount of the relevant credit default contract.
Craa® detault conbracts putstanding. including thewr respective notional amounts ot pesicd end. if oy, ane listed
aller the fund’s portfolio. The Pund had an avesage notional amount of appiosimately 52,5300 000 ononedil detaull
swap contracts for the reporting perod.

) Mssber sgreements The fund iz & party o 504 [Intemational Swap and Derivatives dssocation, inc. ) Master
Agreomsnts (Mastor Agreamrants) wih certain counterpartion that goverm over-the-oounter derative and foreign
exchangi conlracts entiped into from Bime to lime. The Master Agresments may contain provisions reganding,
among ather things, the parthes’ genenal obl-gations, reprosartations, agreements. coBatomnl tequinemaents, events
af defaudt and early terminstion, Wih respect to certain countonparties, in pocordance wilh the terms of the
Murster Agreements. collateral posted tothe fund is held in a segregabed acoount by the funds custodian and with
respuect to those amounts which can be sold o nealedged, an: présented in the fund's portioho. Colisteral pasted
10 the furd which cannot be sold or repledged tokaled $24,404 7049 at the ciose of the reporting parod. Collateral
by Ly et Tuanch o5 esgresginbisth By thad Turss custodian aod idenbiliog i the fund s portinlio. Collatesal can biin
it o af cashoar dobt securitios inswed By tho U S Government o melabed agenciies or olfwr socuritios a3 agreed
16 by the Pand ansd the applizable counterparty. Collstersl requirdments are dietenmined based an the lunids net
posEtion with each countamparty, Tormination ovents applicablo fo the furd may ooour upon a dockne in the fund's
el paTEty Deliw & spaciling ERreshald oved B CorLim padiod Of time Tormamalion svonts applealie o Counlemar
ties may ocour upon a decline in the counberparty's kong-term and short -term credit rabings below a specficd level.
o et by e, upan acturrenck, Lhiz other party may eect to terminate sarly and caaste setlement of all derratne
and forolgn euchange contracts outstanding, including the payment of any lodses and costs resulting from such
wat by berrminabion, a8 reasonabily debermined by U Lerminating party, Any decision by ome of mene of the lunds
counberpartios to eloct carty tormination could imipact the fund's futuno derivarbee acthaty,

AL the close of the reporting pedicd, the furd had & nel Babsiity pesiticn of $83.090.274 oo derivative contracts
subjet ko the Mastor Agreements. Colaterl posted by the tund todaled $568, 634 B

L) TBA purchase commitrmants The Pund may enter evta TEA (10 be ancounsted) commitments 1o purchase setu-
rities for & fived unit price ot & future date beyond oistomany settlemont time. Althowgh the unit price has been
establishad, 1 prncipal value has not been finalzod. Howaeyer, it i anticipated that the amount of the commit:
mients wiill mot significantly differ from the principal amaunt. The fund holds, snd mairtaine wnhi setthement date,
cash ar high-grade debt cbligations in an amount sulficent to meat the purchase price, or the fund may ester o
affseqting comtracts far the Formaed sake of othor securilees il owns ncome anthe securifies will not be eannied until
setilement date. TBA purchise cormmilmants may be consdened securilies thamsehees, and involve a risk of lass
i the value o the security 1o be purchased declines prior bo the settiemaent date, which risk is in addition 10 the risk
of ciagling in 1he vadue of the und's other assets. Unsotted TEA puechass comemitments ang valued ak i vadue of
ke urdlerhying setunties, acoonding bo Hhe procedures desciibed under *Security valustion™ above. The contract is
marked (o markot daily and the change in market vabe 5 recorded By the fund ag an unrsalized gan of koes
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Althaugh the fusd will generaly enter ino TBA purchase commitments with the intenton ol atquinng secur-
ties fior its portiolio oo for delivery purssant 1o options contracts il has entered into, the fund may dapose of &
cammilment prar (o seitiemsent § Pulnam Managomeel deems 4 appropriato 1o oo 5o,

H) TBA sale commitments The fund may enter into TBA sale commatments bo hedge its portfolio powtions o to
sell ronpage-backed securtios § cwns under delxyed deliviry arangemaents. Procosds of TBA tale commitments
are nok received undil the contractual settlomant date. During the time & TBA sale commitment i outstarding,
equivalent deliverable secusities of an offselting TBA purthsse cornmilmen] delvecabls on o Delohe e sl
commitment date, are hold 2 “cover” tor the transaction.

Unsettied THA sale cormmatments ane valued 51 the far value of the urderlyend securitied. generally acconding 1o
tha procedures described under “Secunty valuation™ above. The conbract is marked o market daly and 1he changs
i market value e reconded by the fund as an unneaiped gaim of loss. IF the TEA sako commibment & closed theouah
the acgusition of an offsetting TBA punchase o itrreenit, the hund real & gain o lows. i the fund dedivers
sRcurities under the commiiment, the lund reakzes a gain or 3 loss froem the sako ol the securities bised upen the
unit price establshed At the date the commitment wis entered inbo, TBA wae commitments outitanding at pariod
end, il arry, ane lisked o' ber the fund’s porifolio,

W) Dollar rolis To efthance nedurrs, the Fund miy entes ifto dollar rolls (pnncipally usmg TBAS) i which the fund
sells securitees for delvery in tha cusrent menth and simultanecusly conbracts to purchase similar securities cn a
spacified futune date. During the pencd betwesh the sake and subssquent purchase, the fund will not be entithed 10
FECEIVE NCOMa and princenal payments on the secuntes soid. The fund wil, howeser, retain the diference between
e irdtial sales price and the forwarnd price for the Tulise purchese, The Toid will o be dbile 1o edm inleret on
tha cash proconds that are receved from Ehe indtial se on settiemant date. The fund mary b oxposed (o matket o
crod ik if the price of the security changies untivorably or the courderparty Eal 1o periorm wnder the terms af
tha ageeemant.

0) Imterfund lending The hund, &hong wilh aiher Pulnamm Tunds, miy pariscipate in an irferund lendeg program
ANt 1o an ssemptsa order issaed by the SEC. This program allcws the fund to borrow from o lend T olhes
[Putriarn funds that permit such transactans. inbefund lerding Eramaction s subject b asch fund's investment
policiers and bormowing and lending limits, inferest eamed or pald on the mterfund lending transaction will De based
onihe dverage of cerlain cunenl marke] rates. During U reporling oesiod, the fund did not ulilio: (e program.
P} Line of credit The fund particpdates, along with other Fuiram funds, ina 525 million ursecured commetted ing
ol eredit and & 165 milkan ursesuned uncommitbed line of oredit, bath provided by State Street Bank ond Trust
Company [5tate Straet). Boerowngs may be made far tempomany or emsrgency punposes. including the funding
al shareholder redemption neguests and irage setliements. Inerest S chargid o ke fund based on 1he fund's
boarowing at a rate equal bo the Federal Funds mbe plus L25% for the committed line of credit and the Federal
Furds rabe plus 1.50% for the uncommitbed line of credil A closing lee equal be 0.0Z% of the committed fne of
crodit and $50,000 for the uncommitted bne of credit has been paid by the participating funds. In addition, a
commitment lee of 0ET% per annum on any uitiized porton of the commitied line of credit is alotated 1o the
participating funds Bused on their relative net assets and paid quarterty. During the reparting penod, the fund had
i bormawingns agamnil thess Arangements

&) Fedaral taxes It is the policy of the fund b2 distnbute all ol its taxable mcome within the prescnbed tme pericd
andalhersse comgly wilh Ine prcensions al Ehe internal Resenue Code ol 1986, a3 armended (The Code), applicabie
1o repulatied irvesiment companies. L |s alio the intention of the lund 1o distribute & amount sufficen| to avokd
impotition of any oscise tix whder Soction 4987 of tha Code. The fund is subject to the provisians of Aczounting
Standardh Codification ASC 740 Incamse Tanes (850 740), ASC 240 wets forth a miremum threshold for financisl
statement recognition of 1he benedit of @ tax pestion akenor expected 10 De e ina tax retum, The fund dd not
e a liability ta recand for sy urencognized tax benefits in the sccompanying financial staternents. No provision
has been made for federal taves on income, capital gains of unmalized appraciation on securites held nor for
escre lax onircome snd capfal gasrs. Each of the fund's federal tax returs for the priar thiee frecal years remaing
Subwect fo eaeninateon by tha Inbemal Revenus Servioe.
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Al Dctobes 31, 200, the hund had & cagitaliass carryousd of S156.195.953 avadable In the extent sllewad by ths Code
1o offsot future nit capital gain, o ary, The amaunts of the carmyivers and the expination dabes am;

§52.284.454 Citobet 31, 2016
E3311.459 Dxcobss 31, 2007

inaer i recently enacied Regulated Investment Company Modenmizagion Act of 2000, the furd will be permitied
15 carry forward capital ladses incured in taxabls yoars beginning Afber December 22, 2010 for an unlimited
pariod. Howover any losses Incurned duning those future years will ba requined to bo utilzed prior to the lossas
ncuired n pre-eractmenl (& yedrs. A4 & resalt of (b ondening rule, pre-enactmend captal loas canndoewiands
may b mone oty fo anpine unused, Additionally, post -enactment capital lesses That ar camed fansand will retain
s characber 63 edber shor-Eenm or long-term capitsl basses father then being comidessd afl shart-lerm as
uncier provious L,

Ry Distribuiisans to shareholders Distribitbions 1o shareholderns iom net investment intome soe recoedéd by the fund
on tha ex-dicend cate: Distnbubons from capital gaine, i any, ame recorded on {he ex-cividend date and paid at
Beaei] Anniaslly. This asnoun! and chars ber of inoome and gant 10 e disl kol od ane detenmindd inacooedanos with
ncoma tax negulation, which may differ from gérmmally accepbed accounting principles. These diferences include
tempoiary andjor permanent differences of uneealized gains snd loases on cenain futunes contracts, income on
swap contracts and intorest only securities. Reclassfications am madie to the fund'’s capital accounts to reflect
i and i Feailalie od dist o (o Salabli candal kit CAVOVETT) indes inoomss Lax regulalions. Fod
1hex repoeting pevicd endod, the furd roclessified $7,09%5 359 to incroase undstribuied red imesimant ncome and
FAT5AA7 10 decrpase pald-in-capital, with anincrease to scoumudabid nel reslized bssesof $6,669,952

That tax ibasis companents of ditributable earnings and the lodoral tax cost as of the close of the reporting perod
ware drs Polkorers:

Lnmalired apgreciabon SO0, 756,372
Uniesdized depreciabon (41080415
Bl Lreealisen appyecisiion 249715 937
niikstnbu bed ardinary income TEM638
Capital et camyforwand (156,195,051}
Tt far fedenal income ax purposes BLGET 462 T2

Mote 2: Managament fee, administrative services and other transactions

The Fund pusrt Put ram Managemen arranagemen foe (bursed on the hund's sverage net assets and computed and
paid monkhiy) at annual rates that may vary based on the average of the agregate net assets of most open-end
furds, &5 defned in the flunc’s management contract, sponsonsd by Putnam Mansgement. Such annusl ades may
wary & follows:

05509  of the firw S5 Diion,
Q5000  of thw next 85 bélan,
0A50% ol the meet £10 Bdlion,
040K af thi nest §10 bilion,
0.350%  ofthe net §50 bilion,
03305 of the rest 850 bilion,
0.520% af the nest §100 bilion
031K ofany esreds thaspaltar,

Putnam HMsnagemnent hai contractually sgreed. thiough Jure 50, 2042, to waive feed o reimburse the fund's
enpenaes ko the exbent necessary 1o limit the cumulative espenses of the fund, sschisive of brolarage, inferest,
taxes, rvestment-related oxpernos. extraordingry sxoenses and payments wunder the fund's investor servicing
COMMCT, imwestment managemant conract and detribution plans, on a fiscal year-1o-date basks to an annual rate
of 820% of the fund's sverage Nt Sasets over wch fscal year-to-dato periad. During (he reporting periad, the
furd's expenses were nof reduced & a reslt of this kit
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Putnarm Imvestments Lisited (PAL), an affiliate of Putnam Managemsed, i authorized by the Trustees te manage
& sepatate porticn of th awsets of the hund & determined by Puinem Mansgement from time bo teme. Putnam
Hanagement pays o quarterly sl managemient fiee ta PIL for t5 serioes o an anmsal fmte of 0A0% of the svernge
not assets of the portion of this fund managod by PIL

Thiz Fund resmnburses Putnam Management an sliacated amount for the compessatsan and related oxperses of
cortam olfcors of tha fund and thair statf wha provide sdministrative serdoes B the fund. The apgregate amaount
of &l Such e semends 5 defermined anrualy Dy (e Trishees.

Custodial functicns foe the fund’s assets am provided by Stale Streot. Custody foes are based on the fund's assol
Tl Ul rasimdoesr o 15 securily holdngs and trarsation violumnes.

Putnam Invpstor Services, Ind., an affiliote of Fulnam Mansgoment. provices inwestor serviong agent functions
10 the funed, Pulnaim imvestor Senaces, Ind. received feas for imvestorn servicang based on the Tund's miail asset
level, the number al sharehoder accounts in the fund and the kevel of defined contribution plan assets inthe fund.
Imvestor servicing fees wil not exceed am anmaal rate of 0.375% of the fund's average nat assets. The amounts
mcured [or imvesitor servicing agent funcliors during the reporting period ane included in bnestor servicing feesin
th Srnbemant of epemtions.

The Tund has enlered inbo experne affset onangements with Putnam fmmeston Services, inc. and State Street
wharglry Putnam Irestor Services, Inc's and State Stroet's leoes are soduced by crocits allowsed on cash balances,
For thee reporting period, U funds sxperees wese reduted by $3.814 under the aupenae offuet arrangamants.
Each indapendent Trustee of the fund recetves an annual Trstes tea, of which $1.078, & a quartary retainar, has
been alocated 1o the furd, and an sdditional fee For each Trustee meeting atbended. Trusioes also ane rermbursed
lor ex penses they ingue relating 1o their services as Tnstees.

The fured Fusd sclopted & Trustes Fee Deferral Flan (ihe Deferral Plan) which aliows the Trusteed to defer (he reteipt
al a8 or a portion of Trustees fees payable cn or after July 1. 1935, The ceferred lees remain imvested in certain
Putram funds untl distribution i sccondance with the Deferral Plan.

The fund has adepied an unfunded nencentrbutory defined benefit pension plan (the Pensian Plan) covering
&l Trustees ol Ehe fund who Riee Served a5 8 Trasbee ot a2 keast five years and were first elechod prios to 2004,
Benehits uncher th Penmeon Flan am egual 13 50% of the Trustes's average annual atbendance and retainer fees for
e thiee years endéd Decembe 31, 2005. The retirement baneht is pipabbe dunrg & Trustes's Bletirme, beégiming
ha ypar following ratinemart, for the numbaer of yoars of senice through Decomber 51 3006 Pension sxponse
o the Fund S included in Trustee comoensalion and expenses in the Stalemeal of operations. Aocrusd persion
Babtity is inclucied in Payable for Trustes compensation and espenses in the Statemont of assotsand kabdibes. The
Trustees have terminaled the Pension P with respect 1o any Trustes hirs? elected afler 2003

Thas fiund has adopted datribution plans (the Plans) wilth respect to @5 clms A, class B, class C cless Mard cliss R
shanes pursuant bo Ruke 1261 under the Mréestment Company Act of 1940, The purpose ol the Pans i 1o compen-
sate Putnam Retid Manngement Limited Partnemship, a wholly-owned subsidisny of Patram bmestmends, LLE and
Putnam Retsd Mansgement GP, I, Tor services proviced and eapentses incurmsd indsimsuting shares al the fund.
The Plans provide for payments by the fund to Putram Retad Management Limsted Partnership ot.an annual rate of
w1 0355, 100, LOOR. LOO% and TO00% ol e ieerags nel 255813 arbibutaale to class A, cliss B class Colas M
and class B shanes, mspectively, The Trustees have approved payment by the fund at an asnual rate of 025%,
100, LOOMN. 0.50% and 0.50% of the averngs net assels atinbutsble to class A class B class C, class Moand class B
shares, respectively

For the neporting pedod, Putnam Reted Manageenent Lenibed Partnership, acting 83 undérinier, reosivesd nst
commissions of $883,0491 and $65 220 from the salo of class & and dlass M shares, respoctively, and recesed $31113
ang 125,357 in contngent defented sales changes from redemplions of cass Band dass C shames, respactively.

A delerred sales charge of up k1 00% and (L40% & assessed on certain redemgtions of cless A and class M shares,
respectivedy, For the repoming pencd. Puinam Fatail Managoemsant Limeied Pastnership, actng &5 undenarine,
received $5 15 and no monies on chass & and class M redempliors, respectively.

Mote 3: Purchases and sales of securities

During the reparting péviod, cost of purchases ahd proceeds from sales of imaestment secunitios olhed than
shoat-term irvestmenis aggregated $3 454 566714 and 53,556 460,377, mapeciively. Thess igumns molade
thar cost of purchaves and procesds from sales of long-term LS. government securities of $1,0034.245 and
$I0bIEET], resoectively.

a5
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‘Writhen aption raniactions durng the repedting pericd are summarized as leliows

Written swap option Written swap opticn
conbract amounts \promiums recsived

Written options oulstanding atihg
begining of the reportng penad $1.912,967.480 §121.220 a2
Oy s it 20848 676427 7722230
Ciotions sunmissd (1574043, 713} 171,445,160
Claans evpend - -
Cpbons cosed (59,600, 800) (1, (oGO0
Writtan options outstanding st 1hs
&nd of the mporting pencd $2Ea5004.278 §125,307 305
Noto 4: Capital shares

At the chase af the repartng penod. there wos an unlirited number of shared of benehiclal mbemat phonized.
Transactions in capdtal shares wern os folloss

“Year ended 10/31/11 “Yiear ended 10/31/10

Class 4 Shares Amount Shares  Amount
Chuawgs cold 11936569 £218, 700518 La0T2504 FIGG OGL o0
Shaes Zsued in Connectn with
reinveshment of chstriputions 5,196,313 55,443 598 6,043.502 AT, 136.03%8

7154847 54238 916 9.01E 76 402 18] o47
Shares mpunchassd (IREA0.700) (2ET.RAS.9%E) (I5,180.365)  (T40.031.280)
Nt incraase (docrease) 11,504.818) $09,605,022) 13833011 $162,150.665
Class B Shares LR Shaney Ampunt
Shsnied 1old 2,105843 $14. 318416 2506 56T §17 580 257
Sharess srsund in connpiion with
reinestment of distrioutions Fyr oL 1412358 347,453 2. 536.880

2314935 15,731.35%a R P 19,936.103%
Chares mipuichassd [2,787.547) (18,884.104) (ALGT0E6T)  (24,060.000)
M decrense (472.548) $H3,152.750) (BIE353)  $(4,134.800)
Clags C Sharey Ao Shares At
Shares sold 8128929 $57, 305078 19617803 §$155,332.527
Shares ssued in connection with
reirestmend of destrsubang [EEREE ] A A S GRESTH §ELEHy

0.089.928 A1.A75.987 M1TE 510 157116515
Shalnisd raporchissd (8,652 088) (58,620.817) {2,334 759) {15,121 551}
Metincrease 437,880 £3,255,170 17,843,960 5121984964
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Clars M Shares. Amour Shares Amourt
Shanirs Soigd 4,2l 5 pro LT A 165, 56,561
Shares miued inconnechon wilh
reiresirren] of diritnlsons 05,626 BAEEPE 121 62 AI25T5
4,34890% 2090203 4,555,118 64,209.55
Shars mepurthased .']2.35_3.131" ‘m.'_J'i"EI Tl {6, 321.085) (d2.296,770
Metincrease {decrease) (7,700,807)  §{51088.549) 3,234,033 $21,912. 764
Year encled 10/31/11 Year ended 10,/31/10
s B Sharet Armount Shianest. ot
Chaves soid 308, 145 2097701 ey 2538 507
Shares ms0ed i oomnection with
rerasrael of dstriul=ang 24597 167075 i LEA7E]
332742 2,204 BAR 350,907 2. T1a0a3
ST MRDRIC NS [ 3440400 [1,604.154) (1E1.A434) (LOSGALE
Natincreass S5053 $662.714 238,469 $1,627.674
Year ended 10431711 Year ended 10/31/10
Claris ¥ Shithis Amount Shisrisi. Amournit
Sharpi sola 19,734 553 $133 635 700 13,275 047 512 5EZ OR8
Shares asued in connection with
reirwetbmend of datrbutons FLF.E SR3L111 L4568 4. 508474
19,769,419 157 467,901 33,485.610 50 AG0_3R2
Ehares repurt hased {21,652 536) C1ELBER 243 (8B5S 1930 {313,179, 440)
Waf deg roase {1.BEL917)  ${12.184.341) (13,024.325)  ${87.488.063)
Hote 5: Summary of derbvative activity

The fclowing 15 & summary of [he market values of desivalive nstruments a5 of the Oose of the repornng pened
Harket values of derfvative instruments as of the close of the reparting period

Derivatives not
accouwnited for as Statement of Staterment of
hedging instruments. ansebs and aasets and
Irnnrstimenls,
Rutemvabios, Hat
assats — Unraallped Prayabiles, Mot hssets —
apprecialion/ Urrualond apprmoation
nterest rabe cortracts {deprecigbicn) | BAS0.6HT 35T igepcistion)  R5E6A%G "
Totai $250,687,357 $355.835,050

* ncludes cumulalivg spprecial an/dopracatiaon of huluses conbracls 22 reportsd n ThE fund< partdclia, Only cuitinl
il wEHI L PN H12poriEd wiltish the Stalamisnl of sty and Ralliies,

ar
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The falkzwing is.a summany of reabzed and ehange in unneal 2ed gairs or lasses of derivalive instruments on the
Statgmient of operatsons Io 1w repoiting pediod (ses Note Tx
Amount of realized gan oF (1045) on dedivatives recognazed imnal gaim oF (Jas) o imesimants

Durivatives not accounied for

as hedging instruments usdor

ASCELS Optices Futures Swaps Total
Creds coniracts i- b= §557.583 $557.583
Inbéresd rale conbiacTs 13,547 754 {24, F36,541) 21435 235H) 55, 008.060
Tatal $15,547,750  $(27,7IE581)  SLA0A41655)  $(35,030486)
Changa in unmalized sppreciation or (depneciation}) on derivatives recognized in ned gain or {losshonimmestments
Derivatives Pt acceunled hor

&3 hbdging invruments wder

ASCELS DOplices. Futures. Swaps Total
Credd coiracts i o $(459 34H) S(d59 34Hj
interest rabe contracts {9,855, 5500 13,Be8.183 14 B8T 750 418 B5E 157
Tatal $(0,855,500) $13.865,180 14424411 $18,437,000

Mote & Investmaont in Putnam Money Market Liguidity Fund

The tund invested in Pulnam Money Market Liquidity Fund, an open-end mansgement irmmestment company
managed by Butnam Managemeat. Imestmaents in Putnam Money Market |iguidity Fund ara valusd ot its closing
niel assel valol cach Dusiress day. income disfributions esmisd by the fund are recorded as mlerest incomas in
i Statemant of operations and totaled 52 76,564 for the reporting period. Duning the reparting period, cost of
purchaies snd proooeds of Lales of investments i Puinam Maney Markat Liquidity Fund sopreasted 5802 255673
and $588,014, 999, respectively. Managoment fees changod 1o Futram Manoy Marke? Liguidity Fund have been
waivied Ly Putram Management.

Mote ¥: Senior lsan commitmants

Sanior iaans &re purchased of s0ld ona when-issued or delayed oelveny basis and may be settisd & manth of mare
after the trace date, which from tme to lime can delay the actual imvesiment of availsble cash balances inbpnest
oo it accruad baded on the term of the securfties. Senlor loans con b soquined thowgh anagend. by assgn-
mierd from angthar holder of the loen, or a5 a partcipation imterest in anather holde:s portianaf the loan Whenthe
Turd bervesis in & loan of paricipation, e fund | Sutfect to e fsx thal &n i onmedisle pallicdoant Delewessn tha
fund and the borrower wil fail ta mect its ebligations 1o the fund, inaddition to the ek that the borndwer undicr the
Esan may cefadt an its obigations.

Mota B Regulatory matters and litigation

i late 2003 and F004, Putnam Management spithed ¢haspes Brought By the SEC and the Matsachuseits Securdies
Drwrsian in connection with cxoessive short -term Erading in Putnam funds. in July 2000, the Fund recordoed a receis-
able of SA24 200 relat i to restauion amounts in connection wah  dstribution plan aponed By the SEC. This
amount i3 reported in the increase in capital from setthemend payments bne on the Statement of changes in net
assets. Thase adegatons and related matters have sorved a5 the gersal basss for certain Wwsuits, Including
purporked claws sclicn lavwsuils saina Putnam Mansgament and, m o limited number af cased, tome Putnam
funds. i Sy 2071, thee fund recelved & payment of 55,003 melated 1o setliement of tnose Lwsuits. This amount
s reporfied in bho Incradse in copital from settlement. payments Bne on the Stalement of changes m not assols,
Putnam Managament has ageeed bo bear any costs incurred by The Putmam funds a5 a result of these matters,

Mate 9: Market and credit risk

inthe normial course of busness. the fund trades financlal instrumant s and entars ino firancial iransachans whang
ik of potential 958 exists due b chamgid i the msrket [market k) ar Rehure of Ehe comteacting pafty &0 the
transaction by perform (ored k), The fund may be sxpored 1o additonal credit ik that an snstifulion or other
entity withvwhich the fursd has unsetiied or open transscBons will defaull
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26,747,312, 437,750
112,225,028, 228, 189

6,521,016 594, 325

145,493, 3%6, 260, 264

12,355 1,126

45,763 4,171

145,551, 468, 265, 561

3,775,063 344,059

6,265,579 571, 045

10,040,642915, 104

135,510,828, 350, 457

145,551, 468, 265, 561
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340,542,381, 037,034

170,267,23%83,518, 156
30,362,089, 767,201
9,349,332 852,098

( ) 48,691, 718,437,763

258,670,323, 575,218

81,872,023, 461, 816

21,637,05%,972,001

60,234,978, 489, 815
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2011

1,258,043

(1,245, 688)

12,355

35,481

2011

30,725, 443

30,725, 443

303, 635

(6,671,762)

(6,368,127)

(2,720,261)

21,637,055
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December 31,
2011

ASSETS
Current Assets

Investment management fees receivable $ 26,747,311

Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate (Note 5) 112,225,023

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,521,016
Total current assets 145,493,350
Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 12,355
Other assets 45,763
TOTAL ASSETS $ 145,551,468
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Liabilities

Accrued compensation and employee benefits $ 3,775,063

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,265,579
Total liabilities 10,040,642
Members' Equity 135,510,826
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY $ 145,551,468

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2011

REVENUE

Investment management fees, net $ 340,542,397
OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and benefits 170,267,232

Professional and external services 30,362,089

Other operating expenses 9,349,332

Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates (Note 5) 48,691,719
Total operating expenses 258,670,372
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 81,872,025
Provision for income taxes (Note 4) 21,637,055
NET INCOME $ 60,234,970

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY

December 31,
2011

Balance, January 1 (as previously reported) $ 82,851,104
Adjustment for change in accounting principle, net of income tax of

$4,338,292 (Note 5) (7,575,248)
Balance, January 1 (as restated) $ 75,275,856
Net income 60,234,970
Balance, December 31 $ 135,510,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

219/286



EDINETOOOO
000D O0000O000OOno(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 60,234,970
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 35,481
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Investment management fees receivable 3,954,481
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate (66,604,705)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (122,244)
Accrued compensation and employee benefits 184,356
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,317,661

Net cash used in operating activities -

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION

Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”) is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam
Investments, LLC (the “Parent” or “Putnam”), which is a majority indirectly-owned subsidiary of Great-West
Lifeco Inc. (“Lifeco”). The Company’s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to
Putnam-sponsored mutual funds (the “Funds”™). In connection with providing these services, the Company receives
a management fee, which is based upon the average asset value of the respective fund or account to which the
services are provided. Company revenue is largely dependent on the total value and composition of assets under
management of the Funds, which include domestic and international equity and debt portfolios. Accordingly,
fluctuations in financial markets and in the composition of assets under management affect revenue and results of
operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Note 5. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the Company and
may not be indicative of the conditions or the results of operations that would have existed if the Company had
been operated as an unaffiliated company.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization. Depreciation expense is
calculated using the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of each asset group as follows:
computer equipment (servers and mainframes) — three to five years, office and other equipment and automobiles —
five years, and furniture — seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over
the periods covered by the applicable leases, or the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is less.
Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization is removed from the
accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is reflected in operating income. Additions, renewals, and
betterments of fixed assets are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when
incurred. Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment, along with the cost of repairs and
maintenance, is included in Other operating expenses in the Statement of Operations. The Company periodically
reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes indicate that the
carrying value of assets may not be recoverable. There have been no property and equipment impairments during
the year.

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees are recognized as services are performed. Investment management fees are earned
daily and paid monthly or quarterly. Investment management fees are primarily based on percentages of the
average assets under management. Fees resulting from the achievement of specified performance thresholds are
recorded when such levels are attained and when such fees are not subject to forfeiture. Investment management
fees are shown net of fees waived pursuant to specified contractual expense limitations of the Funds totaling
$7,882,179.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share based payment arrangements in accordance with share-based compensation
guidance as described in Note 5. The Company elected to change its method of amortizing its share-based
compensation from the straight-line method to the graded vesting method.

Income Taxes

The Company participates in a tax sharing agreement with a U.S. affiliate of Lifeco. It accounts for income taxes
under the modified separate return method. Accordingly, the current and deferred tax provision recorded by the
Company represents how the Company would have computed its provision had it filed separate federal and state tax
returns. Recoverability of deferred tax assets is assessed based on current and anticipated cash flows arising from
the tax sharing agreement.

Under an agreement with the Parent the Company records, via an intercompany transaction with the Parent, the
amount of its net current and deferred tax provision or benefit. The Parent assumes ultimate responsibility for the
payment of all taxes in accordance with federal, state and local laws. As a result of this agreement, the Company
had no current or deferred tax liabilities or assets recorded on its balance sheet at December 31, 2011; rather, such
amounts were recorded within accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate.

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following as of December 31:

2011
Property and equipment $ 1,258,043
Less accumulated depreciation (1,245,688)
Property and equipment, net $ 12,355

Depreciation and amortization expense was $35,481 for the year ended December 31, 2011 and is included within
Other operating expenses in the Statement of Operations.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) INCOME TAXES
The Company’s income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2011 consists of the following:

2011
Federal
Current tax provision $ -
Deferred tax provision 30,725,443
Total federal provision 30,725,443
State
Current tax provision 303,635
Deferred tax benefit (6,671,762)
Total state tax benefit (6,368,127)
Change in valuation allowance (2,720,261)
Total tax provision $ 21,637,055

The total tax provision differs from the amount that would be calculated by applying the federal statutory tax rate to
income before provision for income taxes primarily due to nondeductible charges related to the equity incentive
plan, a portion of meals and entertainment expenses not deductible for income tax purposes and changes to the
valuation allowance. For years prior to January 1, 2010, the Company recorded a valuation allowance against the
future state tax provision that the Company would receive due to limitations surrounding the timing of the related
state tax deductions. A change in Massachusetts state tax law during 2010 changed the net operating loss
carryforward period from five years to twenty years, thereby eliminating the short term limitations surrounding the
timing of taking such deductions on a prospective basis. As a result, no state valuation allowance has been
recorded relative to future tax provision originating in 2011. The existing state tax valuation allowance was
decreased by $2,720,261 (net of federal provision) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The Company does not presently have any unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the effective tax rate. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its income tax provision.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company did not recognize any interest and penalties in its income
tax provision and does not have any accrued interest and penalties at December 31, 2011. For the period ended
December 31, 2011, the Company’s tax returns remain subject to examination in the following tax jurisdictions:
prior three years for U.S. federal taxes and prior three to five years for U.S. state taxes.
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(5) TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT AND AFFILIATES

Accounts Receivable from Parent and affiliate

The Company instructs its customers to remit cash directly to the Parent and instructs the Parent to disburse cash on
its behalf. The Parent also allocates certain expenses to the Company. Accounts receivable from Parent and
affiliate represents the net of intercompany transactions between the Company and the Parent and affiliates due to
(i) the above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by the Parent on its behalf and (ii) the recording of expense.
All intercompany receivables/payables are anticipated to be settled in the short-term. Accordingly, accounts
receivable from Parent and affiliate is classified as a current asset.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent and affiliates sponsor a defined contribution retirement plan (the “Plan™) covering
substantially all employees and provides for a predetermined monthly matching employer contribution and an
annual contribution as determined by the Parent’s Board of Directors. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the
Company’s share of the annual expense to the Plan totaled $2,838,636. This amount is included in Compensation
and benefits in the Statement of Operations.

Internally Developed Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for internal use as long-lived assets, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis (using the half-year convention) over the lesser of three years, or the estimated
useful life. The amortization expense is allocated to each subsidiary of the Parent, including the Company, based
on the subsidiary’s usage of each capitalized software project. Amortization expense allocated during the year
ended December 31, 2011 was $8,712,528, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates in the
Statement of Operations.

Parent Operating Expenses

The Company shares office facilities and personnel with other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related
costs of such arrangements have been allocated among the various subsidiaries in a manner which management
believes is representative of the actual costs incurred. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company
was allocated $48,691,719 of costs. These charges are included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates in
the Statement of Operations.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Parent elected to revise the methodology by which expenses are allocated from the
Parent to the Company and other of the Parents’ subsidiaries. While management believes that either expense
allocation methodology provides a reasonable allocation of overhead costs, the methodology that commenced on
January 1, 2011 provides a more simplistic approach that is based on key business drivers such as revenue,
headcount, assets under management, IT project costs, and operating expenses. Had the Parent allocated overhead
costs to the Company under this new methodology during 2010, the Company would have incurred approximately
$40,640,686 of Parent overhead costs, compared to actual incurred costs of $37,327,918 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The resulting net loss impact would have been $2,013,500.
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Equity Incentive Compensation

Beginning in 2008, the Parent initiated the Putham Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP™). Certain
employees of the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricted
shares of the Parent’s Class B common shares and Class B stock options.

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under this plan in accordance with the applicable accounting
guidance. A portion of these expenses are charged to the Company in a manner consistent with the grant of such
share-based payments.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company elected to change its method of amortizing its share-based compensation to
the graded vesting method, whereas in all prior years share-based compensation was amortized using the
straight-line method. The Company has adopted this new method of accounting for share-based compensation to
maintain consistency in methodology with the Parent, which was required to utilize the graded vesting method upon
adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Under U.S. GAAP, the Company is allowed to
make a policy election between the graded vesting or straight line method. The Company ultimately chose the
graded vesting method so its accounting treatment for share-based compensation expense would be better aligned
with its Parent. Under graded vesting, specific conditions exist where shares are set to vest in tranches of varying
length over a specified time period. An employee’s percentage of rights to their shares as well as the total
amortization expense associated with those shares increases after each period of service until full vesting is
realized. As a result, graded vesting accelerates the amortization expense to earlier periods in the overall vesting
period. As a result, a decrease has been recorded to Members’ Equity for $7,575,248, net of tax at January 1, 2011.

The Company has employees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to the
EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair market value
of the Class B common shares was determined under the valuation methodology outlined in the EIP, which
includes consideration of the range of values determined by a nationally recognized independent valuation firm
chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for these awards is being amortized over the vesting period
of up to five years. Compensation expense charged and allocated to the Company during the year ended December
31, 2011 was $12,178,632 and $3,474,666, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, there was $22,000,970 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares. The
weighted average period over which that expense is expected to be recognized is 3.29 years.

The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation expense related to the Parent’s 2008 grant under the
EIP of Class B stock options to the Parent’s senior management. The grant date fair value of the options was $8.06
and was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing valuation model with the following assumptions used:
dividend yield 0.00%, expected volatility 27.98%, risk-free interest rate 4.39% and expected life of 6.3 years.
Compensation expense allocated to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 related to these Class B
stock options was $793,769. As of December 31, 2011 there was $569,666 of unrecognized compensation expense
related to the Company’s allocated portion of Class B stock options. The period over which the expense is
expected to be recognized is 1.50 years.

Expenses charged directly to the Company related to the EIP is included in Compensation and benefits in the

Statement of Operations. Allocated expenses related to these plans are included in Allocated expenses from Parent
and affiliates in the Statement of Operations.
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(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Claims, Lawsuits and Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, arising in the normal course of
business. It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Company.

In addition, the Company does receive inquiries, including requests for documents and information, in the course of
its business from various state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds to
these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory inquiries.

Indemnified Matters

Putnam’s former parent company, Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., will indemnify Lifeco with respect to
certain Putnam-related litigation and regulatory matters following the date of the acquisition by Lifeco. This
includes, but is not limited to, regulatory and civil matters and litigation involving excessive short-term trading by
certain former employees of the Parent and shareholders in shares of the Funds and alleged market timing and late
trading activities in the Funds.

(7) PREPAID SIGN-ON BONUSES

At December 31, 2011, there is $3,666,667 of prepaid sign-on bonuses which are included in Prepaid expenses and
other current assets in the Balance Sheet. The expense for these bonuses is being recognized through 2012. These
bonuses are subject to a clawback period if the recipient employees do not remain continuously employed by the
Company through 2012. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to $4,000,000 and
is included in Compensation and benefits in the Statement of Operations.

(8) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has policies and procedures relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring, mitigating and
controlling of risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are
liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk (interest rate and equity). The following sections describe how the
Company manages each of these risks.

(a)Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come

due. The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk:
The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities.
The Company has the financial support of its Parent, which maintains a $500,000,000 revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks.
The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due as of December
31, 2011.
The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal year.
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(b)Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due. The
Company monitors its credit risk management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness. The
maximum credit exposure is the carrying value of the assets on the Balance Sheet.

(c)Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market factors which include two types: interest rate (including related inflation) risk
and equity risk.

(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk exists if asset and liability cash flows are not closely matched and interest rates change
causing a difference in value between the asset and liability. The Company’s primary exposure to
interest rate risk arises from fee revenue earned from fixed income investments within the Funds advised
by the Company.

(ii) Equity Risk
Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in equity
markets. The Company’s primary exposure to equity risk arises from fee revenue that is generated from
the Funds advised by the Company.

(9) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after December 31, 2011 through March 21,

2012, the date these financial statements were issued. The Company is not aware of any subsequent events which
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

227/286



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2)2010 12 31

2010 12 31

30,701,792, 798, 161
( ) 53,195,568, 848, 244

6,380,772 581,544

90, 278,138,227, 949

47,836 4,360

63, 763 5,811

90,389, 728,238,120

3,590,707 327,257

3,947,918 359,813

7,538,625 687,070

82,851,10%4,551, 050

90,389,728, 238,120

228/286



2010

12

31

229/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

354,172,192, 279, 254

180,975,098, 494,071

36,295,4706,307, 969

3,095,706 282,143

9,019,160 822, 006

37,327,918, 402, 066

266, 713,338,308, 255

87,458,847T1T, 970, 999

33,768,518, 077, 662

53,690,32%,893, 336




12

31

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 12 31

938,916, 188,572, 819
) ( ) 3,095,706 282,143
(912,851, 088) 197, 248)

53,690,32%,893, 336

82,851,104,551, 050

230/286



2010

12

31

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

53,690,32%,893, 336

35,869 3,269

3,095,706 282,143

36,252,468, 304, 050
(96,210, 478)768, 623)
14,909,906, 358, 889
(10,755,770980, 282)

(1,018,321192,810)

(300) (27)

(300) (27)
300 27
0 0

(912,851,089)197,248)

231/286



(1

(2

232/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12



(3

12 31

2010 12 31

2010
26, 922

2010

233/286

12 31

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

1,258, 044
(1,210, 208)

47,836
47,836
35,869



(4

20102 31

2

527,803

20009

2009 12

2010

2010 12
2010 12

010

31

12

31
31

1 1

581,

31

748,

229

234/286

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

114, 413
28,609,680

28,724,093

(101, 650)
5,673,874

5,572,224

(527, 803)

33,768,514

20

2010
2010 12 31

2010
912,851, 089
20009

2010 12 31

1



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(5)

2010 1 1

2010 12 31
4,511,227

2010 12 31 11,900

2010 12 31
37,327,918

2008 3

2008

235/286



(6

0.

13.

29,

2 ’

2010 12

2010 12
2010 12
701, 946

00 %

2010
2010 12 31
096, 593

95 21.

31

13

31
31

2
12

095, 706
7. 98%
31

236/286

4 .

39%

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 12 31

18. 94
5
11,908
3.01
2008
8. 06
6. 3
838, 637
. 5



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMC

(7

20102 31 3,666, 667
2011
2011 2010 12

(8

2010 12 31 2011 22

237/286



PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC

BALANCE SHEET

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

December 31,
2010

ASSETS

Current Assets
Investment management fees receivable
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate (Note 5)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

$ 30,701,792
53,195,566
6,380,772

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Other assets

90,278,130

47,836
63,763

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 90,389,729

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Accrued compensation and employee benefits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

$ 3,590,707
3,947,918

Total liabilities

7,538,625

Members' Equity

82,851,104

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

$ 90,389,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2010

REVENUE

Investment management fees $ 354,172,194
OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and benefits 180,975,099

Professional and external services 36,295,470

Acquisition-related compensation (Note 5) 3,095,706

Other operating expenses 9,019,160

Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates (Note 5) 37,327,918
Total operating expenses 266,713,353
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 87,458,841
Provision for income taxes 33,768,514
NET INCOME $ 53,690,327

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY

December 31,

2010
Balance, January 1 $ 938,916,160
Capital contribution from the Parent (in the form of acquisition-related
compensation) (Note 5) 3,095,706
Dividends paid to the Parent (Note 4) (912,851,089)
Net income 53,690,327
Balance, December 31 $ 82,851,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 53,690,327
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 35,869
Capital contribution from the Parent (in the form of acquisition-related
compensation) 3,095,706
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Investment management fees receivable 36,252,465
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate (96,210,473)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 14,909,906
Accrued compensation and employee benefits (10,755,779)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,018,321)
Net cash used in operating activities (300)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (300)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 300
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ -
Supplemental Non-Cash Flow Information from Financing Activities:
Non-cash dividend issued to the Parent (912,851,089)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION

Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”) is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putham
Investments, LLC (the “Parent” or “Putnam”), which is a majority indirectly-owned subsidiary of Great-West
Lifeco Inc. (“Lifeco”). The Company’s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to
Putnam-sponsored mutual funds (the “Funds™). In connection with providing these services, the Company receives
a management fee, which is based upon the average asset value of the respective fund or account to which the
services are provided. Company revenue is largely dependent on the total value and composition of assets under
management, which include domestic and international equity and debt portfolios. Accordingly, fluctuations in
financial markets and in the composition of assets under management affect revenue and results of operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Note 5. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the Company and
may not be indicative of the conditions or the results of operations that would have existed if the Company had
been operated as an unaffiliated company. The Parent has committed to funding the operations of the Company for
the next twelve months.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization. Depreciation expense is
calculated using the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of each asset group as follows:
computer equipment (servers and mainframes) — three to five years, office and other equipment and automobiles —
five years, and furniture — seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over
the periods covered by the applicable leases, or the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is less.
Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization is removed from the
accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is reflected in operating income. Additions, renewals, and
betterments of fixed assets are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when
incurred. Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment, along with the cost of repairs and
maintenance, is included in other operating expenses in the statements of operations. The Company periodically
reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes indicate that the
carrying value of assets may not be recoverable.

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees are recognized as services are performed. Investment management fees are earned
daily and paid monthly or quarterly. Investment management fees are primarily based on percentages of the
average assets under management. Fees resulting from the achievement of specified performance thresholds are
recorded when such levels are attained and when such fees are not subject to forfeiture. Investment management
fees for mutual funds are shown net of fees waived pursuant to expense limitations.
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Income Taxes

The Company files its federal tax return as part of a consolidated federal tax return under a U.S. affiliate of Lifeco.

The Parent participates in a tax sharing agreement with a U.S. affiliate of Lifeco and allocates certain tax amounts
to its various subsidiaries. As a result, the current and deferred tax provision recorded by the Company represents
how the Company would have computed its provision had it filed separate federal and state tax returns.

Under an agreement with the Parent, the Company records via an intercompany transaction with the Parent the
amount of its net current and deferred tax provision or net tax benefit. The Parent assumes ultimate responsibility
for the payment of all taxes in accordance with federal, state and local laws. As a result of this agreement, the
Company had no current or deferred tax liabilities or assets recorded on its statement of financial condition at
December 31, 2010.

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following as of December 31:

2010
Property and equipment $ 1,258,044
Less accumulated depreciation (1,210,208)
47,836
Property and equipment, net $ 47,836

Depreciation and amortization expense was $35,869 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

During 2010, the Company determined that certain fully-depreciated property and equipment was no longer in
service. The write-off of such assets totaled $26,922. There was no gain or loss on the disposal of these assets.

243/286



EDINETOOOO
0000000000000 0(E14869)
OoOdoD0oooooogoogoog
PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) INCOME TAXES
The Company’s income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2010 consists of the following:

2010
Federal
Current tax provision $ 114,413
Deferred tax provision 28,609,680
Total federal provision 28,724,093
State
Current tax benefit (101,650)
Deferred tax provision 5,673,874
Total state tax provision 5,572,224
Change in valuation allowance (527,803)
Total tax provision $ 33,768,514

The total tax provision differs from the amount that would be calculated by applying the federal statutory tax rate to
income before provision for income taxes primarily due to nondeductible charges related to the equity incentive
plan and a portion of meals and entertainment expenses not deductible for income tax purposes. For years prior to
January 1, 2010, the Company recorded a valuation allowance against the future state tax provision that the
Company would receive due to limitations surrounding the timing of the related state tax deductions. A change in
Massachusetts state tax law during the year changed the net operating loss carryforward period from five years to
twenty years, thereby eliminating the short term limitations surrounding the timing of taking such deductions on a
prospective basis. As a result, no state valuation allowance has been recorded relative to future tax provision
originating in 2010. The existing state tax valuation allowance was decreased by $527,803 (net of federal
provision) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

As part of a general corporate restructuring due to changes in state tax law in 2009, the Parent undertook a
simplification of its organizational structure by streamlining the number of legal entities and settling intercompany
balances among certain of its subsidiary companies. As a result, in 2010 the Company settled $912,851,089 of its
accounts receivable from Parent balance, which had been classified as an equity balance in the past because of its
permanent investment designation, by issuing a dividend, which represented the entire remaining balance in the
account as of December 31, 2009. Included in this settlement amount was the December 31, 2009 cumulative
deferred tax asset balance of $581,748,229. As discussed in Note 2, the Parent assumes ultimate responsibility for
the payment of all taxes in accordance with federal, state, and local laws. As a result of this agreement, the
Company has no current or deferred tax liabilities or assets recorded on its balance sheet at December 31, 2010.

The Company does not presently have any unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the effective tax rate. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its income tax provision.
During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company did not recognize any interest and penalties in its income
tax provision and does not have any accrued interest and penalties at December 31, 2010. Each of the Company’s
tax returns filed in the five-year period ended December 31, 2010 remain subject to examination by U.S. federal,
state, local or non-U.S. tax authorities.
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(5) TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT AND AFFILIATES

Accounts Receivable from Parent and affiliate

The Company instructs its customers to remit cash directly to the Parent and instructs the Parent to disburse cash on
its behalf. The Parent also allocates certain expenses to the Company. Accounts receivable from Parent and
affiliate represents the net of intercompany transactions between the Company and the Parent and affiliates due to
(i) the above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by the Parent on its behalf and (ii) the recording of expense.
Commencing January 1, 2010, all intercompany receivables/payables are anticipated to be settled in the short-term.
Accordingly, accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate is classified as a current asset.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent and affiliates sponsor a defined contribution retirement plan (the “Plan”) covering
substantially all employees and provides for a predetermined monthly matching employer contribution and an
annual contribution as determined by the Parent’s Board of Directors. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the
Company’s share of the annual expense to the Plan totaled $4,511,227. These amounts are included in
compensation and benefits in the statement of operations.

Internally Developed Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for internal use as long-lived assets, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis (using the half-year convention) over the lesser of three years, or the estimated
useful life. The amortization expense is charged to each subsidiary of the Parent, including the Company, based on
the subsidiary’s usage of each capitalized software project. Amortization expense incurred during the year ended
December 31, 2010 was $11,900,485, and is included in professional and external services in the statement of
operations.

Parent Operating Expenses
The Company shares office facilities and personnel with other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related
costs of such arrangements have been allocated among the various subsidiaries in a manner which management
believes is representative of the actual costs incurred. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company
was allocated $37,327,918 of costs. These charges are included in allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates in
the statement of operations.

Incentive Compensation Plans

The cost associated with incentive compensation plans have also been distributed directly and allocated among the
various subsidiaries of the Parent in a manner which management believes is representative of the actual costs
incurred. The incentive compensation arrangements are further described below.

Prior to August 3, 2007 (the “Acquisition Date” of the Company), Putnam Investments Trust (“PIT”) (the
Company’s former parent) sponsored the Putnam Investments Trust Equity Partnership Plan (the “EPP”). Certain
employees of the Company were eligible to participate in the EPP, under which they were eligible to receive
non-qualified stock options and restricted shares of PIT’s Class B common stock. Beginning in 2008, the Parent
initiated the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP”). Certain employees of the Company are
eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricted shares of the Parent’s Class B
common shares and Class B stock options.

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under these plans in accordance with the applicable accounting

guidance. A portion of these expenses are charged to the Company in a manner consistent with the grant of such
share-based payments.
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EPP

As a result of the acquisition of PIT, based upon a methodology provided in the EPP, a new deferred cash award
attributable to each participant was contributed to Grantor Trusts established for the benefit of the participants. The
participants received the deferred amount over a two or three year period. Compensation expense allocated to the
Company related to the Grantor Trusts totaled $3,095,706 for the year ended December 31, 2010. These
compensation expense charges are recorded in acquisition-related compensation in the Company’s statement of
operations. The offset is recorded as a capital contribution from the Parent in the Company’s statement of changes
in Members’ Equity. At December 31, 2010, there was no unrecognized compensation expense related to the
Grantor Trusts.

EIP

The Company has employees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to the

EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The weighted average

grant date fair value for these Parent company shares was $18.94, $13.95 and $21.13. The fair market value of the
Class B common shares was determined under the valuation methodology outlined in the EIP, which includes

consideration of the range of values determined by a nationally recognized independent valuation firm chosen by

the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for these awards is being amortized over the vesting period of up to

five years. Compensation expense charged and allocated to the Company during the year ended December 31,

2010 was $11,908,058. As of December 31, 2010, there was $29,701,946 of unrecognized compensation expense
related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares. The weighted average period over which

that expense is expected to be recognized is 3.01 years.

The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation expense related to the Parent’s 2008 grant under the
EIP of Class B stock options to the Parent’s senior management. The grant date fair value of the options was $8.06
and was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing valuation model with the following assumptions used:
dividend yield 0.00%, expected volatility 27.98%, risk-free interest rate 4.39% and expected life of 6.3 years.
Compensation expense allocated to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 related to these Class B
stock options was $838,637. As of December 31, 2010 there was $2,096,593 of unrecognized compensation
expense related to the Company’s allocated portion of Class B stock options. The period over which the expense is
expected to be recognized is 2.5 years.

Expenses charged directly to the Company related to these plans are included in compensation and benefits in the

statement of operations. Allocated expenses related to these plans are included in allocated expenses from Parent
and affiliates in the statement of operations.
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(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Claims, Lawsuits and Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, arising in the normal course of
business. It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Company.

In addition, the Company does receive inquiries, including requests for documents and information, in the course of
its business from various state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds to
these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory inquiries.

MMC-Indemnified Matters

The Putnam Investments Trust Sale Agreement provides that Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc. (“MMC,” PIT’s
former parent company), will indemnify Lifeco with respect to certain Putnam-related litigation and regulatory
matters following the Acquisition Date. This includes, but is not limited to, regulatory and civil matters and
litigation involving excessive short-term trading by certain former employees of the Parent and shareholders in
shares of the Funds and alleged market timing and late trading activities in the Funds.

(7) PREPAID SIGN-ON BONUSES

At December 31, 2010, there is $3,666,667 of prepaid sign-on bonuses which are included in prepaid expenses and
other current assets in the balance sheet. The expense for these bonuses is being recognized through 2011. These
bonuses are subject to a clawback period if the recipient employees do not remain continuously employed by the
Company through 2011. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 amounted to $4,449,497 and
is included in compensation and benefits in the statement of operations.

(8) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after December 31, 2010 through February

22, 2011, the date these financial statements were issued. The Company is not aware of any subsequent events
which would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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(1994 12 2013 )
( )
1994 12 0.039 1994 12 15 6. 46
1995 0.041 1995 16 6.48
0.039 1995 15 6.55
0.039 1995 15 6. 65
0.039 1995 17 6. 70
0.040 1995 15 6.84
0.039 1995 15 6.96
0.039 1995 17 6. 95
0.039 1995 15 6.82
0.039 1995 15 6.98
10 0.039 1995 10 16 7. 04
11 0.039 1995 11 15 7.03
12 0.038 1995 12 15 7.12
1996 0. 038 1996 15 7.14
0.038 1996 16 7.13
0.038 1996 15 6.86
0.038 1996 15 6. 84
0. 038 1996 15 6. 81
0.037 1996 17 6. 72
0.036 1996 15 6.73
0. 036 1996 15 6. 84
0.036 1996 16 6.83
10 0.036 1996 10 15 6.91
11 0. 036 1996 11 15 7. 06
12 0.071 1996 12 16 6. 95
1997 0.035 1997 15 6.93
0. 036 1997 18 7. 05
0.036 1997 17 6.89
0.036 1997 15 6.80
0.036 1997 15 6.88
0. 036 1997 16 6. 97
0.036 1997 15 7.02
0.035 1997 15 7.02
0. 038 1997 15 7. 03
10 0.036 1997 10 15 7.009
11 0.036 1997 11 17 7.07
12 0.060 1997 12 15 7. 05
1998 0.036 1998 15 7. 11
0.036 1998 17 7.11
0.036 1998 16 7.009
0. 036 1998 15 7. 08
0.036 1998 15 7.04
0.035 1998 15 7.11
0. 035 1998 15 7.07
0.035 1998 17 7.00
0.036 1998 15 6.90
10 0. 036 1998 10 15 6. 84
11 0.036 1998 11 16 6. 77
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1998 12 0. 036 1998 12 18 6. 89
1999 0. 036 1999 15 6. 86
0.034 1999 16 6. 78
0.034 1999 15 6. 74
0. 034 1999 15 6. 75
0.034 1999 17 6. 62
0.034 1999 15 6. 47
0.034 1999 15 6.54
0. 034 1999 16 6. 41
0.034 1999 15 6. 40
10 0.034 1999 10 15 6. 35
11 0. 034 1999 11 15 6. 43
12 0. 034 1999 12 15 6. 35
2000 0.034 2000 18 6. 23
0. 034 2000 15 6. 27
0.034 2000 15 6.29
0.034 2000 17 6. 27
0. 034 2000 15 6.009
0. 034 2000 15 6.19
0.034 2000 17 6. 21
0.034 2000 15 6. 28
0. 034 2000 15 6.26
10 0.034 2000 10 16 6. 26
11 0.034 2000 11 15 6.25
12 0. 062 2000 12 15 6. 31
2001 0.034 2001 16 6. 32
0.034 2001 15 6. 35
0. 034 2001 15 6. 44
0.029 2001 16 6. 34
0.029 2001 15 6. 36
0.029 2001 15 6. 42
0.029 2001 16 6. 43
0.029 2001 15 6. 48
0.029 2001 17 6. 53
10 0.029 2001 10 15 6.56
11 0.029 2001 11 15 6.51
12 0.029 2001 12 17 6. 36
2002 0.029 2002 15 6.50
0.029 2002 15 6. 47
0.029 2002 15 6. 36
0.029 2002 15 6. 43
0.029 2002 15 6. 41
0.029 2002 17 6. 49
0.029 2002 15 6. 49
0.029 2002 15 6.51
0.024 2002 16 6.59
10 0.024 2002 10 15 6.50
11 0.024 2002 11 15 6.54
12 0.024 2002 12 13 6. 56
2003 0.024 2003 15 6.58
0.020 2003 18 6.61
0.020 2003 17 6. 63
0.020 2003 15 6.61
0.020 2003 15 6. 74
0.018 2003 16 6. 82
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( )
2003 0.017 2003 17 6. 66
0.018 2003 15 6. 49
0.017 2003 17 6. 63
10 0.018 2003 10 17 6.59
11 0.018 2003 11 17 6.67
12 0.017 2003 12 18 6. 69
2004 0.018 2004 15 6. 75
0.018 2004 17 6. 76
0.014 2004 17 6. 86
0.014 2004 16 6. 68
0.014 2004 17 6.56
0.014 2004 17 6.57
0.014 20014 16 6. 66
0.014 2004 17 6. 72
0.014 2004 17 6. 75
10 0.014 2004 10 15 6. 78
11 0.013 2004 11 17 6. 77
12 0.014 2004 12 16 6. 77
2005 0.014 2005 14 6. 77
0.014 2005 16 6.80
0.015 2005 17 6. 72
0.015 2005 15 6. 75
0.015 2005 17 6. 78
0.018 2005 17 6.80
0.018 2005 15 6. 78
0.017 2005 17 6. 75
0.022 2005 16 6. 75
10 0.022 2005 10 17 6.67
11 0.022 2005 11 16 6. 65
12 0. 022 2005 12 16 6. 67
2006 0.022 2006 17 6. 71
0.021 2006 16 6. 64
0.022 2006 17 6. 63
0.022 2006 17 6.54
0.023 2006 17 6.50
0.023 2006 16 6. 49
0.023 2006 17 6. 49
0.023 2006 17 6.57
0.025 2006 15 6.60
10 0.025 2006 10 17 6.60
11 0.025 2006 11 16 6.65
12 0.025 2006 12 15 6. 67
2007 0.024 2007 17 6. 64
0.026 2007 15 6. 66
0.026 2007 16 6.70
0.026 2007 17 6. 67
0.026 2007 17 6. 64
0.025 2007 19 6.56
0.025 2007 24 6.58
0.026 2007 21 6. 63
0.026 2007 19 6.65
10 0.026 2007 10 19 6.70
11 0.026 2007 11 19 6. 67
12 0.072 2007 12 19 6.61
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( )
2008 0.028 2008 18 6.609
0.028 2008 19 6.56
0.028 2008 18 6.50
0. 038 2008 21 6. 41
0.038 2008 20 6. 49
0. 038 2008 19 6. 34
0. 038 2008 21 6. 24
0.038 2008 19 6. 16
0. 038 2008 19 6. 05
10 0. 038 2008 10 21 5.58
11 0.038 2008 11 19 4. 94
12 0. 038 2008 12 19 4. 66
20009 0. 038 20009 20 5.08
0.038 20009 19 5.11
0. 038 20009 19 5.10
0. 038 20009 21 5.17
0. 038 20009 19 5.52
0. 038 20009 19 5.64
0. 038 20009 21 5.94
0. 038 20009 19 6.10
0. 038 20009 21 6.25
10 0. 038 2009 10 20 6. 46
11 0. 038 2009 11 19 6.53
12 0. 038 2009 12 21 6.50
2010 0. 038 2010 19 6.59
0.037 2010 19 6. 64
0.042 2010 18 6. 67
0.042 2010 19 6. 72
0.042 2010 18 6. 66
0.042 2010 18 6. 65
0.042 2010 20 6. 73
0.037 2010 19 6. 82
0.037 2010 21 6. 75
10 0.037 2010 10 19 6. 74
11 0. 033 2010 11 19 6. 66
12 0. 033 2010 12 20 6.57
2011 0. 033 2011 19 6. 64
0. 033 2011 18 6. 63
0.028 2011 21 6.70
0.028 2011 18 6. 71
0.027 2011 19 6. 78
0.027 2011 21 6. 77
0.028 2011 19 6. 74
0.028 2011 19 6.79
0.018 2011 20 6. 76
10 0.019 2011 10 19 6. 63
11 0.019 2011 11 18 6. 63
12 0.019 2011 12 20 6. 62
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( )
2012 0.019 2012 19 6.65
0.019 2012 21 6.69
0.019 2012 20 6. 66
0.015 2012 19 6. 75
0.015 2012 21 6.79
0.015 2012 19 6. 84
0.015 2012 19 6. 94
0.014 2012 21 6. 94
0.015 2012 19 7.03
10 0.015 2012 10 19 7.08
11 0.015 2012 11 19 7.10
12 0.016 2012 12 19 7.009
2013 0.017 2013 18 7.13
0.017 2013 19 7. 13
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)
(1994 12 31 2012 12 31 )
)
2012 12 31 7.12
2011 12 31 6. 64
2010 12 31 6. 63
2009 12 31 6. 55
2008 12 31 4. 91
2007 12 31 6. 63
2006 12 31 6. 67
2005 12 31 6. 69
2004 12 31 6. 78
2003 12 31 6. 68
2002 12 31 6. 63
2001 12 31 6. 44
2000 12 31 6. 33
1999 12 31 6. 32
1998 12 31 6. 88
1997 12 31 7.07
1996 12 31 6. 98
1995 12 31 7.20
1994 12 31 6. 47
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income

Fund (the fund), including the fund’s portfolio, as of October 31, 2011, and the related statement of
operations for the year then ended, the statements of changes in net assets for each of the two years in the
period then ended and the financial highlights for each of the five years in the period then ended. These
financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund’ s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial highlights based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements and financial highlights are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of
October 31, 2011 by correspondence with the custodian and brokers or by other appropriate auditing
procedures. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2011, the results of its
operations for the year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the two years in the period then
ended, and the financial highlights for each of the five years in the period then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2011

()
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Boston, Massachusetts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Putnam Investments, LLC and Members of
Putnam Investment Management, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”) (a wholly
indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC) as of December 31, 2010, and the related statement of operations,
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at
December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the Company and may not
necessarily be indicative of the conditions that would have existed or the results of operations if the Company had been
operated as an unaffiliated company. Portions of certain expenses represent allocations made from Putnam Investments, LLC
applicable to the Company as a whole.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

February 22, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income

Fund (the fund), including the fund’s portfolio, as of October 31, 2012, and the related statement of
operations for the year then ended, the statements of changes in net assets for each of the years in the
two-year period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the years or periods in the five-year
period then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund’
s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements and financial highlights are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of
October 31, 2012, by correspondence with the custodian and brokers or by other appropriate auditing
procedures. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2012, the results of its
operations for the year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year
period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the years or periods in the five-year period then
ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2012

()
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Boston, Massachusetts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Putnam Investments, LLC and Members of
Putnam Investment Management, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”) (a wholly
indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC) as of December 31, 2011, and the related statements of operations,
changes in members’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at
December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 5 to the financial statements, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its
affiliates. These financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations had
the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company.

As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, the Company elected to change its method of accounting for amortizing its
share-based compensation in 2011.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

March 21, 2012
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